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MESSAGE FROM THE COMMANDER OF THE AIR FORCE

I am honoured to present the Sri Lanka Air Force (SLAF) 

Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 2021. This 

report helps explain to the Government, the five year Action 

Plan and Sri Lanka Air Force Corporate Plan 2021-2023, in line 

with the National Policy Framework ‘Vistas of Prosperity and 

Splendor’. It also includes the Annual Action Plan for the year 

2021 and National Defence Strategy. It is a tool to showcase to 

the General public our stewardship of the taxpayer resources
entrusted to the SLAF in fiscal year 2021, as well as helping to assess our management of those resources 

and our accomplishments, challenges and vision for the future.

The SLAF is focused on the eleven (11) Goals outlined in SLAF Corporate Plan 2021-2023, defending 

the nation, taking care of our people, and succeeding through teamwork. Despite the COVID-19 

pandemic, the SLAF has not wavered in its commitment to its mission. We have supported the Ministry 

of Health in the digitization of COVID-19 WHO vaccination data tracker, by deploying officers/

airmen islandwide and entering more than 12.95 million COVID-19 vaccination data, which help 

to assess progress of the vaccination programme and to make timely decisions to control pandemic 

situation. Also, we are putting into place the strategy, resources and operational concepts needed to 

address the facing challenge of the national security and nation development of the country. We have 

continued deployment of troops to UN contingents at Central Africa and South Sudan (a totally of 

327 service personnel) which has positively impacted to increase the inflow of foreign currency to the 

country. I am grateful to each member of the SLAF workforce for remaining steadfast during these 

difficult times.

The SLAF also remains committed to its annual financial statement audit regime that resulted in an 

audit of opinion where a few weaknesses were identified and are now being addressed, so we can 

move to be better. The audit findings and recommendations continue to provide us with invaluable 

information to guide our corrective actions as we strive to improve the quality of our financial reporting 

process. Our overall financial performance section in the management’s discussion, analysis section 

and compliance report outlines the SLAF’s assessment of weaknesses and compliance with relevant 

laws and regulations. 
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The overall financial performance section provides the Auditor General’s Report, which details the 

results of this year’s audit. The audit remediation effort is key to our goal to ensure that the SLAF’s 

resources are matched to strategy, strategy is matched to policy and policy is matched to the will of the 

country. Modernizing and reforming our professional practices will make us even better guardians of 

hard-earned taxpayer resources, as we continue to better support our war fighters and free up time, 

money and personnel for higher priorities. The SLAF is grateful to His Excellency the President of 

the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and  Secretary of Defence for his support and valuable 

contribution rendered, and for driving us towards our Vision and Mission. We remain committed to 

the efficient and accountable management of our resources and we are confident that this report will 

underscore the great strides we have made towards stronger fiscal transparency and performance and 

help us do even better.

AIR MARSHAL SK PATHIRANA

WWV and Bar, RWP and Bar, RSP and three Bars, VSV, USP, MSc (MOA) USA, MSc (Def Stu) in Mgt, M 

Phil (Ind), MIM (SL), ndc (Ind), psc, qfi 

COMMANDER OF THE AIR FORCE

       May 2022

IT Admin
Typewritten text
13
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CHAPTER 01

1.	 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	
	 1.1	 Introduction

a.	 During the financial year 2021, Sri Lanka Air Force has contributed in line 
with Sri Lanka Air Force Corporate Plan 2021-2023 and Annual Action Plan year 
2021 and also the National Policy Framework ‘Vistas of Prosperity and Splendor’ 
five year Action Plan of the Government of Sri Lanka giving top priority of national 
security to the country. In addition to the primary role of effective utilization of 
air power for the defence of the nation, SLAF has contributed nation development 
activities to country. Especially, in response to COVID-19, the SLAF has prioritized the 
protection of our forces including service members and their dependents and civilians 
maintaining mission readiness, and supporting the whole of government effort to 
fight this virus in the year 2021. In the face of complex challenges like the COVID-19 
pandemic, SLAF advanced important initiatives in FY 2021 that will have a positive 
impact on the Government human capital management landscape in the years ahead.

b.	 In the year 2021 Sri Lanka Air Force had continued its leading role in developing 
domestic air transport, which is identified as a prerequisite for development of tourism 
in the country. The Sri Lanka Air Force also played a major role in national calamities 
and disasters by active participation in casualty evacuation and timely engaging troops. 
Annual Performance Report 2021 includes analysis of Corporate Plan for the period 
2021-2023, Annual Action Plan 2021 and also National Policy Framework Vistas 
of Prosperity and Splendour 5-year Action Plan with annual budgetary allocation. 
Further, established activities during the year 2021 for accomplishment have been 
analyzed against the actual performance and highlighted for intended planning of 2021. 

		  c.	   Analysis of Annual Action Plan with Budget

(1)	 The Annual Performance Report is set out on the same basis as the 
Annual Budget with Annual Action Plan. It reports performance against 
the targets set out in the Corporate Plan for the period 2021 - 2023. Each 
section contains a short performance summary and assessment at the front, 
supplemented by an essay providing additional background on some relevant 
aspects of defence related activities during the year. 

(2)	 The Annual Budget is designed deliberately to evolve over time to 
reflect emerging top level priorities and changes in the way the Department 
is organized. Consequently, although the overall structures remain consistent, 
there is inevitably a certain amount of change from one annual Budget to the 
next at the top level supporting objectives and the way they are bridged and 
presented.

(3)	 At the highest level, objectives of the Sri Lanka Air Force are set out in 
the Corporate Plan 2021 - 2023. The Annual Performance Report therefore 
starts with a summary of performance as of 31st December 2021 against the 
targets set in the Corporate Plan for the period 2021-2023 and Annual Action 
Plan of year 2021. The spending review is provided throughout the report.
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	 d.	   Departmental Financial Statements 2021

(1)	 The Department is required to prepare Financial Statement for each 
financial year detailing the resources required, held or disposed during the year 
and the way in which it has been used. The financial statements are prepared on 
a cash basis in accordance with Financial Regulations and Treasury guidelines.

(2)	 They must give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Department, the Net Resource outturn, resources applied to objectives, 
recognized gains and losses, and cash flows for the financial year. The 
Department Financial Statement for 2021 is attached with this report.

	 e.	   Strategic Framework for Performance Management

(1)	 Performance Management is a multi-phase process setting strategic 
goals and priorities, creating program activities, monitoring program activities 
collecting data and measuring progress towards achievement of goals, using 
performance and evaluation information to influence program and resource 
allocation decision making and communicating results to stakeholders.

(2)	 The SLAF’s performance management is guided by a high-level three 
year SLAF Corporate Plan 2021-2023, Annual Action Plan (AAP) of the year 
2021 and National Policy Framework Vistas of Prosperity and Splendour 
5-year Action Plan.

	
	 1.2	 Vision, Mission and Core - Competencies

	 a.	   Vision  

		  “Ensuring national security through effective employment of airpower”

	 b.	   Mission 

		 “To train, equip and deploy a professional Air Force exploiting our core com-
petencies to undertake air operations in support of national security”

	 c.	 Core - Competencies

		 The core competencies of an organization are the major determination of 
driving the organization towards achieving its goals. The SLAF also has number of 
unmatchable core competences as follows:
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(1)	 Military Flying and Air Defence Capability.		  SLAF is the sole 
entity capable of conducting military flying and Air Defence operations in Sri 
Lanka.

(2)	 Innovative Adaption for Limited Resources. 		  Through its 
history, SLAF has shown a unique adaptability in the utilization of limited 
resources and is application for achievement of maximization effect under 
varying circumstances.

(3)	 A professional, motivated Workforce with Diverse operational 
Experience.	 SLAF possesses a rich heritage of traditions inherited from the 
RAF, a well-defined training and professional development structure, a wealth 
of experience gained in the application of Air Power in diverse operations 
conducted since its inception, which has produced a dedicated, motivated and 
highly adaptive professional force.

(4)	 Effective, secure, responsible exploitation of the electromagnetic 
spectrum and cyberspace for national security.

(5)	 Through possession of an exclusive island wide secure 
telecommunication, IT and Radar network, SLAF has the unique ability to 
exploit the electromagnetic spectrum for communication and Air Surveillance 
and cyberspace for information management.

1.3	 Key Functions

a.	 To provide tactical air support and transport to Land and Naval forces.

b.	 To provide rescue facilities and transport at the request of the Government.

c.	 Provide engineering and logistic services to maintain aircraft, road transport, 
electronic equipment and other plant and machinery.

d.	 Provide troops for internal security operations.

e.	 Undertake Non- Military Air operations and carry out research and development 
projects connected with national development. 

f.	 Actively participating in the Peace Keeping Forces of the UN by providing 
human resources, aircrafts and vehicles.
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	 1.5	 Main Directorates and Command Divisions of the Sri Lanka Air Force 	
	 and its brief Description in the year 2020 

	 a.	   Directorate of Air Operations 

(1)	 Introduction

(a)	 The Operational shaper of the Sri Lanka Air Force comes under 
the purview of the Directorate of Air Operations. The Directorate is 
responsible for the areas of Air Operations, Air Defence & Air Traffic 
Controlling and Fire Fighting.

(b)	 The overall budget of Directorate of Air Operations was LKR Mn 
52.20 covering major activities under the main headings of insurance of 
aircraft, fire fighting, ATC and airfield safety.

		 (c)	 During the year 2021, the directorate has completed most of 	
		 the activities, which have been projected in the Annual Action 		
		 Plan 2021 of SLAF.

	 b.	   Directorate of Ground Operations

(1)	 Introduction.	 The Directorate of Ground Operations was reinstated 
on 28th February 2014. The SLAF Regiment, consisting of 29 Wings placed 
under the Directorate of Ground Operations with the aim of preventing any 
external /internal aggression by the enemy and to preserve / secure the SLAF 
air assets and installations vital for operations.

(2)	 Comparison of Actual Performance with Annual Action Plan.

	 The overall budget of Directorate of Ground Operations for the year 
2021 was LKR Mn. 72.08 covering the activities such as purchase of defence 
equipment and defence material, Explosive Ordnance Disposal (EOD) 
equipment, parachute equipment, Regimental Special Force equipment and 
Air Dog medicine equipment.

c.	   Directorate of Aeronautical Engineering

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 The Directorate of Aeronautical Engineering (Dte of AE) is 
responsible for the maintenance of the SLAF aircraft fleet in airworthy 
(FMC) condition through the application of standard engineering 
practices and thus ensuring flight safety. The SLAF inventory consists 
of 106 aircraft of 27 types. These 106 aircraft are further sub divided as 
60 Fixed Wing Aircraft and 46 Helicopters.



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 202114

(b)	 The overall budget of the Directorate of Aeronautical 
Engineering is the largest divisional budget amounted to LKR Mn 
7,408.48. The overall budget of the directorate has been planned to 
carry out tasks which is responsible for such as Aircraft Engine, Gear 
Box, Propeller & Tools, Purchase of Aircraft, Establishment of AOF 
(China), Aircraftmaintenance, Purchase of Aircraft spares etc…

 d.	   Directorate of General Engineering

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 The Directorate of General Engineering has been established to 
administer the General Engineering Trades of the SLAF. It primarily 
provides support facilities for the SLAF’s primary role of flying. The 
Directorate administers ten (10) trades and two (2) major formations 
under its purview.

(b)	 TThe General Engineering Wing (GEW) & the Mechanical 
Transport & Overhaul Wing (MTR&OW) are the two formations. The 
directorate has specialist airmen in ten (10) trades but is served by 
Officers of the Technical Engineering branch who alternate between 
performing General Engineering duties and duties in the field of 
Aeronautical Engineering.

(c)	 The Directorate of General Engineering has projected in its 
Action Plans (AP) based on Vote on Accounts an amount of LKR Mn 
1,235.00 at the beginning of the year 2021 for General Engineering 
activities. Out of these allocations, according to the liquidity availed; 
the directorate has carried out its essential tasks during the year 2021. 

e.	   Directorate of Electronic and Telecommunication Engineering

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 The Directorate of Electronics and Telecommunications 
Engineering (Directorate of E & T E) was established in the SLAF for 
administration of Electronics, Telecommunications and Information 
Technology functions and to provide and maintain efficient Electronics, 
Telecommunications and Information Technology facilities.

(b)	 The initial budget of the Directorate of Electronics and 
Telecommunications Engineering which has been included in 
the Annual Action Plan (AAP) for the year 2021 was LKR Mn. 
1,241.50. The projections have been made for the directorate to
accomplish the targets set for the year in the action plan. In the year 2021 
the directorate has performed in an outstanding manner by implement-
ing successfully most of the projects which were forecasted in the AAP. 
Further, few projects have been started and yet to be completed at the 
end of the year while, less number of projects have not been commenced.
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 f.	   Directorate of Logistics

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 The Directorate of Logistics has been established in the SLAF 
to provide the necessary logistics support to conduct all Air Force 
operations, training, administration and welfare functions efficiently.

(b)	 At the beginning of the year 2021, the Directorate of Logistics 
has projected an amount of LKR Mn. 5,454.00 for its logistic activities. 
Out of the total budget, 92.32% spent to provide the Diets, Fuel, Oil, 
Lubricants and Uniforms. Most of projections have been achieved 
during the year by the directorate.

g.	   Directorate of Administration

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 This directorate is entrusted with all the matters concerned 
with the administration of the Sri Lanka Air Force and also with duties 
pertaining to General Discipline, Officers matters, Airmen/Airwomen 
matters, Pay and allowances, Organizational matters and other 
administration matters.

(b)	 The overall budget of the Directorate	  of Administration for the 
year 2021 was LKR Mn. 31,668.20 as per Annual Action Plan (AAP). 
The budget of the directorate 96.70% has been allocated to the payment 
of salaries, wages and allowances. The directorate has budgeted LKR 
Mn.865.00 for payment of electricity and water bills of the bases and 
stations of the SLAF, which represented 2.73% of the total budget of 
this directorate. The balance 0.56% represents the purchase of capital 
equipment, purchase of stationery, traveling charges and property loan 
interst.

h.	    Directorate of Civil Engineering

(1)	  Introduction.

(a)	 The Directorate of Civil Engineering is established in the 
Sri Lanka Air Force for the formulation of Policy and to perform all 
functions encompassing different fields of Engineering namely Civil, 
Mechanical and Electrical. The directorate is to utilize efficiently the 
approved technical manpower, other material resources and the 
allocated finances to meet all engineering requirements coming under 
the purview of the directorate.
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(b)	 In the Annual Action Plan of SLAF year 2021, the Directorate 
of Civil Engineering has projected an amount of LKR Mn. 853.00 
for its main headings of Civil, Mechanical and Electrical engineering 
activities. This Comprises Purchase of Mechanical & Electrical Goods, 
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance, Hiring of Civil Engineer Machinery, 
Additions and Improvements of all SLAF establishments, Rehabilitation 
of Runways, Maintenance of Machinery, Purchase of Civil Engineering 
Workshop equipment, Repair of Civil Engineering Machinery, Purchase 
of Pumps, Air Conditioners and Generators and Construction of 
Building & Structures. At the end of the year 2021 the directorate has 
executed most of the activities which were projected in the Annual 
Action Plan while some projects have already been implemented and 
in progress. Some of the activities have not been commenced due to 
various reasons.

j.	   Directorate of Training

(1)	 Introduction. 

(a)	 The Directorate of Training has established in the Sri Lanka 
Air Force to formulate training policy, plan and conduct of Initial, 
Basic, Advanced Trade Training, Specialized and Instructor Training, 
Promotion Examinations for Officers and Airmen/Airwomen. This 
Directorate will ensure that high standards are achieved and maintained 
at all SLAF training establishments.

(b)	 The Directorate of Training has projected in the Annual Action 
Plan (AAP) for the year 2021 an amount of LKR Mn 647.06 for training 
and capacity building of personnel within the Sri Lanka Air Force with 
view of enhancement of providing better quality service.

(c)	 SLAF during the year 2021 has conducted both local and 
foreign training courses for various professions of the SLAF such as 
Pilot, Aircraft Engineers, Civil Doctors, Accountants, Auditors and 
Regimental Officers and also the all the tradesmen for the uplift of 
the skills level of the staff and capacity building. The main role of the 
Directorate of Training is to generate skilful military personnel with 
outstanding performance to serve the government. The directorate has 
accomplished most of the projections during the year 2021.
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k.	   Directorate of Health Services

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 As one of the main contributors to the technically intensive 
military force, the Directorate of Health Services (Dte of HS) will 
continue to be one of the key players in maintaining the health of the Sri 
Lanka Air Force. In addition to carrying out its main task of maintaining 
the health in the SLAF, D of HS will have to develop its capabilities to 
handle more in depth patient care activities in our hospitals.

(b)	 According to the Annual Action Plan (AAP) of SLAF in the year 
2021, the overall budget of the Directorate of Health Services is LKR 
Mn. 242.20, which expected to be financed by budgetary allocations of 
year 2021.

l.	   Directorate of Welfare

Introduction.		 The Directorate is responsible to the Commander of the 
Air Force for the welfare of all Officers/Airmen and their families. As such 
the Directorate of Welfare is tasked with the responsibility of establishing and 
administering welfare organization for providing financial and other essential 
welfare facilities to uplift the standard of servicemen and their families. The 
directorate is responsible to ensure rehabilitation and welfare of the DIA 
(Disabled in Action) personal and NOKs of KIA (Killed in Action) personnel.

m.	   Directorate of Provost 

Introduction.		 “SLAF Police is primarily responsible in main-
taining law and order and a high standard of discipline with-
in the organization. Performing ceremonial duties such as VIP Mo-
torcycle Escorts, Honour Guards, Crowd Controlling and Traffic 
Controlling are some of the key roles played on field by Policemen.

n.  	   Directorate of Air Intelligence

Introduction. 	 The Directorate of Air Intelligence was established on 
23rd May 2017 to plan and execute all Intelligence matters in Sri Lanka Air 
Force. The directorate is responsible for the effective and efficient planning 
and execution of Air Maritime Strategic Command Centre (AMSCC), 
Air Intelligence including Air Surveillance, Ground Intelligence, Global 
Intelligence and Cyber Intelligence in the purview of Sri Lanka Air Force.
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p.	   Directorate of Information Technology

Introduction.	 	 The Directorate of Information Technology was 
established in the SLAF as an independent Directorate. The primary role of 
the directorate is to design, develop and maintain all information technology 
(IT) systems and equipment including software systems, networks, hardware, 
data bases, multimedia designing and cyber security in order to achieve 
organizational objectives.

q.	   Directorate of Finance

Introduction.		 The Directorate of Finance manages the financial 
activities of the SLAF in liaison with the treasury. The directorate ensures the 
availability of liquidity for all budgeted expenses and advise in the direction of 
spending.

r.	   Directorate of Civil Administration

Introduction.		 The Directorate of Civil Administration has bounded 
with providing civilian employees to perform variety of services coming 
under different Directorates. It is also responsible to the Commander of the 
Air Force for an efficient administration and to exercise disciplinary control 
over civilian employees. 

s.	   Directorate of Budget

Introduction.		 The Directorate of Budget (Dte of Bgt) is established 
in the SLAF as an independent directorate (Non AFBM). The primary role 
of the Directorate of Budget is to obtain financial resources (provisions) 
to manage the activities of the SLAF and considerably influence respective 
Directors/Command Officers for the optimum utilization of provisions which 
are allocated to them during a financial year in conference to Government 
Financial Regulations.
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t.  	   Directorate of Performing Arts

Introduction.		 The Directorate of Performing Arts was establishment as 
the only of the SLAF to cater the ceremonial and entertainment requirement 
of national interest, organizational interest as well as providing entertainment 
assistants for welfare of serving and retried SLAF personnel and civilians. 
Being one of the most reputed and established performance organization in 
the country, the Directorate of Performing Arts has strengthen the revenue of 
the SLAF as one on the key profit generate of the organization.

u.	   Directorate of Media

Introduction.		 The Sri Lanka Air Force as a Department under the 
Ministry of Defence, is responsible and answerable to the Public of Sri Lanka 
through the Ministry of Defence. However, in the course of its day to day 
operations, it may be necessary for the SLAF to interact directly with the general 
public both in the interest of promoting or preserving the public image of 
the organization or in response to communications initiated by those outside 
the organization. Considering that any and all communication between the 
SLAF and the general public has to be carried out with due cognizance of the 
implications to National Security as well as the due dignity and decorum of 
the Sri Lanka Air Force. It is imperative that the content and tone of all such 
communications are filtered by an authority under the direct purview of the 
Commander of the Air Force.

v.	   Office of Dental Services

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 As an essential preventive and curative health service, dental 
services must be made available to every individual of the SLAF 
conveniently and professionally. The Office of Dental Services is 
continuously improving the quality of dental services while expanding 
the service to all SLAF establishments.

(b)	 According to the Annual Action Plan (AAP) of SLAF in the 
year 2021, the overall budget of the Office of Dental Services was LKR 
Mn. 44.50 and expected to be financed by budgetary allocations for the 
year 2021.
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w.	   Command Recruiting Office

Introduction.		 Recruiting falls as the responsibility of Command Re-
cruiting Officer. The role and the responsibility of the Recruiting Section is 
directed towards fulfilling vacancies available for Officers, Lady Officers, Air-
men and Airwomen in the Sri Lanka Regular and Volunteer Air Force as and 
when authorized by the Commander of the Air Force. This objective is met 
through the publication of Gazette notifications, newspapers/advertisements 
on television and other special recruitment drives.

x.	   Command Flight Safety Inspectorate (CFSI)

(1)	 Introduction.		

(a)	 Sri Lanka Air Force Flight Safety Organization is headed by 
Command Flight Safety Officer (CFSO) who is the head of the Command 
Flight Safety Inspectorate (CFSI) and responsible to Commander 
of Air Force for all functions under purview of CFSI. There are two 
Staff Officers to handle Flying and Engineering aspects of flight safety 
respectively.

(b)	 There are three Chief Flight Safety Inspectors (CFSI) 
representing Flying, Engineering and Medical branches who will liaise 
with CFSO in the formulation of policy, procedures and carryout 
review and other relevant functions of CFSI. Further, there are four 
Flight Safety Inspectors (FSI) representing Fixed Wing, Rotor Wing, Jet 
Aircraft and Air Traffic Control who will function under Chief Flight 
Safety Inspector Flying (CFSI Flying).

y.	   Command Quality Assurance Inspectorate

			     Introduction.		 The Command Quality Assurance Inspectorate (CQAI) 	
			     is established to perform Quality Assurance functions within the SLAF. 		
		    	   CQAI is headed by the Command Quality Assurance Officer (CQAO). He is 	
			    responsible for the operational efficiency of the QAS in the inspectorate to 		
			     the Commander of the Air Force, to whom he has the right of direct access. 

z.	   Command Legal Department

Introduction.		 The Command Legal Department of the SLAF was es-
tablished as an independent component of the SLAF Command structure on 
1st January 2007 with the intention of providing best, efficient, effective and 
accurate legal advisory service or any other legal services to the SLAF inde-
pendently and transparently without being subjected to any influence what-
soever upholding the principle of Rule of Law in accordance with the Consti-
tution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.
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aa.	   Internal Audit Division

Introduction.		 Internal Audit Division (IAD) was established in the 
year 2011 in fulfillment of statutory requirements laid down in Financial 
Regulations of the Government of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri 
Lanka. Accordingly, the IAD is a division directly reporting to the Commander 
of the Air Force and headed by ‘Command Internal Auditor’ subsequently in 
the year 2017, this appointment was renamed as ‘Command Internal Auditor 
(Service)’ due to appointing of civil Government Accountant as Chief Internal 
Auditor (CIA-Civil). Chief Internal Auditor (CIA-Civil) too performing 
Internal Audit duties independently and report to Commander of the Air 
Force.

ab.	 Command Research and Development Cell

		  (1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 The Command Research and Development Cell (CRD 
Cell) is functioning since March 2011 to date. The CRD Cell es-
tablished to conduct and coordinate research and development in 
the areas essential to improve overall efficiency of the Air Force.

(b)	 The Research and Development Wing (RDW) at SLAF Base Kat was 
established during the year 2015 and function under Command Research 
and Development Officer (CRDO). RDW is entrusted to conduct/ facil-
itate the SLAF research studies in liaison with Professionals, Institutions 
and Universities functioning in the fields of Research & Development.

ac.	 Command Welfare Project Unit

(1)	 Introduction.

(a)	 The Command Welfare Project Unit has been established to 
provide all essential commodities and other consumable items at 
concessionary rates for the consumption of members of the Air Force 
as a welfare measure. 

(b)	 The operational functions of Command Welfare Project Unit 
involves with procurement of commodities and consumables from 
outside institutes, storing and distribution of same within the SLAF 
organization across the country where a considerable monitory 
transactions are taken place.
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ad.	   Command Development Projects Unit

Introduction.	The Command Development Projects Unit (CDPU) is estab-
lished under the Command Development Project Officer (CDPO), in order 
to supply fine aggregates for development works initiated by the Government 
and the Sri Lanka Air Force. The CDPO will report directly to the Command-
er of the Air Force. SLAF has been entrusted with the responsibility of acti-
vating quarry projects in selected areas to meet the demand of random rubble 
required for the constructions. In addition to development purposes, this pro-
ject is obliged to provide its products to military institutions for the establish-
ment of military installations.

ae.	   Command Agro Unit

Introduction.	The Command Agro Unit of Sri Lanka Air Force has established 
for the uplift and coordination of Agriculture, Live stock farming and 
commercial ventures in the organization and to produce and provide farm 
products to all service and civil personnel in the Air Force as welfare measures. 

af.	   UN Peace Keeping Missions

(1)	 Introduction.	 Two (02) Sri Lanka Air Force (SLAF) Aviation Contin-
gents have been deployed in UN Peacekeeping Missions at Central African 
Republic (MINUSCA) and UN Peacekeeping Mission South Sudan (UN-
MISS) since 2014 and 2015 respectively. However, UN Peacekeeping Mission 
in South Sudan (UNMISS) was repatriated from 07 August 2021 and UN 
Peacekeeping Missions in Central African Republic (MINUSCA) has been 
deployed up to date.

			
(2)	 Scope

			  (a)	 Troop transport, insertion and extraction
			  (b)	 Air Patrol (with armed troops onboard)
			  (c)	 Combat Search and Rescue (CSAR) (with AH support)
			  (d)	 Search and Rescue (SAR)
			  (e)	 CASEVAC/MEDVAC (with AMET provided from mission)
			  (f)	 Area Surveillance and Reconnaissance
			  (g)	 Observer/Monitor tasks
			  (h)	 Passengers Transport
			  (j)	 VIP Transport
			  (k)	 Operational Logistics Support
			  (l)	 Mail and Payroll Transport
			  (m)	 Emergency Evacuation/ Relocation
			  (n)	 Radio/Video Relay
			  (p)	 Aerial Resupply (air drops)
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2.	 PROGRESS AND THE FUTURE OUTLOOK 

	 2.1	 Progress

a.	 Goal 01	 To uplift and strengthen flying and operational capabilities of the 
Sri Lanka Air Force.

Key Achievements 

(1)	 Purchasing of RADAR spares and Ground to Air Communication Equipment.

(2)	 Acquiring of new RADAR spares and repair of unserviceable RADAR modules.

(3)	 Purchasing of Air Traffic Management System (ATMS) to obtain AASL Air Traffic 
Management (ATM) information from BIA to ADC & CC SLAF Stn Mir and standby ADC & 
CC SLAF Base Katunayake.

(4)	 Acquiring of Qty 2 new Rohini RADAR system is in progress.

(5)	 Facilitated MI-17 aircraft for Seed Bombing Project on 14 Jan 21, 05 Oct 21, 06 Oct 21 
and 23 Nov 21 by utilizing MI-17 helicopter at Kebilittha.

(6)	 Upgrading of GPS 175 System for B-200 aircraft at No 03 Squadron.

(7)	 Upgrading of LYNX 9000D+ TCAS system for AN 32 B aircraft at No 02 Squadron.

(8)	 Upgrading of GTN 750 XI system for Y-12 II aircraft at No 08 Squadron.

(9)	 05 SLAF personnel (3 x Technicians and 2 x Officers) in 2 times attended for AN 32 
aircraft acceptance and ferry flights course in Ukraine.

(10)	 08 SLAF personnel (Technician) in 2 times attended for career course in Pakistan.

(11)	 Upgrading of GTN 625 GPS system for Bell 412 helicopter.

(12)	 Total number of 21 Special Occurrence Reports, 21 Technical Occurrence Reports and 
03 Bird Strike reports have been evaluated. Recommendations were forwarded in order to 
maintain operational capabilities of Air Force.

(13)	 Purchase of quantity 01 AC/DC Rectifier unit for flying formations.

(14)	 Purchase of quantity 03 Bell 212 Jacks for SLAF uses.

(15)	 Purchase of quantity 09 Fire Squib for Bell 212/412 VIP/VVIP helicopters.

(16)	 Purchase of 1400 Ltr Aeroshell Fluid for uplifting Weapon serviceability.

(17)	 Purchase of quantity 3300 ammunition (9mm).

CHAPTER 02
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(18)	 Overhaul of Qty-03 AN-32 aircraft (SCM-863, SCM-860 and SCM-869).

(19)	 Overhaul of Qty-02 Mi 17 helicopters (SMH-4417 and SMH-4418).

b.	 Goal 02	 To develop strategic and tactical aerospace surveillance and 		
	 reconnaissance capabilities over Sri Lankan territory inclusive of the EEZ.

Key Achievements 

(1)	 Acquiring of Qty 2 new Rohini RADAR system is on progress.

(2)	 Conducted joint SAR exercises with SL Navy with deck landings and winch operations. 
SLAF helicopters took part in Colombo Naval Exercise-2021 from 08 - 10 February 2021. 
Further, continuation of joint exercise with SL Navy on maritime SAR has been planned to 
conduct during the year 2022.

(3)	 Proposal for return to service of the Searcher MK II UAV System and upgrade it to 
Searcher MK III UAV System are in progress.

(4)	 Development of indigenous UAV System (Lihiniya UAV System) is in progress.

(5)	 Establishment of real-time data link/communication with AMSCC (Air and Maritime 
Strategic Command Center) which include Air picture of AD RADARs as well as ATCR.

(6)	 Airmax datalink system purchased for R&D project at SLAF Station Katukurunda.

(7)	 Procurement of spares and accessories for Indra MK II Radars and specialized test 
equipment.

c.	 Goal 03	 Establishment of EW arm and introduction of Network Centric 		
	 Warfare.

Key Achievements 

(1)	 SLAF LBAD system equipped with drone jamming equipment to enhance the security 
of VIP & VVIP.

(2)	 Acquisition of portable drone guns and portable drone jammers. (Back pack drone 
jammer batteries and hand held drone gun batteries purchased for uplift and strengthening 
ground defence.)
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d.	 Goal 04	 To provide comprehensive force protection for vital Air assets, 		
	 installations and provide security for VAs and VPs.

Key Achievements

(1)	 Replacing of Fire Control USFM Radars with GIBKA-s system is in progress.

(2)	 Strengthen the LBAD coverage for His Excellency the President by deploying new AD 
points in Colombo and Mirihana.

(3)	 Acquisition of integrated GIBKA-S Fire Control Radar system with IGLA-S missile 
system for Land Based Air Defence is in progress.

(4)	 Acquiring and provisioning of CCTV cameras and related equipment for SLAF 
establishments to enhance the perimeter security. 

e.	 Goal 05	 Improvements in SLAF airfields to acquire redundancy in 		
	 operations during day/night / all weather conditions.

Key Achievements

(1)	 All Aerodrome markings and Helipad markings were standardized according to the 
ICAO regulations. 

(2)	 All Civil Aircraft Operators have been notified through DGCA to educate their fire 
prevention Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to SLAF Fire Fighters at landing locations 
to provide comprehensive fire cover.

(3)	 Upgrading ATC Towers with ICAO Standard instruments such as barometers, Wind 
Speed Indicators and Aerodrome Beacons. 

(4)	 Most of analog ATC instruments were upgraded to digital versions to standardize their 
readings.

(5)	 Proposal has been worked out to upgrade all Airfield in SLAF.

(6)	 Total of 14 annual flight safety surveys have been conducted on Academy/ Bases/ 
Stations including flying formations, in order to minimize the safety issues which effect on 
operational efficiency. Alternative plans such as use of Goose Necks instead of runway/ apron 
lights have been discussed.

(7)	 Further a special survey on Digana helipad was conducted to ascertain its operational 
capabilities and to identify further improvements.

(8)	 Special inspection carried out at Mannar runway to check the suitability for commencing 
air operations.

(9)	 Initiation of reinstallation of existing elephant fence and perimeter fence at Weerawila 
Runway.
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(10)	 Initiated deploying of air rifles as measure of controlling bird strike hazard at airfields.

(11)	 Gathering statistics of bird activities (behaviors) to formulate safe zones for flying 
operations.

(12)	 Initiated to construct new ATC tower at Heavy Transport Hanger for smooth function 
of air operations of SLAF Ratmalana.

(13)	  Special study was initiated in collaboration with R&D Wing and the University of 
Moratuwa to design a suitable Bird Repellant system for SLAF air fields and hangars.

f.	 Goal 06	  Maximum exploitation of cyberspace while ensuring friendly 		
	 forces’ freedom of action in cyberspace and denial adversaries its use/abuse.

Key Achievements 

(1)	 Following cyber security tools were acquired.
(a)	 Meltigo
(b)	 AppSpider
(c)	 Open Text Encase Digital Forensic

(2)	 Following number of officers and airmen were inducted to SLAF cyber operations.
(a)	 02 Officers
(b)	 01 Airman and 01 Airwoman 

(3)	 Following Cyber activities were carried out by SLAF Cyber Operations Centre.

(a)	 Participated for National Hacking Challenge organized by SLCERT 2021 and 
won the 2nd runner-up Counter-attack Operations. 
(b)	 Open Source Intelligence Operations.
(c)	 Defensive Operations.

i.	 Vulnerability assessment report for websites of Western provincial 
council.
ii.	 Information security audit and vulnerability assessment report of lk 
domain registry.
iii.	 Successful prevention and recovery of cyber-attacks carried out by 
LTTE cyber team.
iv.	 Periodical Vulnerability Assessment report for Presidential Secretariat.

vi.	 Vulnerability assessment report of the official website of the Ministry of 
Defence.
vii.	 Vulnerability Assessment report for e-mail server for Presidential 
Secretariat.
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g.	 Goal 07	 To maintain high morale and minimize absenteeism in SLAF 		
	 through implementation of additional welfare measures.

Key Achievements

(1)	 Establishment of COVID-19 treatment centers to enhance capacity and capability to 
manage SLAF COVID-19 patients and their immediate family members.

(2)	 Establishment of COVID-19 ICU with three beds at SLAF Hospital Colombo.

(3)	 Establishment of new COVID-19 HDU (High Dependency Unit) for Hospital SLAF 
Base Katunayake and Hospital Rathmalana and providing required medical equipment.

(4)	 Purchased of medical equipment, Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), disinfection 
and decontamination solutions and medical items for COVID-19 prevention activities.

(5)	 Development of eye theater facilities with equipment (Visual Field Analyzer, High 
Definition Optical Coherence Tomography System) at Hospital SLAF Station Colombo.

(6)	 Upgrading of Sports Medicine Unit at SLAF Hospital Katunayake.

(7)	 Upgrading of existing video endoscopy system at Hospital SLAF Station Colombo.

(8)	 Providing wall mounted oxygen systems, Multipara monitors and Ventilators for 
Upgradation of HDUs of SLAF Hospitals.

(9)	 Purchase of Short Wave Diathermy Machine for Physiotherapy Unit at SLAF Base 
Higurakgoda.

(10)	 Development of Retired Officers/Other ranks ward at SLAF Hospital Katunayake with 
required medical equipment.

(11)	 Purchased of Automated HBA1C Hemoglobin testing analyzer to SLAF Base 
Katunayake.

(12)	 To improve dental services provided for SLAF personnel and their immediate 
family members through continuous improvement of advance dental facilities by improved 
accessibility and introducing advance technology.

(13)	 To develop professional skills of Air Force in par with globally accepted standards.

(14)	 Oral diseases are often hidden and invisible, or they are accepted as an unavoidable 
consequence of life and ageing. However, there is clear evidence that Oral diseases are not 
inevitable, but can be reduced or prevented through simple and effective measures at all stages 
of the course, both at the individual and population levels. Therefore, following programmes 
have been arranged.

(a)	 Annual Dental Screening.
(b)	 Preventive care programme.



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 202128

(c)	 Special Health Education Programmes.
(d)	 Training.
(e)	 Special Registry for personnel/ with oral cancer/OPMDs/high caries risk.
(f)	 Data bases for annual Dental screening, aircrew Dental screening and pre 
mortem data.

h.	 Goal 08	 Optimization of SLAF resources in support of National Interest.

Key Achievements 

(1)	 SLAF was able to earn revenue from the deployment of aviation contingents in UN 
Peace Keeping Missions in South Sudan and Central African Republic.

(2)	 SLAF has logged a total of 21 commercial flights and generated Rs. 14,159,992.37 of 
income through charter flights. 

(3)	 Assisted the government while participating for countering COVID-19 pandemic by 
CBRNE Wing.

(4)	 Procurements projects to enhanced the ground defence capabilities and procurements 
projects to enhanced the Search and Rescue capabilities. These procurement projects were 
completed during the year 2021.

(5)	 Essential strength and equipment have been provided for UN Peace Keeping Mission 
in Central Africa.

j.	 Goal 09	 To review existing training system and procedures of SLAF to 
enhance efficiency and improve professionalism.

Key Achievements

(1)	 Identification of Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) for each and every personnel, 
section, branch, directorate and conduct continuous review of the performance against such 
KPI’s and identification of training needs/training areas to be improved.

(2)	 A Flight Safety awareness workshop has been carried out for NCO’s in order to improve 
the flight safety awareness within the organization.

(3)	 A Crew Recourse Management training has been conducted for aircrew (Officers and 
Airmen) in view of developing and enhancing the CRM of the 7th MINUSCA contingent 
members prior to deploying in Central African Republic.

(4)	 Annual Flight Safety Poster Competition was conducted on March 2021 in order to 
inculcate flight safety culture among the members of SLAF.

(5)	 Knowledge sharing and lesson learnt program was initiated among SLAF personnel 
who are directly involving with flight safety aspects by distributing the videos and articles of 
past aircraft accident investigation reports to evaluate the lessons which can be learnt out of it.
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k.	 Goal 10	  Right size the force structure of SLAF, revisioning Recruitment plan 
and induction of new technologies.

Key Achievements

	 254 numbers of Officers and 1,324 numbers of other rankers were recruited in the year 
2021.

l.	 Goal 11	 To enhanced the situation awareness and operational efficiency of 
SLAF through cutting edge ICT technologies.

Key Achievements

(1)	 Research project was initiated to develop anomaly identification and detection system 
and proposal was submitted to Centre for Research and Development at Ministry of Defence. 
The project was approved by the senate to progress.

(2)	 Project was initiated to design and develop indigenous Command and Control Centre 
for AFHQ at DHQC Akuregoda. Initial proposal was approved and development process 
started at No 01 ITW Ratmalana.

(3)	 Installation of 2 KVA online UPS with 3 hours battery backup for SLAF repeater 
stations in order to enhance the high availability of the SLAF Data Network.

(4)	 New fiber optic cable laying from SLAF Base Katunayake to SLAF Station Bandaranayake 
International Airport to enhance the data and voice communication infrastructure.

(5)	 Installation of lightening protection system to ADC&CC SLAF Station Mirigama.
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Table - 2

2.1.1	 Summary of Performance of Sri Lanka Air Force in the year 2021
�

a.	 Directorate of Air Operation 

(1)	 During the year 2021, the SLAF has operated its diverse fleet of aircraft to cater 
VVIP/VIP transportation, transport of troops/passengers and cargo, Air Surveillance, 
commercial domestic air transportation, obligatory to the nation by its only military 
air arms of the country. Nevertheless, close interaction provision of assistance to the 
sister services (SL Army, SL Navy, and Police) in terms of Air Power had been equally 
important among above task.

(2)	 A total number of 10,926.48 flying hours have been flown during the year 2021 
under the following major categories.

S/No Type of Operations No of Hours
01 VVIP 221.05
02 VIP 131.50
03 Operations 3,969.50
04 Air Tests 748.27
05 Training 5,757.01
06 Commercial 37.50
07 Overseas Flight 67.15
08 Disaster Relief Operations 3.30

Total 10,926.48

(3)	 The air travelled passenger count	  - 	 113

           Figure - 1
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Type of 
Operation

Year
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Operations 6,961.93 - 4,448.40 3,793.25 3,337.85 3,969.50
Joint 
Operations - - 112.20 264.45 - -

Operations 
Foreign - - 2,077.55 2,165.13 2341.64 -

Training 6,588.00 5,875.38 6,412.19 7,890.14 6868.40 5,757.01
VVIP - 601.30 618.15 641.50 329.85 221.05
VIP - 281.35 220.15 153.05 84.3 131.50
Commercial 396.20 278.35 117.50 235.00 35.80 37.50
Overseas - - 20.00 - 64.25 67.15
Others - 5,685.50 617.40 86.05 - 751.57
Total 13,946.13 12,721.88 14,645.14 15,229.37 13,062.09 10,926.48

(4)	 Comparison of flying hours for the last six (6) years is shown below.

Table - 3

Figure - 2
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(5)	 Actual Performance against the Annual Action Plan.

(6)	 Transfer to Consolidated Fund Charter flight and Domestic ticke sales Income 
during the Year 2021 as follows.

Table - 4

S/No Item Amount
(LKR Mn)

1 Wind Speed Indicator (Ea-01) 1.13
2 Digital Barometer (Ea-03) 1.93
3 Aerodrome Beacon (Ea-02) 1.93
4 Thermometers (Ea-10) 0.14
5 Wall Clock (Ea-20) 0.14
6 Fire suit (Ea-30) 5.967
7 Fire Extinguishers (Ea-123) 1.5
8 Firefighting small gears (Ea-03) 

Delivery Hose (Ea-10)
0.95

9 BA Sets (Ea-05) 0.691

Charter flight income transfer 
to consolidated fund 

(LKR Mn.)

Domestic Sale income transfer 
to consolidated fund

(LKR Mn.)

10.10 0.20

Table - 5

Figure - 3
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b.	 Directorate of Ground Operations

(1)	 Actual Performance against the Annual Action Plan for the year 2021

Proposed Activities Budget 
Allocation
(LKR Mn)

Financial 
Performance

(LKR Mn)

Physical 
Level of 

Completion

Purchase of Defence 
Consumable items and Air 
Dogs Equipment

37.78 21.96 58.12 %

RPC/SVP (Defence 
Consumable items, Horse 
and Air Dogs Items)

18.51 13.40 72.39 %

Maintenance of Defence, 
EOD and Para Equipment

5.0 1.24 24.8 %

Repair of Combat 
Equipment

2.4 0.373 15.54 %

Purchase of Defence, EOD, 
Para, DART and RSF 
Equipment

35.0 20.08 57.37 %

Purchase of Disaster 
Management Equipment

50.0 12.56 25.12%

Table - 6

(2)	 HADR operations were conducted during the year 2021

(a)	 Disinfection Ops undertaken by the SLAF CBRNE Wing.

		  Details of Disinfection Ops – Aircraft

Location Sri Lankan 
Air Lines 
Aircraft

Other Air 
Lines

Aircraft

Total

BIA 3,763 270 4,033
MRIA - 03 03
Total 3,763 273 4,036

 Table - 7



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 202134

Details of Disinfection Ops – Passengers

(b)	 Other Disinfection Ops.

Location Passengers Total

Arrival Transit Departure

BIA 80,469 14,385 4,536 99,390

MRIA 16,223 - 3,821 20,044

Total 96,692 14,385 8,357 119,434

 Table - 8

Disinfection 
Locations

Date

Rupavahini 
Corporation

05.02.2021/ 22.05.2021/ 28.05.2021/ 
13.06.2021

Galle face area 03.03.2021 to 05.03.2021

Kanugahawewa 
Housing Project

03.04.2021

St Sebastian church 
Kaluthara

22.08.2021

Asela perahara Kandy 13.08.2021 to 23.08.2021

BIA Conduct of disinfection operation at 
BIA premises upon the request

Neth FM Broadcast 
Corporation

Conduct of disinfection operation at 
Neth FM Broadcast Corporation

Race course ground, 
Colombo 07

08,09,10,13 and 16 Nov 2021

Table - 9
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(c)	 Beach Cleaning Operations Conducted due to Fire Onboard 
Container Ship MV-EXPRESS Pearl on 20 May 21, (9.5 Nautical miles 
Northwest of Colombo).

Duration Total 
Manpower 
Employed

Type of Vehicle Area Demarcated 
for SLAF

Buses Light Vehicles

27.05.2021
 to 

19.08.2021

4,549 92 68 Dungalpitiya, 
Thalahena, 
Seththapaduwa, 
Kepungoda
Dehiwala, Mount 
Lavenia, Angulana 
Beach, Moratuwella, 
Galle face

Table - 10

c.	 Directorate of Aeronautical Engineering

(1)	 Purchase of Aircraft Spares. A total of LKR Mn. 687.42 has been 
incurred for aircraft maintenance in the year 2021. This includes Purchase 
of aircraft spares and aircraft consumable of LKR Mn. 458.07 and Purchase 
Engine & Propellers and aircraft tools and test equipment of LKR Mn. 229.35.

(2)	 Repair and Overhaul. A total of LKR Mn. 3,830.82 has been spent for aircraft 
repair and servicing in the year 2021. This includes overhaul of aircraft major 
aggregates of LKR Mn. 2,194.24 and calibration and repair of aircraft tools and 
Kfir fighter aircraft upgrade and return to Service amount to LKR Mn. 1,636.58.

(3)	 No 1 FTW Developments in aircraft fleet and aviation related activities – 2021.
This Squadron has carried out various types of servicing on PT-6, Cessna-150 and K-8 
aircraft during the year 2021. Wing has been engaged with 25 Nos of 25 hrs servicing, 
03 Nos of 100 hrs servicing, two (02) Nos of 300 Hrs servicing and tree (03) Nos of 400 
hrs servicing. Further, it has carried out twenty-seven (27) Nos of 50 hrs servicing, 24 
nos of 100 hrs servicing and ten (10) Nos of 200 hrs servicing. In addition to the above, 
in addition nineteen (19) Nos of servicing have been carried out for K-8 aircraft. This 
includes, six (06) Nos of 50 hrs servicing, nine (09) Nos of 125 hrs servicing, one 
(01) Nos of 150 hrs servicing, two (2) Nos of 250 hrs and one (01) Nos of 500 hrs.
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S/No Month Activities Monetary value

1 Feb Qty 05 Cessna-150 aircraft were flown for 
Independence Day formation fly-past from 
SLAF Base Kat.

-

2 Qty 02 PT-6 aircraft were attached out for 
Independence Day formation fly-past from 
SLAF Base Kat.

-

3 Qty 03 K-8 aircraft were flown for 
Independence Day formation fly-past from 
SLAF Base Kat.

-

4 Mar Qty 05 Cessna-150 aircraft were flown for 
70th anniversary formation fly-past from 
SLAF Base Rma.

-

5 Apr Qty-08 HUOSAI-6A Engines hand over to 
ASD for overseas dispatch (For repair and 
overhaul)

USD
87,000.00 x 08

6 Aug Qty-06 HUOSAI-6A Engines Repair and 
Overhaul progress

-

7 Aug M-14P engine Repair and Overhaul 
progress

-

8 Oct SJT-740, SJT-744 and SJT-746 aircraft life 
extension program carried out by Chinese 
crew

-

9 Nov SJT-1612 & SJT-1613 K-8 aircraft corrosion 
inspection carried out by Chinese crew

-

10 Dec SBT-194 aircraft rectification carried out by 
Chinese crew

-

(a)	 Qty 05 Cessna-150 aircraft were 
flown for Independence Day Formation 
Fly-Past from SLAF Base Katunayake.

(b)	 Qty 05 Cessna-150 aircraft were 
flown for 70th Anniversary Formation 
Fly-Past from SLAF Base Ratmalana.

Table - 11
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(c)	 SJT-1612 & SJT-1613 K-8 Aircraft Corrosion Inspection carried 
out by Chinese crew.

(d)	 SJT-740, SJT-744 and SJT-746 
Aircraft Life Extension program carried 
out by Chinese crew.

(e)	 SBT-194 Aircraft rectification 
carried out by Chinese crew.

(4)	 No 2 Squadron - Developments in aircraft fleet and aviation related 
activities. 	 This Squadron has carried out various types of servicing on AN-
32B Aircraft and C-130 Aircraft. Squadron has been engaged with 03 Nos of 300 
Hrs Servicing and also Major Aircraft Repairs have completed on AN32B aircraft.

(a)	 Recovery process of SCH 881 C-130 Aircraft.

(b)	 Online Evaluation with Pakistan AF PDM Team.
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(c)	 Major Overhaul and Life Extension Servicing on QTY-03 AN 
32B Aircraft.

(d)	 300 Hrs Servicing in AN 32B Aircraft.

(e)	 AN 32B Aircraft Modification. (Installation of Passenger Seats)

(5)	 No 3 Maritime Squadron - Developments in aircraft and aviation related 
projects/ activities. 	 The Squadron following maintenance work has been 
performed on 07 days Servicing, 200 Hrs Servicing, 400 Hrs Servicing, 600 Hrs 
Servicing, Corrosion Control and also Major Aircraft Repairs have completed on 
B-200 aircrafts during the year 2021.

(a)	 Re-fabrication of SMR-843 B200 
Aircraft seats.

(b)	 Prepared a Lap Top table to facilitate 
for automatic identification system of SMR-
843B 200 Aircraft.
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(6)	 No. 04 VIP/VVIP Helicopter Squadron SLAF Ratmalana. During the year 
2021, No. 04 VIP/VVIP Helicopter Squadron SLAF Rathmalana has carried out 143 
Nos of aircraft servicing of Bell 412/412EP, Bell 212 and MI-171E helicopters and 
comprises 25 hrs servicing, 50 hrs servicing, 100 hrs servicing, 300 hrs servicing, 600 
hrs servicing and 03 months corrosion.

(7)	 No 05 Fighter Squadron Development in aircraft and aviation related 
activities. 	 During the year 2021, No. 05 Squadron SLAF Katunayake has carried 
out 138 Nos of aircraft servicing of F-7, FT-7BS and F-7GS aircraft. This comprises 
Eng 25 hrs servicing, Eng 50 hrs servicing, Eng 100 Hrs servicing, Airframe/E & I 
and Radio 50 hrs servicing, Airframe/E & I and Radio 100 hrs servicing, Airframe/E 
& I and radio 200 hrs servicing, Airframe/E & I and radio 400 Hrs servicing, 07 day 
non flying servicing, 10 day non flying servicing, 30 day non flying servicing, 06 
months servicing and corrosion control service.

(a)	 Performing Air Defence standby 
duties 24x7.

(b)	 Participation for the 73rd  
Independence Day Fly Past with 02 F7-
GS & 01 F7-BS Aircrafts on 4th  February 
2021.

(c)	 Fly past and receiving of 
Squadron Colours.

(d)	 Participation for the 70th Air Force Day fly past with 02 F7-GS & 
01 F7-BS Aircraft on 2nd March 2021.
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(e)	 Implementation of ASR alarm system to communicate Scramble 
alerts.

(f)	 Completed Research and Development Projects of Ground 
Power Unit & Engine Starting System Component Tester.

(g)	 Construction of new paint booth for supporting of Squadron 
Major servicing.

(h)	 Restructuring of servicing hangar layout cater currant demand.

(8)	 No 06 Squadron Development in aircraft and aviation related activities. 	
During the year 2021, No. 06 Helicopter Squadron SLAF Anuradhapura has carried 
out 85 Nos of aircraft servicing of MI-17 helicopters. This comprises of 25 hrs 
inspection, 50 hrs inspection, 50 Hrs servicing, 100 hrs servicing, 200 hrs servicing, 
300 hrs servicing and 500 hrs servicing, 30 Days Storage Servicing, 03 Months Storage 
Servicing and 06 Months Storage Servicing.
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(a)	 SMH-4418 MI-17SH Helicopter was reassembled after its 1st major 
overhaul.

(b)	 Recovery of SMH-4424 MI-171E Helicopter.

(c)	 SMH-598 Helicopter was recovered After the Emergency Landing at 
Ampara.

(d)	 Helicopters load prior to departure to Sri Lanka from UNMISS.

(e)	 Helicopter Rotation from UN Mission UNMISS.
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(f)	 Build up of SMH-595 and SMH-599 Helicopters.

(g)	 Seeds bombing operation from SMH-598 Helicopter at Ampara.

(h)	 Repaired and changed componets of the SMH-4418 Helicopter.

(j)	 Repaired and changed componets of the SMH-4418 Helicopter.

(k)	 Structure repair of SMH-4418 Helicopter.
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(l)	 Manufacturing of a Test Bench for MI-17 Helicopter Oil Coolers.

(9)	 No 07 Squadron - Development in aircraft and aviation related activities. 
During the year 2021, No. 07 Helicopter’s squadron SLAF Hingurakgoda has 
carried out 158 Nos of aircraft servicing of Bell 206 & Bell 212 helicopters. This 
comprises 03 months corrosion control, 25 hrs servicing, 50 hrs servicing, 100 hrs 
servicing, 300 hrs servicing, 600 hrs servicing and 1000 hrs servicing.

(10)	 No 8 Squadron - Developments in aircraft and aviation related projects/ 
activities 	 During the year 2021, No. 08 Light Transport Squadron SLAF 
Rathmalana has carried out 334 Nos of aircraft servicing of Y-12II & Y-12 IV and 
Beech King aircraft. This comprises 07 Days servicing, 100 hrs servicing, 200 hrs 
servicing, 400 hrs servicing, 1200 hrs servicing, corrosion control and phase III 
and IV inspection.

(a)	 SCL-854 Y-12 II Aircraft 
modified as an Air Ambulance.

(b)	 SCL-854 Y-12 II Aircraft roof 
upholstery re-fabrication.

(c)	 Re-painting of SMR-2311 B-200 
Beech King VIP Aircraft.

(11)	 No. 09 Attack Helicopter Squadron SLAF Base Hingurakgoda. 	
During the year 2021, No. 09 Attack Helicopter Squadron SLAF Hingurakgoda 
has carried out 239 Nos of aircraft servicing of Mi-24, Mi-35, Mi-171E, Mi-171 
and Mi – 171SH (SMH-4421) helicopters. This comprises 25 hrs servicing, 50 
hrs servicing, 100 hrs servicing, 300 hrs servicing, 2000 hrs servicing, storage 
servicing, 10 days, 01 month, 03 months, 06 months and annual.
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(12)	 No.10 Fighter Squadron SLAF Base Katunayaka. 	 During the year 2021, 
No.10 Fighter Squadron SLAF Base Katunayaka has carried out upgrading possess 
on progress of Kfir aircraft.

(a)	 Shipment of Qty 03 J79-J1EQD Engines and Qty 04 Tail Pipes to M/S 
IAI Ltd.

(b)	 Disassembly of major parts and shipment to M/S IAI Ltd for repair 
and overhaul.

(c)	 External paint removal, NDT and protective painting. 

(d)	 Disassembly of major parts.

(13)	 No. 111 UAV Squadron SLAF Base Vauniya. 	No. 111 UAV Squadron has 
carried out maintenance activities of Searcher MK II UAV and Lihiniya MK I 
throughout the year 2021. This includes servicing of six (6) weeks UAV preservation 
and 6 month engine preservation.

(14)	 No 61 Flight - Development in aircraft and aviation related activities of SLAF 
Rathmalana. 	 During the year 2021, No. 61 Flight SLAF Ratmalana has carried out 
59 Nos of aircraft servicing of MI-171 helicopters. This comprises 25 hrs inspection, 
50 hrs inspection, 100 hrs servicing and 300 hrs servicing.
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(a)	 Participation for the 73rd Independence Day fly past.

(b)	 Participation for the 70th Air Force Day fly past.

(c)	 Construction of a separate ablution facility and an oil stores for the 
hangar usage.

(d)	 Establishing a separate accommodation area including an ablution 
facility for the technicians by using the containers received from repatriated 
UN Mission.

(e)	 Seed Bombing operation.

(f)	 Modification of No 61 Flight ASR table.
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(15)	 No. 62 Flight at UN Mission Central Africa. During the year 2021, No. 62 
Flight at UN Mission Central Africa has carried out 52 Nos of aircraft servicing 
of MI-17 helicopters. This comprises 25 hrs inspection, 50 hrs servicing, 100 hrs 
servicing, 200 hrs servicing and 300 hrs servicing.

(16)	 Heritours SLAF Base Rathmalana. During the year 2021, Helitours SLAF 
Rathmalana has carried out 125 Nos of aircraft servicing of MA-60. This comprises 
01 months servicing, 03 months servicing, 06 months servicing, 12 months 
servicing, 24 months servicing, 60 months servicing, 120 months servicing and 
weekly servicing.

(17)	 AEW - Development in aircraft and aviation related activities.

(a)	 Rotor Bay. 	 Total Nos of 30 jobs were carried out by Rotor Bay in 
respect of Bell 212, Bell 412, Bell 206 and MI 17 helicopters during the year 
2021 consuming 975 man hours and it includes jobs related to main Rotor 
Blades and Tail Rotor Blades.

R & D Project
01 Outboard Abrasion Strip Trim Repair of Bell 412 Main Rotor 

Blade A-4608 and A-4650.
•	 Primary objective of this R&D project is to repair the 
cracks on outboard abrasion strips of Bell 412 MRBs with the 
capabilities and facilities available at the AEW Rotor Bay.

•	 To enhance the present capabilities of repairing of 
Bell 412 MRBs.

These abrasion strips are bonded by adhesives and observation 
of cracks in the inboard abrasion strip has become a common 
observation in the SLAF Bell 412 MRB inventory. This 
repair can be performed by trimming the damaged abrasion 
strip from the blade. However, the repairs on the outboard 
abrasion strips are not authorized by the OEM to perform at 
bay facility and the information has been gathered during the 
maintenance of MRBs.

Table - 12
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(b)	 Safety Bay. 	 Total Nos of 2,417 jobs were carried out by Safety 
Equipment Bay in respect of Life jacket, Life Raft, Parachute, Survival Pack, 
Fire Bottle, Safety harness, G Suit and Flotation of during the year 2021 
consuming 3,634 man hours. This includes Aircrew Life Jackets, Passenger 
life jacket, Multi Seater life raft and Anti G suit.

i.	 Install facilities of new EPAS 
system in the safety equipment bay.

ii.	 Manufacturing of new passenger 
life jacket storage rack.

(c)	 Engine Bay. 	 Total Nos of 243 jobs were completed by Engine 
Bay in respect of Bell 212/412, Y-12, B-200, Bell 206, MI-17, Kfir and 
miscellaneous jobs during the year 2021. This includes PT6-3B types engine 
jobs, PT6-3D types engine jobs, PT6A-27 types engine jobs, PT6A-42 types 
engine jobs and J79 J1E engine, etc… consuming 1,761.50 man hours.

i.	 Build a new PT6T series engine maintenance cart.

ii.	 Convert de humidity bay tube light system to LED panel 
lights.
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(d)	 Instrument Bay. 	 Total nos of 450 jobs were carried out by 
Instrument Bay in respect of Bell 412, Bell 212, Bell 206, Y 12, BEECHKING, 
AN-32B, K-8, MI 17, PT-6, F-7, Kfir, Cessna 150 and miscellaneous jobs on 
all aircraft during the year 2021 consuming 1,713 man hours. This includes 
jobs related to air speed indicator, aircraft clock and aircraft weight and 
balance. The pictures of purchase of a new weighing tester as follows.

(e)	 Composite Bay. 	 Total nos of 68 panel repair jobs were 
completed by Composite Bay during the year 2021 consuming 679 man 
hours. The pictures of Fabrication of Bell 212/412 Glare Shield Assy (204-
072-023-021) as follows.

(f)	 Electrical Bay. 	Total no of 66 tasks were carried out by Electrical 
Bay in respect of aircraft electrical equipment and GPU during the year 
2021 consuming 2,751 man hours. This includes Ni-Cd Battery charger, 
search light and Trisection GPU. The pictures of High test benches LED 
Illumination System.

(g)	 Aircraft Repair and Salvage Section. 	 Total Nos of 267 structural 
and panel repairs were completed by Aircraft Repair & Salvage Section in 
respect of Bell- 212, Bell- 412, AN- 32B, Y-12, PT-6, MI-17, K-8, F-7, C-130, 
Cessna-150, Bell-206, MA-60 and B200 during the year 2021 consuming 
8,161 man hours.

Manufacturing of new rivet set holder.
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(h)	 Special Project. 	 During the year 2021, Aircraft Engineering 
Wing has carried out various repair and servicing in house consuming 
21,000 man hours.

i.	 Wi-Fi Connection & New Network Switch.

ii.	 Portable Computer.

iii.	 Wire Roll Holding Rack.

iv.	 Pressure Pot.

(j)	 Standard Room. Total Nos of 804 jobs were carried out by Standard 
Room in respect of all aircraft during the year 2021. consuming 1,841 
man hours. This includes job of Wire –Ropes Sling/Synthetic web sling 
inspection, proof load test, Proof load testing of over head gantry cranes, 
Torque wrench calibration, Pressure gauge calibration, Calipers and 
micrometers, Dial indicator and spring balancers/ dynamometers/ tension 
meters.
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(k)	 Non Destructive Test LAB.	 Total no of 2,045 jobs were carried out 
by Non Destructive Test LAB in respect of all aircraft during the year 2021. 
Consuming 3,202 man hours. This including jobs Eddy current test, Magnetic 
Particle Test, Ultra sonic test, Liquid penetrate test, X-Ray test and visual test.

(l)	 Component, Wheel & Brake Unit Bay Total Nos of 242 jobs were 
carried out by Component, Wheel & Brake Unit Bay in respect of Bell 412/212, 
Bell 206, F-7, MI-17, AN-32 aircraft during the year 2021 consuming 4,489 
man hours. This includes jobs Bell 212 Tail Rotor Hub, Servo actuator, Bell 
212 Main Rotor Drive Shaft, Pylon mount, Expandable bolt, Master cylinder, 
Vertical mount, Flexible line and Outer cover change.

(18)	 AFM - Development in aircraft and aviation related activities. 	 During 
the year 2021 Air Force Museum has carried out various types of repair. This includes 
jobs of Re-fabrication and painting of G-47 Bell Helicopter, Repair and painting of 
Sky Master Aircraft, Repairing and painting of AN-32 B Aircraft, Repairing and 
painting of Jet Ranger, Repair and painting of Dove Aircraft, Painting of Crashed Jet 
Provost Aircraft, Repairing and painting of Blue Horizon UAV with Mount, Repair 
and painting of MIG-15, Repair and painting of MIG-17 and Repair and painting of 
Dakota Aircraft.

(a)	 Re-fabrication and painting of G-47 Bell Helicopter.

(b)	 Repairing and painting of Blue Horizon UAV with mount.

(c)	 Repairing and painting of AN-32 B Aircraft and Jet Ranger.
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(d)	 Painting of crashed Jet Provost Aircraft.

(e)	 Repair and painting of Sky Master 
Aircraft.

(19)	 AOW - Development in aircraft and aviation related activities.

(a)	 Overhaul of PT-6 Aircraft.

(b)	 Overhaul of Y-12 Aircraft.

(c)	 Overhaul of F-7 Aircraft.

(d)	 Overhaul of K-8 Aircraft.
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(20)	 ASW -Development in aircraft components and aviation related activities.

(a)	 Propeller Shop	 Total Nos of 02 jobs were completed by Propeller 
Shop during the year 2021 in respect C-150 Aircrafts. This includes 
Overhaul.

(b)	 Engine Shop 	 Total Nos of 07 jobs were completed by Engine Shop 
during the year 2021 in respect of C-150 Aircrafts. This includes Engine 
overhaul and Minor jobs.

(c)	 Component Shop	 Total Nos of 47 jobs were carried out by 
Component Shop in respect of Y-12II/IV, B-200, AN-32B, C-150, K-8 and 
PT-06 Aircrafts. This includes Repair, Overhaul, Inspection and 400 Hrs 
Servicing.

(d)	 Electrical & Instrument Shop 	Total Nos of 89 jobs were carried out 
by Component Shop in respect of PT-06, C-150, Bell-206, PT-03, K-8, Y-12, 
B-200, MI-17, Bell-212 and Bell-412 Aircrafts. This includes Repair and 
Overhaul.

(21)	 TTS - Development in training and aviation related activities.

(a)	 Aero E & I Bay.

(b)	 Airframe Bay.
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(22)	 UAV R&D Centre Katukurunda - Development in aircraft and 
aviation related activities. 	 During the year 2021, UAV R&D Centre SLAF 
Katukurunda has carried out 03 Nos of aircraft servicing of STR-304 and STR-
305. This comprises 10 hrs servicing and 25 hrs servicing.

(a)	 EOD Robot 	 A prototype has been 
completed for the EOD disposal robot and at 
its final stage of optimizing the accessories and 
functionality.

 (b)	 Chara 	A small scale hand launch with a conventional tail that is 
designed to easily deploy with minimum of personnel and resources.

  

(c)	 Armed UAVS  Remote triggering 
mechanism for aerial firing using Lihiniya UAVs 
has been introduced.

 (d)	 Disaster Relief Mechanism 	  A mechanism to drop/ hold disaster 
relief equipment has been designed and at its in design validation phase.

  
d.	 Directorate of General Engineering

(1)	 The Directorate of General Engineering has projected in its Annual Action 
Plan an amount of LKR Mn 1,235.00 at the beginning of the year 2021 for General 
Engineering activities. Out of these allocations, according to the liquidity availed; 
the Directorate has carried out its essential tasks during the year 2021. 

(c)	 Safety Equipment Bay.
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	 (2)	 Expenditure for General Engineering activities year 2021.

	 Total expenditure on General Engineering activities during the year 2021 
was LKR Mn. 1,281.06. This includes,

	(a)	 LKR Mn. 1,067.19 for the cost of General engineering works. 

	(b)	 LKR Mn. 59.36 for the Purchase of General Engineering workshop 
equipment and photographic equipment.

	(c)	 LKR Mn. 154.51 for other suppliers (RPC/SVP and Custom charges).

(3)	 Painting details of Aircraft during the year 2021, Directorate has engaged 
with painting of aircrafts were successfully completed. Aircraft (i.e. SMR 843) at No 
03 Squadron have made paint touchups during the year 2021.

(4)	 Aircraft (i.e. SUH 522, SUH 524, SUH 525, SUH 527, SUH 528, SUH 529 
and SUH 530) at No 04 Squadron have made paint touchups and full paint during 
the year 2021.

(5)	 Aircraft (i.e. SFT-703, SFI-705, SFI-780 and SFI-781) at No 05 Squadron 
have made full painting of main landing gears and Nose landing gear and aircraft 
skin touchup during the year 2021.

(6)	 Aircraft (i.e. SMH-595, SMH-598, SMH-599, SMH-4418, SMH-4424, and 
SMH-4426, All ground equipment and vehicle) at No 06 Squadron have made paint 
touchups and paint during the year 2021.

(7)	 Aircraft (i.e. SCL-852, SCL-853, SCL-854, SCL-3124, SMR-2311and SCL-
3125) at No 08 Squadron have made paint touchups and full paint during the year 
2021.

(8)	 Aircraft (i.e. SFM-718, SFT-710, SFM-714 and SFM-725) at No 10 Squadron 
have made aircraft paint removing, surface treatments and primer painting activities 
were completed during the year 2021.

(9)	 Aircraft (i.e. SBT-150, SBT-151, SBT-152, SBT-153, SBT-154, SBT-155, 
SBT-196, SJT-740, SJT-744, SJT-746 and SJT-1612) at No 01 FTW have made paint 
touchups and full paint during the year 2021.

(10)	 Aircraft (i.e. SHT-522 and SHT -563) at AEW have made all engine cowling 
primer paint and full paint during the year 2021.

(11)	 Replica aircraft and UAV cooling cart at No 111 UAV Squadron have made 
fully paint during the year 2021.
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	 (12)	 Capacity development of the staff in Directorate of General Engineering. 

S 
No.

Name of the Program No. of 
staff 

trained

Nature 
of the 

Program

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
Foreign Training

1 No 1808 Weapon Aero 
Apprentices Course at SOA, PAF 
in Pakistan

1 Foreign Trade 
knowledge/ 
competency

Specialized Training
1 Certificate in Training and Human 

Talent Development - SLITAD, No 
4-1/1, Narahenpita Road, Nawala

5 Local 
(outside)

Trade 
knowledge/ 
competency

2 Engine Tune up Course - AETI – 
Orugodawatta

10 Local 
(outside)

-Do-

3 Auto CAD (2D & 3D) -design 
centre at GEW SLAF Base Kat

4 Local 
(outside)

-Do-

4 Electrical and Electronic Repairs 
of PCB for Gen Mech Tradesmen

7 Local 
(outside)

-Do-

5 Method of Instruction Course 10 Local (In-
house)

Instructional 
capability

6 Disaster Management and First 
Response Basic Course

4 Local (In-
house)

How to 
response in 
disaster

7 Sinhala and English Medium 
NCO Mgt Course

26 Local (In-
house)

Administrative 
and 
managerial

8 Type training course – Aircraft 
and tractor with trailer towing 
course for technical tradesmen at 
no.2 Sqn and No.5 Sqn Kat

24 Local (In-
house)

Aircraft towing

9 Quality Assurance Service 
Training Programme

10 Local (In-
house)

Quality 
concepts

Advanced Trade Training

1 Armament Advance Course 
(2021/01)

15 Local (In-
house)

Trade 
knowledge/ 
competency

2 Police Advanced Course (Driving) 22 Local (In-
house)

-Do-

3 OMT Advanced trade course (29 
Mar 21 to 25 Sep 21)

28 Local (In-
house)

-Do-

4 Surface Tech Advanced Course 05 Local (In-
house)

-Do-
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5 Tech Wood Advanced Course 07 Local (In-
house)

-Do-

6 Gen Mech Advanced Course 08 Local (In-
house)

-Do-

Basic Trade Training
1 No 169 Intake MTS&O Basic Course 01 Local 

(In-house)
Trade 
knowledge/ 
competency

2 No 169 Intake Air Photo Basic Course 02 Local 
(In-house)

-Do-

3 No 169 Intake Tech Wood Basic Course 01 Local 
(In-house)

-Do-

4 No 169 Intake AC Welder Basic Course 03 Local 
(In-house)

-Do-

5 Surface Tech Basic Course (1/2020) 02 Local 
(In-house)

-Do-

6 No I69 Intake CS&SMW Basic Course 04 Local 
(In-house)

-Do-

7 No.132-B Volunteer Airmen Intake 
OMT Basic Special Trade Course 
(01/2021) at SLAF RTS Vanni, SLAF 
Base Kat and SLAF Base Hingurakgoda

198 Local 
(In-house)

-Do-

8 No 169 B Intake MTM Basic Course 
(01/2020)

05 Local 
(In-house)

-Do-

Table - 13
	 (13)	 Major jobs carried out by GEW SLAF Base Anuradhapura in the year 2021 	
	 are as follows.

(a)	 F-4426 Jobs

S/ 
No

Section Completed F-4426

1 Air Photo 147
2 A/C Welding 83
3 MTS & O 18
4 CS & SMW 15
5 Surface Tech 115
6 Tech Wood 73

Total 451
 Table - 14



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 202157

(b)	 F-06 Jobs. A total of LKR Mn. 2.48 has been incurred for General 
Engineering works of SLAF Base Anuradhapura in the year 2021. This 
includes tinkering and painting, manufacturing of canopy caver, repair 
of combat helmets, repair of writing tables, manufacture of loose covers, 
repainting of display aircraft, repainting of weapons, manufacture 
standard Aerodrome Sign Boards, repair rexine chairs, repairing of Seat, 
manufacturing of partition and manufacturing of tool cart.

(c)	 R & D Projects

S/ 
No

Description Description

1 Paper Die Cutting Machine  Handed over to R&D Wing 
SLAF Base Katunayaka

2 Hydraulic Working/Servicing 
Ladder

Testing is on progress

3 Tool sharping machine Functioning at GEW SLAF 
Base Anuradhapura

4 Coir Mattress manufacturing 
facility –Latex Spray and 
Dryer Machine

Testing is on progress

5 Coconut Husk Chipping 
Machine

Manufacturing is on 
progress

Table - 15

(d)	 Completed Special Projects.

S/ No Description Approximate 
Material cost

Remarks

1 Manufacturing of Qty 400 
Combat Large Pack-project 
01

Rs 800,000.00 Completed

2 Manufacturing of Qty 400 
Combat Large Pack-project 
02

Rs 800,000.00 Completed

Table - 16

(e)	 Rs. 561,098.00 worth of capital assets have been acquired during the 
year 2021.

(f)	 Rs. 198,455.00 worth of outside repair and acquisition of tools and 
accessories done during the year 2021.
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(g)	 Manufacturing of paper 
cutting die machine

(h)	 Design and manufacturing of 
hydraulic ladder

(j)	 Design and manufacturing of 
tool sharping machine

(k)	 Manufacturing of large pack

(l)	 Tinkering and painting 
G- 3252 L/R Defender ceremonial 
vehicle

(m)	 Tinkering and painting of 
G – 3865 Toyota Super Ace meal run 
vehicle
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	 (14)	 Major jobs carried out by ASW SLAF Base Ratmalana in the year 2021 as 	
	 follows.

(a)	 During the year 2021, ASW SLAF Base Rathmalana has carried out 
25 Nos of Major jobs. This comprises fabrication of wooden file cupboard, 
repair sheet covers and stitching loose covers, fabrication of VVIP 
stepladder, fabrication of flag post, stitching of GPU covers, manufacturing 
of pistol cupboard, stitching of canopy cover and manufacturing of wall 
cupboard.

(b)	 During the year 2021, ASW SLAF Base Rathmalana has carried 
out 494 Nos of Minor jobs. This comprises manufacture of steam inhaler 
machine, painting of Y -12 towing arm, repair and painting of outdoor LED 
screen structure, repair of base communication bar, painting of table and 
lectern, repair of battery box, repair of battery box, buffing of empty case, 
welding of seat arm bracket, fabrication of wing shield covers, bending of 
iron rod, welding of wire mesh for gas tank and repair of high-pressure 
burner, etc…

(c)	 Special Projects.

S/No Description Organized By

1 Technical Coordination and fabrication 
of suitable lifting equipment and 
dummy for the placement of the Finial 
of the Sandahiruseya at Anuradhapura

MOD/SLAF

2 Preparation of SIAI-Marchetti (CT-
131) to mounting at DHQC Akuregoda 
as display aircraft

DHQC 
Akuregoda

3 2021 Christmas Carroll Decorations SLAF

Table - 17
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(d)	 Fabrication of suitable lifting equipment 
and dummy for the placement of the Finial of 
the Sandahiruseya at Anuradhapura.

(e)	 Preparation of Siai-Marchetti (Ct-131) 
to Mounting At DHQC Akuregoda.

(f)	 Christmas Carroll decorations.

(15)	 Major jobs carried out by GEW SLAF Base Katunayake in the year 2021 are 
as follows.

(a)	 Surface Tech Section.  A total of LKR Mn. 8.72 has been incurred 
for General Engineering works of surface tech section in the year 2021. 
This includes Manufacturing of canopy cover, Manufacturing of loose 
cover, Manufacturing of on our board, painting of furniture, Painting of 
wooden flower troughs and Manufacturing of rifle slings.

(b)	 Tech Wood Section. A total of LKR Mn. 12.20 has been incurred 
for General Engineering works of tech wood section in the year 2021. This 
includes Manufacturing of workstation & furniture, Repair of sentry box, 
Manufacturing of file cupboard and Manufacturing of book racks.

(c)	 AC Welder Section. A total of LKR Mn. 2.48 has been incurred for 
General Engineering works of AC welder section in the year 2021. This 
includes Manufacturing of ground support equipment, Manufacturing of 
steel locker, Manufacturing of table stool and Manufacturing of flag post 
stand.
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(d)	 MTS&O Section. A total of LKR Mn. 0.02 has been incurred for 
General Engineering works of MTS&O section in the year 2021. This 
includes Manufacturing of maintenance fixture ladder. 
	
(e)	 CS&SMW Section. A total of LKR Mn. 4.76 has been incurred for 
General Engineering works of CS&SMW section in the year 2021. This 
includes Manufacturing of curtain railing G-3627 coach, Manufacturing of 
saluting dais and repair of steel locker.

(f)	 Ground Equipment Section. A total of LKR Mn. 0.23 has been 
incurred for General Engineering works of Ground equipment section in 
the year 2021. This includes Repair of Suzuki HP 25, Repair of Trilectron 
GPU, Repair of Suzuki OBM engine DT 40 Propeller and Repair of Guinault 
GPU.

(g)	 Manufacturing of compost mixing unit.

(h)	 Manufacturing of Heated Humidified 
Oxygen Therapy units.

(16)	 Major jobs carried out by No 111 UAV Squadron in the year 2021 as 
follows.

(a)	 Manufacturing of UAV cooling cart.



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 202162

	 (17)	 Major jobs carried out by No 111 UAV Squadron in the year 2021 as 	
	 follows.

(a)	 The hydraulic power unit purchased for 
Helicopter.

	 (18)	 Major jobs carried out by No 111 UAV Squadron in the year 2021 as 	
	 follows.

(a)	 Full painting of Smr-2311 B-200 
Beechcraft.

	 (19)	 Major jobs carried out by No I FTW in the year 2021 as follows.

(a)	 Painting of the national flag on the PT 6 
aircraft.

	 (20)	 Major jobs carried out by Armament activities in the year 2021 as follows.

(a)	 Purchasing Qty 09 fire squib.

(b)	 Purchasing 1400 Ltr of Aero Shell fluid.
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(c)	 Purchasing Qty 3300 of 9mm 
ammunition.

	 (21)	 Major Jobs on Repair of Vehicles in the year 2021.

	 During the year 2021, Directorate of General Engineering has engaged 
with 157 nos of Repair and Overhaul of vehicles. This consist of 67 nos of repair 
and overhaul at MTROW Katunayake, 26 nos of repair and overhaul at LRDOW 
Katunayake, 26 nos of repair and overhaul at MTROW Vauniya and 38 nos of 
vehicles repair and overhaul at other locations.

(a)	 Repair of G-6241 Mitsubishi car.

(b)	 Repair of G-6574 SX4 car.

(c)	 Repair of G-6569 SX4 Car.
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(d)	 Repair of G-6519 SX4 Car.

(e)	 Repair of G 8358 BMW.

(f)	 Repair of G – 3865 Toyota 
Ace.	

(g)	 Repair of G 3221 Toyota van.

(h)	 Repair of G 3616 LAL coach.



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 202165

(j)	 Repair of G 4758 Bronto Sky Lift.

(k)	 Repair of G 6421 Bolero Jeep.

(22)	 Major jobs carried out on Purchase of capital equipment in the year 2021 
are as follows.

(a)	 Purchase of Current Rectifier 		
Unit.

(b)	 Purchase of Qty 04 Vehicle Engine 
Scanners.

(c)	 Purchase of Air Compressor.
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(d)	 Purchase of Qty 10 Washing Plants.

	 (23)	 Major jobs carried out on Vehicle Purchase in the year 2021 are as follows.

During the 2021, The Directorate of General Engineering has purchased 
following vehiles. 

S/ No Type of Vehicle No of Vehicle
01 Ambulance 10
02 Heavy Truck 04
03 Single Cab 23
04 Hand Tractor 03
05 Push cycle 325
06 Donation and fire Vehicle 05

(24)	 Vehicle Insurance

At the beginning of the year 2021, Directorate was allocated with LKR Mn. 
10.00 for vehicle insurance where as the actual expenditure was LKR Mn. 
6.35.

(25)	 Activities completed at GEW SLAF Academy China Bay during the 
year 2021.

During the year 2021, GEW SLAF Academy China Bay has carried out 112 
Nos of jobs and include manufacturing of Ack Ack gunfire moving stopping 
bar, repair of radiator, repair of door and structure, repair of power steering 
bracket, repair of grass cutter machine, repair of Air pressure union, manufacturing 
of movable diagnoses stand, etc.

Table - 18
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e.	 Directorate of Electronics and Telecommunication Engineering

(1)	 The performance evaluation against Annual Action Plan (AAP) during 
the year 2021, LKR Mn. 599.30 has spent for Electronics and Telecommunication 
Engineering equipment.
(2)	 Development in Electronics, Telecommunication Related Activities Major 
Projects carried out during the year 2021.

(a)	 Purchase of Shield Grid Triode 
(Modulator Tube) for Indra MK II Radars 
in SLAF. (LKR Mn. 12.66)

 

(b)	 Purchase of VDL 6000 Automatic 
Identification System for SMR 843. (LKR 
Mn. 8.07)

(c)	 Repair and Calibration of Laser Wire 
Marking Machine. (LKR Mn. 5.02)

(d)	 Purchase of spares for Repair and 
Maintenance of EFD-84 system. (LKR Mn. 
2.27

(e)	 Purchase of TCAS (ADS-B) 
System for AN-32B Aircraft at No 02 
Squadron SLAF Katunayake. (LKR Mn. 
11.90)
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(f)	 Purchase of FA 2100 CVR System 
for SLAF Aircraft. (LKR Mn. 6.74)

(g)	 Purchase of GTN 750 XI GPS / 
Nav/ Comm / MFD for Y-12 Aircraft at 
No 08 Squadron. (LKR Mn.4.37)

(h)	 Purchase of Purchase of CRT 
Assemblies for HUD/MFD System in K-8 
Aircraft. (LKR Mn.8.18)

(j)	 Purchase of MSA LH350 Dual Visor Helicopter Helmet and 
Accessories. (LKR Mn.5.05)
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f.	 Directorate of Civil Engineering

		  (1)	 Comparison of actual performances with Annual Action Plan 	
		  for year 2021 as follows.

			   (a)	 Actual expenditure against the allocation of recurrent 	
			   expenditure.

Description Allocation 
(LKR Mn)

Expenditure 
(LKR)

Mechanical & Electrical/ Other 
Consumable items

29.02 29.00

Vehicle Maintenance ( Dump Trucks) 25.00 13.94
Civil Engineering Machinery Maintenance 30.00 25.25
Building Maintenance 75.00 72.27
Civil Engineering Services / Hiring of 
Machinery

14.95 14.95

Total 173.97 155.41

Description Allocation 
(LKR Mn)

Expenditure 
(LKR Mn)

Repair of Buildings/A&I Programme 200.00 189.15

Repair of Civil Engineering Machinery 36.00 27.29
Civil Engineering Workshop equipment, 
pumps, Air conditioners, Generator & 
Machineries

44.71 44.71

Construction of Buildings & Structures 400.00 317.05
Total 680.71 578.20

	 (b)	 Actual expenditure against the allocation of capital expenditure.

Table - 19
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(2)	 During the year, the following projects have been successfully completed 
based on Annual Action Plan for year 2021.

S/
No Projects Expenditure 

(LKR Mn)
1 Construction of Water Draining System and Culvert 

Work at Runway - SLAF Station Mullaitivu
2.80

2 Construction of Commander's Chalet - SLAF Station 
Weerawila

28.92

3 Construction of Detachment at Kanugahawewa, 
Kebitigollewa

4.04

Total 35.76

(3)	 During the year, the following projects have been successfully completed 
even though they were not projected in Annual Action Plan (AAP) in the year 2021 
as nation support project.

S/No Projects Allocation 
(LKR Mn)

1 Construction and Development of Kanugahawewa 
Primary School 9.01

2 Construction and Development of Halmillawetiya 
School 1.13

3 Development of Abhinawarama Temple - 
Kebithigollewa 3.37

4 Construction of 25 Nos of Rural Houses - 
Kanugahawewa 25.43

5 Construction of New Chaithya at Abhinawarama 
Temple - Kanugahawewa 2.65

6 Construction of “Seva Piyasa” Building - 
Kanugahawewa 6.40

7 Renovation of PHI Office at Halmillawetiya - 1.83

8 Construction of Volley Ball Court at Halmillawetiya 1.00

9 Construction of Bus Stand at Kanugahawewa 0.53

10 Renovation of Kalagama Viharaya - Kanugahawewa 1.56

11 Kanugahawewa - Gowa Waraddana Wewa Workforce 
only

12 Kanugahawewa - Mana Wewa Workforce 
only

Total 52.91

Table - 21
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(4)	 Development / Constructions at religious places.

S/No Projects Expenditure 
(LKR Mn)

1 Construction of Perimeter Fence at Olaboduwa 
Rajamaha Viharaya

5.53

2 Construction of “ Dana Salawa” at Abayagiriya 
Viharaya

Workforce 
only

Total 5.53

(5)	 Capital Project completed during the year 2021.

(a)	 Water draining system and culvert work at SLAF station Mullaitivu.

(b)	 Commander’s chalet at SLAF Station Weerawila.

(c)	 Construction of Detachement at Kanugahawewa, Kebitigollewa at 
SLAF Base Vavuniya.

Table - 23
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(d)	 Construction and Development of Kanugahawewa Primary School.

	 (e)	 Construction and Development of Halmillawetiya School.

	 (f)	 Development of Abhinawarama Temple.

	 (g)	 Construction of 13 No’s of Rural Houses Phase I.

	 (h)	 Construction of 13 No’s of Rural Houses Phase II.
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	 (j)	 Construction of New Chaithya at Abhinawarama Temple.

	 (k)	 Construction of “Seva Piyasa” Building.

	 (l)	 Refurbishment of MOH Office at Halmillawetiya.

	 (m)	 Construction of Volley Ball Court at Halmillawetiya.

	 (n)	 Construction of Bus Stand at Kanugahawewa.
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	 (p)	 Refurbishment of Kalagama Viharaya at Kanugahawewa.

	 (q)	 Renovation of Gowa Waraddanawa Wewa at Kanugahawewa.

	 (r)	 Renovation of Maana Wewa.

	 (s)	 Volley Ball Court - Anamaduwa Central collage.

	 (t)	 Construction of Olaboduwa Rajamaha Viharaya Perimeter Fence.
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(6)	 During the year, the following project has been on progress.

S/No Projects Expenditure
(LKR Mn)

01 Construction of Hanger Annex Building for 
No.02 Heavy Transport

15.67

02 Construction of  05 Storied Officers’ 
Married Quarters

52.64

03 Standardization of Main Power Distribution 
System

0.12

04 Construction of 05 Storied Officers’ 
Married Quarter

50.86

05 Laying and Resurfacing of Taxiway 22.04

06 Construction of Two Storied Officers’ 
Living In Block (Balance Work)

8.91

07 Construction of Two Storied Class Room 
Building

8.15

08 Construction of 02 Nos of Single Storied 
Officers’ Married Quarters 

14.93

09 Construction of Airmen Living In Block 6.56

10 Construction of 02 Nos Officers' Living In 
Block 

13.35

11 Installation of Runway & Taxiway Lighting 
system

0.05

12 Installation of Runway & Taxiway Lighting 
system

0.06

13 Construction of Ex. Officers’ Holiday Home 
at Koggala

14.52

14 Construction of Ex. Officers’ Holiday Home 
at Nuwara Eliya

14.48

15 Construction of Ablution Block 4.47

16 Construction of New Hospital – Phase I 10.67

Total 237.48

Table - 24
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g.	 Directorate of Logistics

(1)	 Acquisition of capital assets during the year 2021.

S/No Description Amount (LKR.Mn)

1 Purchase of barrack equipment 58.77
2 Purchase of catering equipment 13.13
3 Purchase of other items 34.48

Table - 25

(2)	 Activities completed during the year 2021 which were not projected 
in the AAP 2021.

S/No Description Amount (LKR.Mn)

1 Purchase of Barrack equipment 27.20
2 Purchase of catering equipment 9.20
3 Purchase of other items 11.47

Table - 26

h.	 Directorate of Administration

(1)	 The actual performances in respect of General Administration of SLAF in 
the year 2021 are as follows. Total allocation on General Administration was LKR 
Mn. 31,668.20.

S/No Activity Commitment 
Amount

(LKR Mn.)
1 Salaries and Wages 16,074.90
2 Other Allowances 13,195.31
3 Purchase of Stationery Items 18.00
4 Travelling Domestic 10.84
5 Postal Charges 1.64
6 Electricity and  Water 760.57
7 Sri Lanka Transport Board Bus Passes 4.36
8 Property Loan Interest 43.26
9 Rental/Rates/ Royalties/Taxes to local 

Authorities
4.5

10 Funeral Services/Legal Services 1.8
11 Compensation/ Insurance 59.76
12 Ranaviru Parents Allowances 298.37
13 Department of Pension 506.10
14 Repair of Office Equipment 1.1
15 General Office Equipment 7.0

Total 30,987.51
Table - 27
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S/No Training Category Actual Cost 
(LKR Mn)

01 Foreign Training 302.48 
02 Local Training 15.16 

Total 317.64
Table - 28

Figure - 4

k.	 Directorate of Health Service

(1)	 The following activities have been successfully completed during the year 
2021.

(1)	 The SLAF has spent following amount for foreign and local training during 
the year 2021 to enhance the human resources development and capacity building of 
servicemen.

j.	 Directorate of Training

S/
No

Activity Amount 
(LKR Mn)

1 Purchase of Drugs and dressing items, Vaccines, 
X-Ray Fims, Laboratory Chemicals and Test 
Kits, Personnel protective items, Surgical items, 
Disposable items for physiotherapy use, Spectacle 
Lenses, Laboratory investigation services, 
Purchase of Insecticides

148.76

2 Purchase of Capital Medical Equipment required 
for SLAF Hospitals and Medical Centers

75.40

3 Repair/Upgrade of Capital Medical Equipment, 
Maintanance of Service Agreements of Capital 
Equipment

10.17

Total 234.33
 				    Table - 29
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(2)	 Actioning strategies of dangerous drugs free country.

	 (a)	 Number of Screening during 2021. Number of 2,758 Service person 	
	 have been done drugs abuse screening.

	 (b)	 Budget expenditure for drugs abuse screening. Approximate cost of 	
	 LKR Mn. 2.62 expend for Screening.

	 (c)	 Awareness programme conducted by psychologist.  Number of 		
	 1,600 Service Personal were attend to the awareness programme.

l.	 Directorate of Welfare 

(1)	 Annual performance of Dte of Wel for the year 2021 are as follows.

	 (a)	 Payment of Death Donation allowance Rs. 50,000.00 in assistance 		
	 for funeral expense of all serving personnel.

	 (b)	 Providing Welfare support to SLAF establishments.

i.	 Providing Utility items, Library books, and Equipment to 
improve recreational facilities and welfare.
ii.	 Providing entertainment measures – Musical instruments, 
Sound systems, Television etc.
iii.	 Providing toys and other musical instruments for all the 
SLAF Pre-Schools.

	 (c)	 Providing welfare support for the SLAF members through.

i.	 Welfare Standing Board – NOKs of KIA, DIA personnel.
ii.	 Distress Loans- NOKs of KIA, DIA personnel.
iii.	 Providing Pre-school facilities at concessionary rates.
iv.	 Providing school exercise books free of charge to school 
going children of all SLAF members and civil staff.
v.	 Arrangements to visit of KIA families annually with gift 
parcels.
vi.	 Providing annual diary and calendars free of charge for all 
serving personnel, NOKs of KIA, DIA personnel.
vii.	 Organizing of SLAF Avurudu Pola during the month of 
April.
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	 (d)	 Following additional activities were completed during 2021.

i.	 Conducted 01 Pre-school teachers’ workshop.
ii.	 Distribution of Virusara Privilege Cards.
iii.	 Maintenance of job bank for retired personnel.
iv.	 Providing financial assistance/ loans to SLAF personnel on 
approval of the Cmdr.
v.	 Providing saree for Pre-school teachers.
vi.	 Issuing service certificates to other institutes and 
organizations.
vii.	 Maintaining welfare records of individuals.

(2)	 Annual Programme of the Directorate of Welfare year 2021 is as follows.

Activity 
No Major activities of the Dte Time frame Output/ Outcome

1
Pirith Chanting Ceremony & 
Alms Giving Ceremony, Mutiny 
Religious Ceremony

Jan

2

Assisting outside organizations to 
Nawam Religious ceremonies

Dare 
Ciliated by 
Hunupitiya 
Gangaramaya 

Welfare of the community

3

Sri Pada clean-up campaign, 
Flag blessing Anuradhapura 
Udamaluwa, Pichchamal Pujawa 
Kalaniya Rajamaha Viharay 
ceremony

Mar Welfare of the community

4 Awarding Pre School Certificates 
- 2021 

05 Feb Welfare of the community

5
Annual Awurudu Pola Apr Provide commodities on 

concessionary rates to SLAF 
personnel and families 

6
Pre-school workshop for Pre-
school teachers

Apr, Aug, 
Dec 

Continuation training of 
Pre-school teachers

7

Assisting outside organizations 
to organize National/ Religious 
ceremonies ( Rajja Wesak Festival 
& Other Vesak, Poson & Esala 
Festivals)

May, Jun & 
Jul 

Welfare of the community

8 Commemoration of SLAF War 
Heroes at Battharamulla

19th May Paying tribute to War 
Heroes

9
Annual Pirith Pinkama & 
Ranaviru Commemoration 
Parade at SLAF TTS Eka

25th and 26th 
Jun

Bestowing merit to the War 
Heroes

10
Christian Ceremony at All Saints 
Church, Borella/ St Theresa’s 
Church, Thimbirigasyaya

16th Jul
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11
Hindu Ceremony at Captains Garden 
Sivam Kovil, DR. Wijewardena 
Mawatha, Colombo 02

28th July 

12
Muslim Ceremony at Jummah 
Mosque, Kollupitiya, Colombo 03

14th July 

13
Dental & Medical Clinick  Asgiri 
& Malwathu Chapters, Dalanda 
Maligawa Staff 

Nov Last 
Week or Oct 
Fist Week  

14
Multhan Buddha Pujawa, Gilanpasa 
Buddha Pujawa and Alms Giving 
Ceremony at Sri Dalada Maligawa

22nd and 23rd 
Oct 

Welfare of the 
community

15
Selection of new admissions to 
Defence Service College Colombo 
and Kurunegala

Sep/ Oct Welfare of service 
personnel

16
Providing of Montessori Books / 
Uniforms for Pre-school children

Dec Welfare for service 
personnel

17
Distribution of calendars and diaries 
to NOKs of KIA and DIA personnel

Dec Welfare of the KIA/DIA 
personnel and families 

18
Free distribution of school exercise 
books to children of SLAF personnel

Dec Welfare for SLAF 
personnel

19
Distribution of calendars, pocket 
calendars and greeting cards

Dec Welfare and maintain 
goodwill among SLAF 
personnel 

20
Distribution of Complementary 
Diaries

Dec Welfare and maintain 
goodwill among SLAF 
personnel

21
‘Finishing School’ Programme for 
young ladies

Once in four 
months

Welfare of the SLAF 
personnel and their 
families

22
Welfare Conference with all Station 
reps 

Once in three 
months 

Monitoring of welfare 
facilities of SLAF 
establishments

Table - 30
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m.	 Office of Dental Services 

	 (1)	 Acquisition of capital and recurrent assets during the year 2021 is as follows.

S/No Item Amount 
(LKR Mn)

1 Dental RVG Unit 2.54

2 Glass Bead Sterilizer 0.02

3 Dental Unit & Chair 1.93

4 Cordless LED Curing Unit 0.15

5 Dental materials 7.97
Total 12.61

(2)	 Treatment summary during 2021

Description Number of treatment 
carried out

Number of 
patients

Service personal, Service 
personal’s family and Civil 
personals

23,280 17,025

Table - 32
(3)	 Role and responsibilities of the Chief Dental Officer.

	 (a)	 The Chief Dental Officer shall be responsible to DHS on all matters 		
	 concerning the Oral and Dental health of the Air Force personnel.

	 (b)	 Hence the Chief Dental Officer shall;

		  i.	 Responsible to the DHS regarding the proper functioning of 	
		  the Dental Hospitals and Dental section of SLAF Establishments.
		  ii.	 Ensure proper posting, promotions and training of all Dental 	
	  	 tradesmen/Women of the Dental Branch and forward the 			 
		  recommendations for the approval of DHS.
		  iii.	 Hold quarterly conferences with Dental Officers regarding 		
		  the improvement of the Dental Branch and will present such reports 	
		  to the DHS.
		  iv.	 Make recommendations to DHS related to disciplinary 		
		  matters of Officers and other ranks whenever reported to him/her.

Table - 31
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v.	 Supervise all policy decisions of the Dental Services and make 	
recommendation to DHS for the approval.
vi.	 Make recommendations to upgrade all equipment and 
professional knowledge pertaining to Dental profession and submit 
the proposals for the approval of DHS.
vii.	 Utilize the financial allocations in the most economical manner.
viii.	 Recommend purchasing of Dental equipment, drugs, material, 
dressing and repairs all equipment.
ix.	 Ensure proper distribution of all the dental equipment among 
Dental sections of SLAF Establishments.
x.	 Recommend Continuous Professional Development (CPD) 
programmes for Officers and other ranks.
xi.	 Arrange Mobile Dental clinics for the Stations where there is 
no Dental Officer/ Dental Section.
xii.	 Look in to Common amenities, such as Dental material/drugs, 
utilization of Dental surgeries etc. in such a way to look after the 
interest of the patients.

(4)	 Developments in 2021.

	 (a)	 Installation of Digital Orthopantamograme unit in Dental center 		
	 SLAF TTS Ekala.

	 (b)	 Dental treatment folders dispatch through MIMS (Medical 			 
	 Information Management System).

	 (c)	 Access has been given to other stations for monitor 				  
	 Orthopantamograme X-Rays and backups Orthopantamograme X-Rays at 		
	 Dental Hospital SLAF Stn Cbo and Dental center SLAF TTS Ekala. 

	 (d)	 Orthopantamograme X-Ray details are shared through MIMS 		
	 (Medical Information Management System).

	 (e)	 Annual medical screening programme has been combined with 		
	 OHMS (Oral Health Management System).

	 (f)	 Purchase of Dental Unit and Chairs to be used for SLAF Dental 		
	 centers. (Order confirmed and pending delivery).

	 (g)	 Purchase of RVG (RadioVisioGraphy) units to be used for SLAF 		
	 Dental centers. (Order confirmed and pending delivery).

	 (h)	 Purchase of Dental X-Ray units to be used for SLAF Dental centers. 	
	 (Order confirmed and pending delivery).

	 (j)	 Purchase of EndoMotor Units to be used for SLAF Dental centers. 		
	 (Order confirmed and pending delivery).
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n.	 Directorate of Provost 

	 (1)	 Performance during the year 2021 as follows.

		  (a)	 Qty 04 Duplo machine have been purchased to be used at Police 		
		  Sections (Capital Account - 0.94 M).

		  (b)	 Qty 05 Dot Matrix Printers have been purchased to be used at Police 	
		  Sections through DIT (Capital Account - 0.15 M).

		  (c)	 Qty 10 Heavy duty photo copy machine have been purchased to be 		
		  used at Police Sections through DETE (Capital Account – 1.7 M).

		  (d)	 Qty 25 Emergency Light have been purchased to be used at Police 		
		  Sections (Capital Account - 0.12 M).

		  (e)	 Qty 100 Road Cones have been purchased to be used at Police 		
		  Sections (Capital Account - 0.16 M).

		  (f)	 Purchased printing material (Box Boards Gray Back 31 x 43- 16 pkt, 	
		  24x 36 Bank Papers White 173 pkt) for printing SLAF police Section 		
		  document (Stationery Account - 0.93 M).

	 (2)	 Training of Officers/ Policemen/ Policewomen.

		  (a)	 Provost Basic and Advanced courses of Policemen/ Policewomen are 	
		  conducted at the Provost Trade Training School, which is under the GTW 		
		  SLAF Academy Cby. The details of training courses conducted for 			 
		  Policemen/ Policewomen in 2021 are as follows.
			   i.	 Police Advanced Course 2/2020 (31 Airmen / 06 Airwomen)
			   ii.	 Police Advanced Course 1/2021 (18 Airmen / 06 Airwomen)
			   iii.	 Police Basic Course 1/2021 (20 Airmen / 06 Airwomen)

		  (b)	 Local Training Course - Officers.

Mission Location No of Placements
Higher National 
Diploma in Criminal 
Law

SLAF Station 
Colombo 02 Officers

Table - 33
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(c)	 Apart from that, following overseas training programs were 
conducted in respect of Policemen in year 2021.

S/No Course Country No of 
Participants

1
Provost & Security 
Course – Airmen 
(PSCA)

AFIS, Pune, India 02 SNCOs

2
Bangladesh Provost 
Trade Training 
Advanced Course

Bangladesh 02 JNCOs

(d)	 The details of UN Peace Keeping Operations where Policemen were 
deployed are as follows.

S/No Mission No of 
Placements

1. UN Peace Keeping Mission in Central African 
Republic (MINUSCA) 02

2. UN Peace Keeping Mission in South Sudan 
(UNMISS) 02

(e)	 Other Courses of SLAF.

S/No Mission Location No of 
Placements

1. NCO Management 
Course

SLAF Academy Cby 14

2. MIC SLAF TTS Ekala 02
3. IT Course SLAF TTS Ekala 04
4. Automation System 

Course 
SLAF Base 
Ratmalana/ SLAF 
TTS Ekala

81

5. Ceremonial Rider 
Training Course

SLAF Base 
Katunayake

08

Table - 36
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(f)	 Outside Local Courses.

S/No Mission Location No of 
Placements

1 Interrogation Course SL Army,Palawatta 01 SNCO
2 No 08 French 

Language Course
JSLTI Mawathura 01 Policeman

3 No 11 English 
Language Course

JSLTI Mawathura 02 Policemen

4 Tamil Language 
Course

JSLTI Mawathura 02 Policemen
02 Policewomen

(3)	 Summary of tasks carried out during the year 2021.

	 (a)	 Investigation
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Number of 
Cases 132 87 40 292 205 203 01 960

(b)	 One (01) Officer Cadet has been enlisted to the Provost Branch 
and presently following the Basic Course (2 Cadets) at GTW, SLAF 
Academy Cby. 

p.	 Directorate of Air Intelligence 

(1)	 Capital & Recurrent expenditure of the Directorate of Air 			 
Intelligence during the year of 2021 are as follows.

Vote No Main Activity
Amount 

(LKR 
Mn)

Remarks

Capital Expenditure
2002 Repair available 

electric items 
(Drone & 
Camera)

0.384 12 x Repair of Drone Camera

2103 Intelligent 
Equipment

- 4Mn. transferred through 
review of the Budget 2021. 
(SLAF/15/2/BGT 1
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14 Sep 21) & carried forward 
amount is Rs. 805,000.00. 
(SLAF/2361 /2/DAI 20 Dec 
2021)

Recurrent Expenditure
1205 Purchase of 

electrical items
1.446 Purchase of electronic item and 

bugging devices for intelligence 
duty

1409 Intelligence 
Allowance 
(Imprest)

2.245 Given by informant 

Total Expenditure 4.075

(2)	 Acquisition of following Drones to the inventory.

S/No Drone Type Qty Performance

1 DJI M300 RTK 02

Day and night camera system, High 
Endurance (01Hrs), VTOL drone 
with EO/IR camera, Range 12Km 
above and max take of weight 06 Kg 

2 DJI Mavic 2 
Enterprise Dual 06

Day and night camera system, Low 
Endurance (31 Min), VTOL drone 
with EO/IR camera, Range 06Km 
above and max take of weight 2.2 Kg

(3)	 Acquired Drones have been deployed at the below mentioned SLAF 
establishments

S/No Drone Type Qty Location

1 DJI M300 RTK 02 AFHQ

2 DJI Mavic 2 Enterprise Dual 01 Academy China Bay.

3 DJI Mavic 2 Enterprise Dual 01 Base Katunayake

4 DJI Mavic 2 Enterprise Dual 01 Base Ratmalana

5 DJI Mavic 2 Enterprise Dual 01 Base Vavniya

6 DJI Mavic 2 Enterprise Dual 01 Base Anuradhapura. 

7 DJI Mavic 2 Enterprise Dual 01 Base Hingurakgoda
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a.	 Trained 19 airmen for drone operations during the year 2021.

b.	 Train 02 airmen for Air Observer duties during the year 2021.

c.	 Provided basic intelligence training for 32 airmen of all trades at 
Intelligence Training School from 19 Apr to 25 May 21.

d.	 Repaired 12 Drones during the year 2021.

(4)	 Details of special services rendered to the government.

S/No Description of the Mission Stakeholder Flying Hrs 

1
Conducted 53 Drone 
missions for Western 
provincial Council

Western provincial 
Council 24 hrs 56 

min 

2 Conducted 112 Drone 
missions for Muthurajawela

Urban Development 
Authority 

39 hrs 21 
min 

3
Conducted 05 Drone 
missions for Central 
Environmental Authority

Central 
Environmental 
Authority

01 hrs 52 
min

4
Conducted 156 Drone 
missions for monitor travel 
restriction

SL Police 134 hrs 10 
min

5
Conducted 169 drone 
missions for traffic 
monitoring

SL Police 28hrs 10 
min

6
Conducted 05 Drone 
missions for special 
requirement

SLAF 03 hrs 01 
min

(5)	 Details of Conducted on payment special services rendered to the 
government.

Description of the Mission Stakeholder Flying 
Hrs 

Total Income 
(CWF) Rs.

Conducted 04 Drone 
missions for Bandaranaike 
International Air Port

Taisei Copa 
ration

04 hrs 31 
min 

61,406.25
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q.	 Directorate of Media

	 (1)	 Total numbers of media coverage activities during the year of 2021 as 		
	 follows.
		  (a)	 2,542 Nos of Newspaper articles.
		  (b)	 389 Nos of Web News.
		  (c)	 1,406 Nos of TV News.
		  (d)	 26 Nos of Media invites for special event.
		  (e)	 552 Nos of Photo and video coverage.
		  (f)	 274 Nos of Viber guwan news alerts.
		  (g)	 45 Nos of Event compering.
		  (h)	 264 Nos of Video documentaries. 
		  (j)	 88 Nos of News clips.

	 (2)	 Expansion of the Directorate of Media.
		  The remaining requirements of workstations were fulfilled during the 		
	 year 2021.

	 (3)	 Management and release of all information.
	 Total number of 2542 news articles were published in relation to internal/ 
external activities of the SLAF in the mass media, including the SLAF Website during 
the year 2021. The Dte of Media has directly sent out approximately 165 news articles 
to outside media organizations during the year 2021 and all local newspaper agencies 
have published those in their respective publications.

	 (4)	 Image Building Activity of SLAF.
		  Image building activities of SLAF through the general media other 			 
	 than advertising are as follows.
		  (a)	 Dte of Media invited civil media personnel for total of 27 			 
		  events which were held within Air Force establishments to obtain 			 
		  media publicity through electronic and printed media.

		  (b)	 All media personnel were received and welcomed 				  
		  appropriately and treated with due consideration.

	 (5)	 Management of the SLAF Website.
		  The Director Media with the direct advice of the Cmdr handled the 		
	 publication of 389 Air Force News articles on the SLAF Website during the 			
	 year.
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(6)	 Dissemination of Information.
	 Dissemination of information internally regarding important SLAF/ National 
events using electronic means was done as follows.

	 (a)	 The Dte of Media published all web news simultaneously in 			
	 the intra web (intraweb.slaf.int) which was published in the www.airforce.lk.

	 (b)	 Total number of 274 Viber Guwan News alert notifications to 		
	 AirForce personnel as and when required to inform any important massages 	
	 were sent out during the year.

(7)	 Maintaining of Cordial Relations.
	 Maintaining cordial relations with local and international media was handled 
as follows.

	 (a)	 During year 2021 no negative comments/feedback experience by the 	
	 Dte from outside media personnel.

	 (b)	 This Dte has sent approximately 82 news articles to outside 	media 		
	 agencies and it was able to publish all those in their respective publications. 

(8)	 Monitoring of International/ Local Media.
	 Dte of Media performs monitoring of International/ local media opinion on 
SLAF including websites. 

	 (a)	 Dte of Media monitors all local newspapers, all television channels 		
	 and international websites on a daily basis and inform the media responses 	
	 and trends to the Commander of the Air Force.

	 (b)	 Dte of Media analyses all articles published related to the SLAF, its 		
	 activities and coordinate suitable responses with the 	Commander's 			
	 directives.

	 (c)	 Dte of Media is maintaining a database enabling easy uploading of 		
	 daily news articles and easy reviewing of news as well.

(9)	 Coordinating of Event Compering.
	 The directorate continued to coordinate the compere pool within the Air 
Force and detailed comperes for a total of 45 Air Force events within all Air Force 
establishment and 07 events at AFHQ in 2021. 
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(10)	 Production of Video Documentaries.
	 Production of video documentaries, TV commercials as and when required 
for SLAF. A total of 264 documentaries including History Documentaries, AF 
Anniversary Theme Song Investiture Ceremony and Sport related documentaries 
were produced in 2021.

(11)	 Video and Photography Coverage Support.
	 Video and photography Coverage support at Air Force special events within 
the Air Force and outside was provided for 552 events.

(12)	 Handling of Media Coverage of Parades.
	 Dte of Media handled three major parades with video and photography 
coverage. This Dte provided comperes to SLRC for 2021 Independence parade.

r.	 Directorate of Information Technology 

(1)	 During the review period, following main expenditures have been incurred 
by the Directorate of Information Technology to maintenance of IT equipment and 
purchase of IT Equipment as per projection made in Annual Action Plan (Action 
Plan based on four vote on accounts).

Description Amount 
(LKR Mn)

Capital Expenditure
Purchase of IT Equipment 10.08

Recurrent Expenditure
Purchase of Spares and IT Related Consumables for IT 
Equipment

51.94

Total 62.02

(2)	 Projects details of Directorate of Information Technology year 2021.

	 (a)	 Infrastructure Development
		  i.	 Implementation of Research and Development lab.
		  ii.	 Implementation of new CCTV workshop.
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(b)	 Development of following software applications.

	 i.	 SLAF QR System
	 ii.	 Pilot Instrument Rating Management
	 iii.	 Rana Viru Sewa Authority Welfare Management 			 
	 System
	 iv.	 OHMS (Oral Health Management System)
	 v.	 CMRS (Chemical Monitoring & Regulating System)
	 vi.	 HMS (Hotel Management System)
	 vii.	 DFMS (Document Flow Management System)
	 viii.	 Time Attendance (President’s Secretary Office)
	 ix.	 Medical Welfare Management System
	 x.	 Implementation of Paperless concept
	 xi.	 All documents at Guard rooms
	 xii.	 Catering documents 
	 xiii.	 Return & collection voucher actions

(c)	 SLAF Cyber Operation Centre carried out following tasks.

i.	 Establishment of cyber forensic lab.
ii.	 Renewal and upgrade of cyber security monitoring 			 
tools.
iii.	 Conduct vulnerability assessments for following 			 
websites.
	 05 Websites belonging to the Presidential Secretariat, 
Itukama Covid-19 fund website, MOD website, 59 websites 
belonging to the Western Provincial Council and Sri Dalada 
Maligawa official website. 
iv.	 Conduct information security audit and vulnerability 		
assessment for LK Domain Registry IT infrastructure. 
v.	 Identify, respond and take precautionary measures 			 
against the LTTE's cyber attack on 03 Sri Lankan Government 
websites on 18 May 2021. 
vi.	 Analyse and provide investigation report for Phishing 		
attack targeted at Bandaranaike International Airport. 
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vii.	 24x7x365 Monitoring of critical government 
organizations websites including President’s website and 
MOD website.

(d)	 Network Expansion.
	 i.	 Installation of 2 KVA online UPS with 3 hours battery 	
	 backup for SLAF repeater stations.
	 ii.	 New fiber optic cable laying from SLAF Base 		
	 Katunayake to SLAF Station Bandaranayaka International 		
	 Airport to enhance the data and voice communication 		
	 infrastructure.
	 iii.	 Installation of lightening protection system to 		
	 ADC&CC SLAF Station Mirigama.

x.	 Directorate of Sports

	 (1)	 Following Sports items acquired during the year 2021.

Description Amount (LKR Mn.)
Sports Equipment 0.98
Sport Items 4.36
Sport Services 9.30

Total 14.64
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t.	 Directorate of Performing Arts

	 (1)	 During the review period, following main expenditures have been 		
	 incurred by the Directorate of Performing Arts as per projection made in 		
	 Annual Action Plan (AAP).

Description Amount
(LKR Mn.)

Capital Expenditure

Purchase of Band Instruments and Equipment for 
SLAF Band 6.38

Repair of Band Insrtuments 0.00

SVP Allocation (Repair) 0.27

Total 6.65

u.	 Command Recruiting Office 

(1)	 The Sri Lanka Air Force has recruited 1,578 personnel during the year 
2021 out of which 254 are Officers and 1,324 are other rankers. Officers have 
been recruited under three categories i.e. Direct Entry Professional Officers, 
SLAF Officer Cadets and KDU Officer Cadets where as other ranks under two 
categories i.e. direct entry other ranks and normal entry other ranks. 

	 (2)	 Recruitment details during the year as follows.

Type of Recruitment

Numbers Enlisted

R
eg

ul
ar

Vo
lu

nt
ee

r

Su
b 

To
ta

l

To
ta

l

Officers
Direct Entry Officers 31 30 61

254KDU Officers 48 - 48
Off Cdts 143 02 145

Airmen/ 
Airwomen

Airmen 1,212 1,324
Airwomen 112

Total 1,578

v.	 Command Legal Department

	 (1)	 Performance during the year 2021.

		  (a)	 In addition to the routine legal work, the CLD played an 		
		  active role in preparing rules of engagement for Tri Forces to be used 	
		  in situations of conflict and peace time.

Table - 46

Table - 47



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 202194

(b)	 CLD also provided observations for amendment of existing laws, 
such as the Defence College Bill, Prevention of Terrorism Act etc.

w.	 Internal Audit Division

	 (1)	 Performance of Command Internal Auditor (Service) during the year.

		  (a)	 Financial Audit.

i.	 During the year 2021, the IAD has carried out surprise audit 
visits of SLAF Academy, Bases and Stations for audits covering 
public finance audit particularly in following areas.

				    (i)	 Public Administrations.
				    (ii)	 Public imprest handling.
				    (iii)	 Logistics.
				    (iv)	 Mechanical Transportations.
				    (v)	 Improvements in financial system 				  
				    developments.
				    (vi)	 Stores Management.

ii.	 Following are the details of surprise audit visits conducted by 
IAD relevant to the year 2021.

S/
No.

Academy/Base/
Station Date of Audit Visit Date of 

Report Sent

1
SLAF Station 
Sigiriya

From 26th December 
2020 to 11th January 
2021 

12th February 
2021

2 SLAF Base 
Hingurakgoda

From 12th January 2021 
to 20th January 2021 

12th February 
2021

3 SLAF Base 
Vauniya

From 20th January 2021 
to 23rd January 2021 

12th February 
2021

4
SLAF Regiment 
Training School 
Vanni

From 23rd January 2021 
to 27th January 2021 

12th February 
2021

5 SLAF Station 
Morawewa

From 16th February 2021 
to 21st February 2021 

10th March 
2021

6 SLAF Base 
Anuradhapura

From 21st February 2021 
to 27th February 2021 

10th March 
2021
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7 SLAF Station 
Mirigama

From 18th February 
2021 to 01st March 2021 

10th March 
2021

8 SLAF Station 
Mullaitivu

From 16th March 2021 
to 18th March 2021 

05th April 
2021

9 SLAF Station 
Iranamadu

From 19th March 2021 
to 22nd March 2021 

05th April 
2021

10

SLAF Station 
Bandaranayake 
International 
Airport

20th May 2021 04th June 
2021

11 SLAF Station 
Palavi

From 24th May 2021 to 
28th May 2021 

11th June 
2021

12 SLAF Station 
Batticaloa

From 31st May 2021 to 
02nd June 2021 

30th June 
2021

13 SLAF Station 
Ampara

From 02nd June 2021 to 
04th June 2021 

30th June 
2021

14 SLAF Station 
Colombo

From 14th June 2021 to 
23rd June 2021 

26th June 
2021

15 SLAF Base 
Ratmalana

From 28th June 2021 to 
13th July 2021 

31st July 2021

16 SLAF Station 
Diyathalawa

From 31st July 2021 to 
05th August 2021 

29th August 
2021

17 SLAF Station 
Piduruthalagala

04th August 2021 29th August 
2021

18
SLAF Station 
Ekala

From 02nd August 2021 
to 17th August 2021 

09th 
September 
2021

19
SLAF Station 
Weerawila

From 07th September 
2021 to 10th September 
2021 

01st October 
2021

20
SLAF Academy 
Chinabay

From 04th October 2021 
to 08th October 2021 

01st 
November 
2021

21
SLAF Station 
Katukurunda

From 26th October 2021 
to 29th October 2021 

17th 
November 
2021

22
SLAF Station 
Koggala

From 01st November 
2021 to 05th November 
2021 

23rd 
November 
2021

23
SLAF Base 
Katunayake

From 15th November 
2021 to 02nd December 
2021 

24th 
December 
2021

24
SLAF Station 
Palaly

From 22nd November 
2021 to 26th November 
2021

10th 
December 
2021
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iii.	 The IAD conducted audit on all imprest accounts audits on 
monthly basis in following SLAF Academy/Bases and Stations covering 
public finance in public imprest handling (all the payment, receipts 
and bank reconciliations) including UN peacekeeping sub imprest 
and made recommendations and forwarded to Deputy Director 
Administration (Accounts) for strengthening the existing internal 
control system in order to improve the effectiveness of public finance 
management.

	 (i)	 SLAF Academy China Bay.
	 (ii)	 SLAF Base Katunayake.
	 (iii)	 SLAF Base Ratmalana.
	 (iv)	 SLAF Base Anuradhapura.
	 (v)	 SLAF Base Vauniya.
	 (vi)	 SLAF Base Hingurakgoda.
	 (vii)	 SLAF Station Colombo.
	 (viii)	 SLAF Station Palaly.
	 (ix)	 SLAF Station Ampara.
	 (x)	 SLAF Station Sigiriya.
	 (xi)	 SLAF Station Palavi.
	 (xii)	 SLAF Station Iranamadu.
	 (xiii)	 SLAF Station Mullaitivu.
	 (xiv)	 SLAF Station Batticaloa.
	 (xv)	 SLAF Station Weerawila.
	 (xvi)	 SLAF Station Koggala.
	 (xvii)	 SLAF Station katukurunda.
	 (xviii)	 SLAF Station Morawewa.
	 (xix)	 SLAF Station Mirigama.
	 (xx)	 SLAF Station Bandaranayake International Airport.
	 (xxi)	 SLAF Station Piduruthalagala.
	 (xxii)	 SLAF Combat Training School Diyathalawa.
	 (xxiii)	 SLAF Trade Training School Ekala.
	 (xxiv)	 SLAF Regiment Training School Vanni. 

iv.	 IAD conducted vouching audits on the SLAF payment vouchers 
and Bank Reconciliation Statements on SLAF Main Account.

	 (i)	 Vouching audits on SLAF payment vouchers.

Period Report sent date
April 2020 11th May 2021
September 2020 23rd August 2021
1st Quarter 2021 29th October 2021
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		  (ii)	 Auditing on Bank Reconciliation Statements on 	
		  SLAF Main Account).

Period Report sent date
January 2021 30th April 2021
February 2021 16th  June  2021
March 2021 22nd July 2021
April 2021 28th October 2021
May 2021 12th November 2021
October 2021 23rd December 2021

v.	 IAD has conducted following procurement audit during the 
year 2021.

Period Descriptions Date of Report
Year 2020 1st 
Quarter

Local procurement – 
(Shopping Method)

26th  February 2021

Year 2020 2nd 
Quarter

Local procurement – 
(Shopping Method)

19th March 2021

Year 2020 3rd 
Quarter

Local procurement – 
(Shopping Method)

07th May 2021

Year 2020 4th 
Quarter

On procurement – 
1st Report

14th July 2021

Year 2020 4th 
Quarter

On procurement – 
2nd Report

24th August 2021

Year 2021 1st 
Quarter

On procurement 31st October 2021

vi.	 The IAD has conducted following Stock Verification Audit 
during the year 2021.

Academy/Base/
Station Date of Audit Visit Date of report Sent

SLAF Base 
Katunayake Supply 
& Maintenance 
Depot

From February 2021 
to March 2021 

03rd May 2021

           Table - 50
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Descriptions Date of Report Sent
Internal Audit report of SLAF 
Salaries and Allowances on 
computerized system

31st August 2021

Internal Audit Report on 
Reconciliation of payment of 
salary 

01st November 2021

Date of Audited period Date of Report Sent
From 08th November 2021 to 
26th November 2021

10th December 2021

vii.	 The IAD has conducted following Salary related audit during 
the year 2021.

viii.	 Audited on SLAF Advance ‘B’ Account

(b)	 Compliance Audit.

	 i.	 IAD prepared the Annual Internal Audit Plan for year 		
	 2021 and obtained the approval from Audit and Management 		
	 Committee (AMC) and presented it to Department of 			 
	 Management Audit at Ministry of Finance with a copy to Auditor 		
	 General as per Treasury Circular DMA/AMC/2017/5/5 Dated 21 		
	 Jun 19.

	 ii.	 IAD carried out progress review on quarterly basis of actual 		
	 performance against Annual Action Plan (AAP) and Procurement 		
	 Plan as directed by Management Audit Circular DMA/ 01-2019 for 		
	 the year 2021.

	 iii.	 In the year 2021, the IAD has engaged in preparation of 		
	 monthly Audit Reports and forwarded to the following institutions 		
	 as per the treasury circulars and Financial Regulations (F.R.).

		  (i)	 Auditor General.
		  (ii)	 Secretary, Ministry of Defence.

	 iv.	 In the year 2021, the IAD has engaged in preparation of 		
	 quarterly Audit Reports and forwarded to the Department 			 
	 of Management Audit as per the letter DMA/RIAR/AQ/L/2021/01 		
	 Dated 19 Mar 21.
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	 v.	 The IAD has engaged in preparation of quarterly assessment 	
	 report of Chief Internal Auditor/ Internal Auditor and forwarded to 	
	 the following institutions as per the Management Audit circular.
		  (i)	 Department of Management Audit at Treasury.
		  (ii)	 Secretary, Ministry of Defence.

(c)	 Special Audit on SLAF.

Descriptions Report sent date
Supply and installation of Automatic 
Gantry vehicle washing plant to SLAF

07th February 2021

Supply and installation of Automatic 
Gantry vehicle washing plant to SLAF

03rd December 2021

Name of Quarter Date of AMC held
4th Quarter 2020 and 
1st Quarter 2021

30th March 21

2nd Quarter 2021 Due to the pandemic 
situation of the 
country 2nd and 3rd 
quarter meeting not 
been conducted as 
per the instruction 
of Department of 
Management Audit by 
ref DMA/AMC/2021/2 
latter dated 06 Aug 
2021

3rd Quarter 2021

4th Quarter 2021 Scheduled in Jan 2022

(d)	 Conducting of quarterly Audit and Management Committee Meeting 
Meetings.

	 i.	 During the year 2021, IAD conducted the quarterly Audit 		
	 and Management Committee (AMC) meeting of the SLAF 			 
	 for the year 2021 as stipulated by the circular DMA/01/2019 		
	 of Ministry of Finance and Planning of Sri Lanka as follows.
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Quarter Date of AMC held
3rd Quarter 2021 14 October 2021

Descriptions No of 
Audit 

queries
Audit queries not replied at the 
beginning of the year 2021 04

Audit queries received during the year 
2021 13

Audit queries replied during the year 
2021 15

Audit queries replies in progress at the 
end of the year 2021 02

ii.	 IAD prepared the minute for the above meeting of AMC 
conducted during the year 2021 and distributed among all committee 
members concerned and subsequently, reviewed the recommendations 
made by the committee in respect of Public Finance.

iii.	 During the year 2021, CIA (S) participated in quarterly AMC 
meetings conducted by Ministry of Defence as follows.

(e)	 Support of Internal Control Development of SLAF.

	 i.	 IAD has assisted and made a significant contribution in 		
	 preparation of Annual Action Plan (AAP) year 2021, Annual 		
	 Performance Report (APR) year 2020.

	 ii.	 Development of an Internal Audit Information System 		
	 (IAIS) Chief of Staff has approved the development of the 			 
	 projected IAIS upon recommendations of respective line directors 		
	 for the information retrieval facility of internal auditing in the SLAF.

(f)	 Progress of replies of Auditor Generals Audit Queries.

	 The summary of Audit queries raised by the Auditor General, and the 
replies sent in the year 2021 are as follows.

(g)	 Staff Training

	 Officers and Airmen of the IAD participated in number of 05 
staff training in-house and the SLAF and outside organizations on line 
flat forms (Virtual).
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(2)	 Performance of Cheif Internal Auditor (Civil) during the year.

	 (a)	 Cheif internal Auditor (Civil) carried out following audits during the 	
	 year 2021.

		  i.	 Audit the Bank reconciliation statement for the month of 		
		  January 2021.

		  ii.	 Vouching with relevant books and Accounts and its internal 	
		  control systems using following,

			   (i)	 Cash Books
			   (ii)	 Cheque counterfoils
			   (iii)	 Vote Ledgers
			   (iv)	 Receipts and other relevant documents
			   (v)	 Monthly summaries

		  iii.	 Auditing - Procurement files (Related to - vehicle repair, 		
		  machinery repair, building repair and some other purchase).

		  iv.	 Auditing – Losses and damage (Samples on – Motor vehicle 	
		  accidents and damages).

		  v.	 Check - UN Mission fund account.
			   (i)	 Bank account activities and reconciliation.
			   (ii)	 Income and expenditure clearance.

		  vi.	 Audit the Public officer’s advance ‘B’ account – 2020 with the 	
		  following,
			   (i)	 506-D report
			   (ii)	 Classification of individual balance summary
			   (iii)	 Time analysis and relevant subtitles
			   (iv)	 Debtors and creditors
			   (v)	 CC 10 registers
			   (vi)	 Advance / loan
			   (vii)	 Treasury computer printouts 
			   (viii)	 Control accounts etc

		  vii.	 Audit the final Accounts -2020 with the following
			   (i)	 Vote ledgers – 2020
			   (ii)	 Annual estimate - savings and variances
			   (iii)	 Funds received from other departments and its usage
			   (iv)	 Financial performance 
			   (v)	 Commitments and liability 
			   (vi)	 Financial statement 
			   (vii)	 Cash flow statement 
			   (viii)	 Impress account and unsettle advance
			   (ix)	 Treasury accounts
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		  viii.	 Check the payment vouchers - Recurrent expenditure, Capital 	
		  expenditure for the month of January to April 2021

		  ix.	 Audit the UN Mission Accounts activities and transactions

		  x.	 Audit the Bank reconciliation for the month of August 2021

		  xi.	 Audit - Deposit Accounts details in 2020 Annual Accounts

		  xii.	 Audit revenue account details – in 2020 Annual Accounts
			   (i)	 Income estimates
			   (ii)	 Basic estimates
			   (iii)	 Revised revenue estimate 
			   (iv)	 Actual revenue 
			   (v)	 Revenue account

		  xiii.	 Audit the loses and waivers details in the 2021 annual 		
		  accounts

x.	 Command Research and Development Cell

	 (1)	 Functions of the Command Research and Development Cell.

		  (a)	 To undertake research studies of military and non-military 		
		  interest to improve the efficiency of the SLAF.

		  (b)	 Promote R&D and carry out R&D activities within the SLAF.

		  (c)	 To provide necessary advice in the areas of R&D to the 		
		  management.

		  (d)	 To act as the coordinator with outside establishment with 		
		  regards to the subject areas of R&D. 

	 (2)	 The annual performance of the CRD cell was reviewed against the 		
	 Annual Action Plan for year 2021 and the details are as follows.
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S/No Requirement Order Value 
(Rs)

1
Purchase of Portable Water Quality Tester for 
R&D Wing SLAF Base Katunayake 49,000.00

2
Purchase of M&E Items for Water Distillation 
Plant at R&D Wing SLAF Base Katunayake 254,500.00

3
Purchase of M&E items for Solar Panel 
Project at R&D Wing SLAF Base Katunayake 4,800.00

4
Purchase of Heater Element for R&D Wing at 
SLAF Base Kat for the Distilled Water Plant 34,000.00

5
Purchase of Water Boiler for R&D Wing at 
SLAF Base Katunayake for the Distilled Water 
Plant

221,940.00

6
Purchase of M&E items for Runway Crossing 
Light System (R&D Project) at R&D Wing 619,385.00

7
Purchase of M&E Items for Runway Crossing 
Light System (R&D Project) At R&D Wing 43,200.00

8
Requirment of Materials for the GCS 
Renovation at the UAV R&D Project SLAF 
Station Katukurunda

202,753.85

(3)	 SLAF R&D Projects Initiated in year 2021 as follows.

S/No Project Name Originator Directorate

1
Manufacturing of Cessna 150 Aircraft 
Seat Belts Including Shoulder Strap 
Utilizing Locally Available Resources

FTW

Dte of AE

2
Manufacturing the Air Scoop of 
Cabin Ventilation System in Y 12 II & 
Y12 IV Aircraft

AOW

3
User-Friendly Aerial Seed Bomb 
Dispensing Funnel for MI-17 
Helicopters

R&DW

4 Design and Fabrication of 28V  DC 
Power Supply Unit

R&DW

5 Engine Starting System Tester No 05 Sqn

6

Fabrication of Special Taper Bolt 
to Replace the Existing Taper Bolt 
at Starboard Elevator Shaft and the 
Elevator Mounting Bracket of SCL 
854 Y-12 II Aircraft

AOW

7
Repair and Overhaul of PT-6 
Aircraft Electrical and Avionics Wire 
Harnesses Systems at AOW

AOW
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8 Fabrication of Medevac Kit for Y - 12 
Aircraft ASW

Dte of AE

9 Fabrication of Bell 212/412 Glare 
Shiled Assy (204-072-023-021)

AEW

10
Manufacturing of Cap Assy P/No 
205-031-709-077 / 205-031-709-078 
for Bell 212/412 Helicopters.

AEW

11 Outboard Abrasion Strip Trim Repair 
Of Bell 412 Main Rotor Blade

AEW

12 Aircraft Wheel Bead Breaker ASW

13 Bell 412/212 Annunciator Panel 
Tester

ASW

14 Fabrication of Test Bench for MI-17 
Helicopter De Booster Valve

No 06 Sqn

15 DC Load Tester R&DW

16 Bell 412/212 Tail Rotor Driveshaft 
Flexible Coupling Removal Tool

No 04 Sqn

17 Bell 212/412 EP Tail Rotor Hub and 
Blade Balancing

No 04 Sqn

18 Manufacturing of Tool Sharpening 
Machine

GEW Ahp

Dte of GE

19 Automated Seed Bomb Forming 
Machine

R&DW

20 Heated Humidified Oxygen Therapy 
Unit

GEW Kat

21 Large Scale Seed Bomb Machine R&DW

22 Development and Fabrication of a 
Body Armour

R&DW

23 Design and Manufacturing of Metal 
Detector

R&DW

24 Compost Mixing Rotary Machine GEW Kat

25 Development of a Bird Repeller for 
SLAF Aircraft Hangar

R&DW

Dte of ETE

26 Designing of a Wireless Runway 
Crossing Light System

R&DW

27 Automatic Siren Controller Machine R&DW

28

Designing and Manufacturing of 
Cockpit Video Recorder System for 
Basic Training Aircraft (PT - 6 and 
Cessna 150)

E&TE KAT

29
Designing and Manufacturing of 
Cockpit Voice Recorder System for 
Basic Training Aircraft (PT - 6)

E&TE KAT
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30 Wind Speed and Wind Direction 
Indicator R&DW

Dte of AO
31 Development of a Solid Propellant 

Rocket
R&DW

32
Smart Early Warnings System and 
Deterrence System For Elephant 
Fence

Stn Mow

Dte of GO

33 Vehicle Checking Robotic Vehicle 
with Monitoring Screen.

SLAF Stn 
Ktk

34
Virtual Firearms Simulator and 
Training System.

No 1 IT 
Wing SLAF 
Rma

Dte of IT

35 UAV R&D Project AR&DW 
Ktk

(4)	 R&D projects funded by CRD in year 2021.

S/No Project Name Directorate

1
Development of an Open Source Intelligence 
System to Enhance the Intelligence Capability of 
Sri Lanka

Dte of IT

2 Development of ADS – B Aircraft Monitoring 
System at SLAF Dte of ETE

3
Development of IP Based Ground to Air 
Communication Monitoring System for 
ADC&CC, SLAF Station Mirigama

Dte of ETE

4 Development of an Indigenous Radar Receiver 
for Indra MK II Radar at SLAF Dte of ETE

5
Acquiring of Real Time Radar Data of Indra 
MK II Radar in SLAF to Main Air Defence 
Operations Centre at Mirigama

Dte of ETE

6
Upgrading of Air Defence Simulator System at 
Air Defence Operations Centre (ADOC)/AD 
Radar Squadrons

Dte of ETE

7 Development of a Bird Repellant Unit for SLAF Dte of ETE

           Table - 61
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S/No Project Name Directorate/
Section

1 School Application Management System Air Sec
2 Aircraft Clock Dte of AE

3 Parachute Accuracy Automatic Measuring 
Device Dy C of S

4 Mobile Jammer Installation and Testing CRD Cell

(5)	 Projects handled by CRD Cell in year 2021.

y.	 Air Force Sport Council.

	 Details of sports achievements during the year 2021 in respect of SLAF is as 	
following,

Type of Game No of Medals
Shooting 04
Athletics 18
Rowing 15
Aquatics 09
Judo 15
Boxing 01
Taekwondo 14
Karate 16
M/Racing 04
Wushu 03
Weightlifting 02
Archery 06

z.	 UN Cell 

(1)	 The details of SLAF personnel deployed for UN peacekeeping 			 
missions in the year 2021.

No of Personnel
South Sudan Central Africa Total

Staff Officers 03 03
Officers 19 38 57
Other Ranks 85 182 267
Total 104 223 327

           Table - 62
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(2)	 The details of Aircraft deploying for UN peacekeeping missions in the year 
2021as follows.

Mission Total of Aircraft
Central Africa 04
South Sudan 03

(3)	 Income Generated Through the Missions - 2021.

 (a)	 Central Africa

Description Received (US $) Receivable(US $)
Flight Hours - 4,510,657.00
Major Equipment/ 
Self-Sustainment

236,730.30 710,190.90

Total 236,730.30 5,220,847.90

Description Received (US $) Receivable(US $)
Flight Hours 913,535.00 344,559.00
Major Equipment/ 
Self-Sustainment

358,890.23 -

Total 1,272,425.23 344,559.00

(b)	 South Sudan

(4)	 Details of the Capital and Recurrent Expenditure at UN Missions.

Type of expenditure Amount (US $)
Capital 548,286.94
Recurrent 574.78

           Table - 65
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2.1.2	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects carried out by the Sri Lanka 
Air Force Academy/ Bases and Stations in island wide.

a.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Base Katunayake in year 
2021 as follows.

S/No Date Programme and place

01 02 & 
03.01.2021

Annual Pirith chanting ceremony & alms giving ceremony to invoke 
blessings for New Year at Base Hq SLAF Base Katunayake.

02 04.02.2021 Tree planting ceremony was conducted at camp premises for 73rd 
Independence Day celebration.

03 2021.03.01 Air Force personnel were participated for “Pichchamal pujawa” at 
Kelaniya Rajamaha Viharaya.

04 02.03.2021 Tree planting project (coconut - 4424) was conducted at camp premises 
for 70th  Air Force Anniversary

05 10.03.2021 Air Force personnel were participated for Flag Blessing Ceremony at 
“Jaya Sri Maha Bodhiya’.

06 11 & 
12.03.2021

Air Force personnel attended to Annual Sri Pada visit and cleanup 
march.

07 25.03.2021 Service personnel attended as cheering element for Inter Unit Hockey 
Championship – 2021 at SLAF TTS Ekala.

08 21.04.2021
Special Security arrangements were made to provide security for the 
procession of priests including Cardinal Malcolm Ranjith and Special 
Mass programme at Katuwapitiya church.

09 18.05.2021 Air Force personnel attended to covid-19 vaccination programme at 
Seeduwa MOH area.

10 26.05.2021 Dry rations were donated to Cancer Hospital Maharagama concurrently 
to celebrating Wesak Full Moon Poya Day by Seva Vanitha Unit. 

11
27.05.2021 

to 
24.06.2021

Employing Service personnel for the beach clearance fatigue in Negambo 
area daily due to the fire incident in Xpress Pearl merchant vessel.

12 24.06.2021 Air Force personnel attended to Blood Donation programme conducted 
by Marisela College Negombo.

13 26.06.2021 Air Force personnel attended to SLAF ‘Ranaviru Commemoration 
Ceremony 2021’ at SLAF TTS Ekala.

14
28.06.2021 

to 
08.07.2021

Employing Service personnel for the beach clearance fatigue in Negambo 
area daily due to the fire incident in Xpress Pearl merchant vessel.

15 02.10.2021
Air Force personnel attended to Blood Donation programme conducted 
by Guruge Nature Park at Ja-Ela.
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b.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Base Ratmalana in year 2021 
as follows.

16 29.10.2021 Air Force personnel participated to special fatigue programme at 
“Hinatiyana Pothgul” temple.

17 31.10.2021 Air Force personnel attended to Blood Donation programme conducted 
by Pttipana Janasandara Hall.

18 08,09 & 
10.11.2021

Dengue preventive programme was conducted at Seeduwa MOH area.

19 17.12.2021 Air Force personnel participated to special fatigue programme at convert 
of the Holy Shepherd in 20th mile post junction.

20 24.11.2021
Installation of an elevated water storage tank with pipeline system and 
two wash basins at St/ Annes M.V., Kurana and the donation of three 
water purifiers to St/ Joseph Home for the Elders at Thammita, Negombo.

21 19.12.2021 Air Force personnel attended to Blood Donation programme conducted 
by Raddolugama Amara Maha Temple.

22 21.12.2021 Air Force personnel participated to special fatigue programme at convert 
of the Holy Shepherd in Negombo (Bolawalana).

S/No Date Description of the project Beneficiaries

01. 11 Mar 21 Conducted a CSR project coinciding 
with the 8th anniversary of the No.1 IT 
Wing by donating Dry Ration Packs to 
families around Ratmalana who were in 
need.

General Public

02. 19 Jun 21 The Covid-19 Data Operation Centre 
was established in No.01 Information 
Technology Wing at SLAF Base 
Ratmalana to collect data on personnel 
being vaccinated at all vaccinated 
Centres throughout the country. 

General Public
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(1)	 Blood Donation Campaign - No 4 Helicopters Squadron organized a blood 
donation campaign in par with the 56th anniversary of No 4 Squadron on 01 Jun 21 at 
sports complex area of SLAF Base Ratmalana.

(2)	 Uplift the basic Infrastructure and sanitary facilities of Sarwodaya Leela 
Jayasekara child development center - To be a helping hand or life line for less 
fortunate children in and around the community that the squadron is based on, due to 
the prevailing pandemic situation squadron personnel could not actively participate 
in physical activity hence the basic ration requirements and supply requirements were 
donated to the above said location as part of a CSR project.

(3)	 Seva Vanitha Unit SLAF Base Ratmalana renovated the library of 
Kothalawalapura Maha Vidyalaya and donated books to the children of the school. 
The Library was handed over to the school on 20 Apr 21.

(4)	 A blood Donation Campaign was held on 16th November 2021 as per the 
directives of Chairperson Seva Vanitha Unit AFHQ. It was concluded with 162 donors 
donating blood to the bold bank.

(5)	 A Shramadana Campaign was held on 18th Oct 21 at Deaf and Blind School 
Ratmalana.
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c.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Base Anuradhapura in year 
2021 as follows.

d.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Base Vauniya in year 2021 
as follows.

(1)	 Repairing of Keerikkulama School.

(2)	 Drinking Water System at Wanni Palugollawa.

(1)	 “Alagalla” Primary School - Renovation of toilets, buildings, and colour 
washing of some buildings. (Project Cost 152,450.00)

(2)	 “Kanugahawewa” Model Village Project as follows.
	 (a)	 Construction of Housing project at Kanugahawewa (Total 25 Houses 	
	 completed).
	 (b)	 Construction of “Sewa Piyasa” at Kanugahawewa.
	 (c)	 Construction of Bus Halt at Kanugahawewa.
	 (d)	 Construction of a school classroom buildings, main hall and 		
	 playground at Kanugahawewa Primary School.
	 (e)	 Construction of “Sewa Piyasa” at Halmillawetiya.
	 (f)	 Constructions and renovations of “Kalagamawehera” Temple at 		
	 Halmillawetiya.
	 (g)	 Construction of MOH Office at Halmillawetiya.
	 (h)	 Construction of Volleyball court at Halmillawetiya.
	 (j)	 Construction of Pagoda, Sangawasaya, Washroom complex, 		
	 Daham Pasal building and Ghantara Kuluna at “Abinawaramaya” Temple 		
	 Kanugahawewa.
	 (k)	 Renovation of “Manawewa” Tank.
	 (l)	 Renovation of “Waraddhana” Tank.
	 (m)	 Construction of drainage system of playground at Kebethigollewa 		
	 Central College is in progress at present.
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e.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Base Hingurakgoda in year 
2021 as follows.

(3)	 “Kudakachchikudiya” Primary School - Renovation of three toilets, classroom 
hall building, partitioning of library building and colour washing of some buildings. 
(The project Cost 107,530.00)

(1)	 Construction of washroom complex of Kahambiliyawa College on 03 Mar 21.
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(2)	 Conducted a fatigue programme at Bodirukkaramaya Temple by No 07 
Squadron on 18 Apr 21.

(3)	 A donation programme conducted for less privileged families by the Base 
hospital for the hospital day on 29 Jun 21.

(4)	 Held a donation programme at Elderly home Madirigiriya on 31 Jul 21.

(5)	 Distribution of dry ration packs for less privileged Tamil families live in Bogas 
Junction on 20 Oct 21.

(6)	 Constructed a washroom complex for Darmapala Bosath orphanage and it 
was declared open by the Base Cmdr SLAF Base Hingurakogoda on 22 Nov 21.
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(7)	 Cleaning Programme of the public road toward to Hingurakdamana on 10 
Dec 21.

(1)	 Jasmin flower poja at Kelaniya Temple.

(2)	 Renovation work and cleaning programme at Victoriya Elders Home.
 2021 as follows.

f.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Colombo in year 
2021 as follows.

g.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Palaly in year 2021 
as follows.

(1)	 Renovating and upgrading the condition of a Praja seva Office at Antonypuram 
Jaffna on 17 Jan 21.

(2)	 ‘Guwan Mithudam’’ project of donating Medical Equipment to Teaching 
Hospital Jaffna on 27 Sep 21.
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(2)	 Opening a wash room complex at “Vidyaloka Vidyalaya Werenketagoda” of the 
SLAF Seva Vanitha Unit.

(3)	 Painting of Female ward at “Divisional Hospital Damana”

(4)	 Blood Donation campaign was conducted at “General Hospital Ampara”

(5)	 Carried out the construction works of the ‘Dhathu Mandiraya’ of the 
‘Deegawapiya’ Temple.

(6)	 An Alms giving ceremony was conducted for 25 Buddhist Monks at ‘Mahawapiya’ 
Temple who were participated for the procession carrying sacred pinnacle and the crest 
gem of “Sandahiru Seya”.

(1)	 Tree planting ceremony was held at the camp area and Shramadana campaign 
carried out at the camp area with participation of all section personnel concurrent with 
National Day Celebration.

h.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Ampara in year 2021 
as follows.
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(7)	 School items were Donated for monks at “Samana Baddha Pirivena”

(8)	 Shramadana campaign carried out at the ‘Buddangala Temple’ with participation 
of airmen.

(9)	 Katina Pinkama was conducted at “Himidurawa Temple”

(10)	 Shramadana campaign was conducted at “Aranthalawa Raja Maha Viharaya” 
with 32nd Station Day.

(11)	 Blood Donation campaign was conducted at “Station Hospital” with 32nd 
Station Day

(12)	 Tree planting program was held at the camp area with participation of all section 
personnel concurrent with 32nd Station Day.
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j.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Palavi in year 2021 
as follows.

(1)	 Construction of a building for a Dispensary for the community of Kandayaya, 
Puttalam under the “Guwan Mithudam” Project.

(2)	 To provide furniture (tables and book racks) for a library at Kalladi G.S 
Division Puttalam.

k.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Iranamadu in year 
2021 as follows.

(1)	 In par with 10th anniversary of Sri Lanka Air Force Station Iranamadu followed 
by Special lunch and donation campaign for the needy children at ‘Triest convent’ 
Ramanadapura on 03 Aug 21.

(2)	 Four medical oxygen cylinder handed over to Office of the Regional Director of 
health Services as a CSR project on 07 Oct 21.

(3)	 Two ration packs has been donated twice a month to low income family who 
had provided drinking water for the servicemen during the initial establishment of 
the SLAF Station Iranamadu in a situation of most of villagers who were living close 
proximity of the camp, had refused to provide drinking water to SLAF from their water 
resources.

(4)	 A quarantine center was set up for the quarantine for the civilian.

(13)	 Distributed no of 32 dry ration packs for 32 poor families who were lived in 
Ampara area to mark the 32nd Anniversary Celebration

(14)	 Distributed School Bags, Books and Stationaries for 32 school children to mark 
the 32nd Anniversary Celebration.

(15)	 Distributed stationaries for selected No of 05 Pre-schools in Ampara Area to 
mark the 32nd Anniversary Celebration.
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l.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Mullativu in year 
2021 as follows.

m.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Batticaloa in year 
2021 as follows.

(1)	 Constructed a School library and donated bookshelves to the Keppapilai Tamil 
Mix School.

(2)	 Renovated a First Aid Room and donated first aid items to Thanniruttu Tamil 
Mix School.

(3)	 Conduced a Blood donation campaign at SLAF station Mullaitivu in connected 
with the District General Hospital Mullayawali.

(1)	 BT/BT Valaiyiravu Methodist Mission Tamil School was renovated and handed 
over on 02 Mar 21.

(2)	 Renovation of “Ghandi Park” in Batticaloa township and handed over to the 
Mayor of the Batticaloa.
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n.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Weerawila in year 
2021 as follows.

(1)	 Shramadana Campaign at Weerawila Maha Vidayalaya - Participated 20 
Airmen for the event on 15 March 2021.

(2)	 Renovation of Bicshu Awasageya - Weharagala Rajamaha Viharaya - This 
Construction work done by the SLAF Staton Weerawila

(3)	 Seva Vanitha Programme at Weerawila Maha Vidayalaya - Renovated the 
main hall and abandoned toilet in view of Guwan Mithudam Project planned by 
Seva Vanitha Unit AFHQ.

(4)	 Constructing of “Dana Salawa” at Weharagala Senasanaya on 11 Nov 21.

p.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Koggala in year 
2021 as follows.
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(1)	 A book donation programme was conducted at Amathayana Primary School, 
Habaraduwa.

(2)	 The renovation works in Occupational Health Centre at Habaraduwa has 
been completed as the CSR project parallel to the 70th SLAF Anniversary.

(3)	 A newly constructed Oxygen Treatment Unit for the COVID-19 at Meepe 
Regional Hospital was handed over to the Medical Staff. During the occasion, a set 
of medical equipment (PPE Kits) was also handed over to the medical staff of said 
hospital.

(4)	 A blood donation programme was conducted to mark the 37th of Station 
Anniversary. The event was conducted in collaboration with the blood bank 
teaching hospital, Karapitiya, Galle.
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(5)	 A “Shramadana Campaign” was conducted at Peellagoda Sumana Jothi Maha 
Vidyalaya, Unavatuna to mark the 37th Station anniversary.

(6)	 A donation programme was conducted at “Somawathi Children Orphanage” 
Habaraduwa.

(7)	 A CSR project was conducted at the Catalina Grill Aircraft premises in 
collaboration with MAS Holding (Pvt) Ltd for the employees who are working at 
MAS Intimates, Koggala with different types of disabilities.

(8)	 Beach cleaning programme was conducted at Koggala beach area.
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q.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Morawewa in 
year 2021 as follows.

(1)	 A New drinking water plant was constructed at Diwulwewa area and the 
newly renovated Yaya 06 Primary School Diwulwewa was declared open by the 
Chairperson of Sava Vanitha Unit Mrs Chamini Pathirana on 29 Mar 21 in liaison 
to the ‘Guwan Mithudam’ project.

(2)	 The opening ceremony of the elephant fence constructed at Kanugahawewa 
Model Village development project was held on 04 Apr 21 in view of the 70th AF 
Anniversary celebrations.

(3)	 Alms giving at Gajaba Len Viharaya on 19 May 21 to commemorate 
national War Hero’s day.

(4)	 A Blood donation campaign was conducted at the Station hospital on 03 
Jun 21.

(5)	 Ration pack donation programmed for religious organization and civilians 
was conducted 12 Jun 21.
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(6)	 Construction of a bell tower at the station temple on 30 Jun 21.

(7)	 A Blood donation campaign was conducted at the Station hospital on 28 Jul 
21 in view of the 48th Anniversary of the Station.

(8)	 A Sharmadhana campaign was conducted at Gajaba Len Viharaya Morawewa 
on 28 Jul 21 in view of the 48th Anniversary of the Station.

(9)	 An Environment cleaning programme was conducted Morawewa Tank on 
28 Jul 21 in view of the 48th Anniversary of the Station.

(10)	 Constructions of a Seva Vanitha house at Morawewa area on 24 Sep 21.

(11)	 A Blood donation campaign was conducted at the Station hospital on 03 Dec 
21.

r.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Mirigama in year 
2021 as follows.

(1)	 Renovate two dilapidated lavatories at Primary School, Bokalagama.

  (2)	 Donation of Stationery items and conducting renovation programme at 
‘Sasanawardana Maha Bodhi Children’s Home at Meerigama.
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(3)	 Donated School Items for Children and Hand Spray Machines for farmers 
in Kithulvela Village by ‘Guwan Mithudam’ Seva Vanitha Programme.

 

 

	 The ‘Guwan Mithudam’ project was conducted by SLAF Stn BIA under 
guidance of the Chairperson Seva Vanitha Unit, Mrs. Chamini Pathirana. During 
this project a set of essential medical equipment was handed over to the Base 
Hospital at Minuwangoda.

(a)	 Oxygen carrier carts			   -	 05 Ea 
(b)	 Non breathable mask (Adult)		  -	 150 Ea 
(c)	 Non breathable mask (Child)		  -	 35 Ea 
(d)	 Venture oxygen mask			   -	 190 Ea 
(e)	 Tea leaves				    -	 40 Kg

s.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Bandaranayaike 
International Airport in year 2021 as follows.

t.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Station Piduruthalagala 
in year 2021 as follows.

(1)	 A Sharamadana campaign was conducted to clean the Gregory lake and its’ 
surrounding area in view of celebrating Formation day of the Station on 05 Jan 21.

(2)	 Tree Planting Campaign around the Gregory lake on 02 Mar 21.

(3)	 An alms giving programme conducted at the Painters Home, Nuwareliya 
in view of celebrating 70th Air Force Anniversary with the participation 
of Commanding Officer, Officers and Airmen of the Station on 04 Mar 21.

(4)	 Seva vanitha Unit of Sri Lanka Air Force Station Piduruthlagala has been 
conducted following programmes at Sri Sumangala Primary School at Kothmale 
on 29 Nov 21.
	 (a)	 Renovation of Class Rooms
	 (b)	 Induction of an electrical wiring system
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u.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Academy China Bay in 
year 2021 as follows.

(1)	 A shramadana programme was conducted at the Revatha Children’s 
Home at 5th mile post on 27 Feb 2021 in celebration of the 22nd formation day of 
JC&SC.

(2)	 An almsgiving programme was conducted on 03rd Mar 21 at Revatha 
Children’s Home at 5th mile post by JC&SC.

(3)	 The library building of the Nalanda Vidyalaya China Bay was renovated 
and handed over to children on 30 March 2021. Further library books also were 
donated to the School. 

(4)	 House of a civil employee of this Academy at Kanthale was renovated 
during the month of June 2021.

(5)	 Conduct a charity programme to distribute hampers consisted of maternity 
essential for 37 pregnant mothers in the area of Kappalthurei on 04 October 2021. 

(6)	 Arms giving for the Revatha Orphanage was conducted on 15 Oct 21 to 
commemorate 12th formation day of No 06 ADRS. 

(7)	 A “Shramadhana” campaign was carried out at “Samudraasanna Temple” to 
commemorate 12th formation day of No 06 ADRS.

(8)	 Distribution of dry ration along with basic requirements was done for the 
Rewatha Children’s Orphanage Trincomalee in parallel to the 28th formation day 
celebration of Ground Training Wing.

v.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Combat Training 
School Diyathalawa in year 2021 as follows.

(1)	 Renovation of Main Bus stand Diayatalawa and Bus stop near the Survey & 
mapping camp on 02 Mar 21.
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(2)	 Adams Peak cleaning programme was held to mark the 70th Air Force day 
anniversary on 12 Mar 21.

(3)	 Sramadana campaign at Diyatalawa Central Collage and Kahagolla national 
School on 14 Oct 21.

w.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Trade Training School 
Ekala in year 2021 as follows.

(1)	 To mark the 70th anniversary of SLAF TTS Ekala distributed school 
books and bags for 325 children at Roman Catholic primary School at Kotugoda. 
In addition to that special gifts were given to 25 special need children. Further, 
renovation of the school building was carried out by SLAF TTS Ekala on 23 Mar 21.

(2)	 Provided 200 lunch packets for Chrismas party of Sri Lanka Association of 
Blind Society Seeduwa on 23 Dec 21.
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x.	 Details of CSR Projects carried out by Sri Lanka Air Force Regiment Training 
School Vanni in year 2021 as follows.

(1)	 Blood donation campaign was held at the Hospital SLAF RTS Vanni for the 
Independence day on 04 Feb 21

(2)	 The opening of renovated ward at Poovarasankulam Hospital was conducted 
to celebrate the 70th anniversary of SLAF on 25 Feb 21

(3)	 Blood Donation programmed was held at the station hospital in collaboration 
with the Blood Bank of Vavuniya on 22 Jul 21

(4)	 “Seva Vanitha Guwan Mithudam Project”, the school building and the 
nursery of the “Sri Krishna Vidyalaya Sinnathampanei” were renovated and handed 
over to the children on 29 Nov 21.
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Strategic Goals Strategic Objectives
Goal 01

To uplift and strengthening 
flying operational apabilities 
of the Sri Lanka Air Force.

Objectives 1.1		 Enhance Air Defence capabilities to enable 
detection, identification and destruction of any air threat within Sri 
Lankan airspace and to engage hostile aircraft over Sri Lankan ADIZ.

Objectives 1.2		 To enhance the existing RADAR coverage by 
positioning additional Radar units at strategic locations to cover the 
gap.

Objectives 1.3		 To enhance the capabilities of AMSCC and 
ADC & CC over the real time information/data management.

Objectives 1.4		 Enhance the capabilities of strategic, 
operational, and tactical Airlift during day/night and in all weather for 
friendly forces and during Military Aid to Civil Authority (MACA) 
operations.
Objectives 1.5		 To enhance of VVIP/VIP transport capabilities.
Objectives 1.6		 To ensure continuous availability of munitions 
for the use of available platforms.
Objectives 1.7		 To regain the air to ground attack capability.
Objectives 1.8		 To upgrade the flying training of SLAF.
Objectives 1.9		 To ensure constant availability of ground 
support services required to ensure serviceability of the fleet.
Objectives 1.10	 To ensure constant availability of ground 
mobility.

Goal 02

To develop strategic and 
tactical aerospace 
surveillance and 
reconnaissance capabilities 
over Sri Lankan territory 
inclusive of the EEZ

Objectives 2.1		 To enhance the existing RADAR coverage by 
positioning additional Radar units at strategic locations to cover the 
gap.
Objectives 2.2		 To acquire all weather, day and night maritime 
reconnaissance capability over the territory of Sri Lanka (inclusive of 
the EEZ).
Objectives 2.3		 Acquisition/ indigenous development of UAVs 
to supplement reconnaissance and surveillance role.
Objectives 2.4		 To enhance the capabilities of BMC and ADC 
& CC over the real time information/data management.

Goal 03

Establishment of EW arm 
and introduction of Network 
Centric Warfare.

Objectives 3.1		 Acquisition airborne and ground based EW 
suit.
Objectives 3.2		 Integration of ground based and airborne 
sensors of SLAF and sister services to improve operational efficiency.
Objectives 3.3		 Establishment of an EW Management Cell for 
overall coordination of SLAF EW activities.

2.2	 The Future Outlook

	 Sri Lanka Air Force has initiated strategic goals and stretegic objectives for reaching goals and 
objectives in the Corporate Plan for the period of 2021-2023 as follows.
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Strategic Goals Strategic Objectives
Goal 04

To provide comprehensive 
force protection for vital Air 
Assets and installations and 
to provide security for VAs 
and VPs.

Objective 4.1		  To develop ground defence capabilities 
through layered protection for SLAF air/ground assets and VAs/VPs 
within SLAF and outside the SLAF when call upon by MOD.
Objective 4.2		  To provide comprehensive ground force 
protection for vital Air Force assets and installations through 
development of Land Based Air Defence systems.

Goal 05

Improvements into 
SLAF airfields to acquire 
redundancy in operations 
during day/ night/ all 
weather.

Objective 5.1		  To provide comprehensive ground force 
protection for vital Air Force assets and installations through 
development of Land Based Air Defence systems.
Objective 5.2		  To develop navigational aids, landing aids, 
firefighting, air traffic controlling and ground support facilities of 
SLAF airfields in accordance with aviation standards.
Objective 5.3		  To improve in-house airfield maintenance 
facilities at respective SLAF airfields.

Goal 06

Maximum exploitation of 
cyberspace while ensuring 
friendly forces’ freedom of 
action in cyberspace and 
denial adversaries its use/
abuse.

Objective 6.1		  Develop competencies for combat cyber 
threats and exploitation of cyber space environment.
Objective 6.2		  Enhance the cyber security measures to 
protect SLAF cyber network and prevent unauthorized access while 
improving the reliability of existing IT services.
Objective 6.3		  To expand cyber warfare infrastructure and 
command structure in order to strengthen the SLAF cyber warfare 
capability.

Goal 07

Maintaining high 
morale and minimize 
absenteeism in SLAF 
through implementation of 
additional welfare measures.

Objective 7.1		  To establish a mechanism to provide financial 
and social security for SLAF members and their immediate families 
and retired personnel.
Objective 7.2		  To improve Administration, Legal and Logistic 
systems of the SLAF with introduction of new concepts, procedures 
and systems.
Objective 7.3		  To improve Medical Services provided for 
SLAF personnel and their immediate family members through 
continuous improvement of medical facilities and services.
Objective 7.4		  To develop professional skills of Air Force in 
par with globally accepted standards.

Goal 08

Optimization of SLAF 
resources in support of 
National Interest

Objective 8.1		  Active participation in Nation building 
programs as and when requested by the government.
Objective 8.2		  Enhancement of UN Peace Keeping role of 
SLAF.
Objective 8.3		  Continue to engage in commercial passenger 
transport operations as a buoy for encouraging private operators.
Objective 8.4		  Enhanced ground mobility to mitigate the 
natural disasters and to support aid to civil power.
Objective 8.5		  Active participation in countering CBRNE 
threats as and when requested by the government.
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Strategic Goals Strategic Objectives
Objective 8.6	              Active participation in assisting government 
during non-traditional security threats as and when requested by the 
government.

Goal 09

To review existing training 
system and procedures of 
SLAF to enhance efficiency 
and improve professionalism

Objective 9.1	             To identify areas to be reviewed and implementation 
of necessary changes.
Objective 9.2		  Standardization of SLAF training in par with 
nationally and globally accepted standards.

Goal 10

Right sized the force 
structure of SLAF, 
revisioning of Recruitment 
Plan and Induction of new 
Technologies

Objective 10.1	            Rightsizing of the SLAF human resources to 
meet the organizational goals and objectives effectively.
Objective 10.2	             To plan the recruitment drives to meet the 
future rightsized organization.

Goal 11

To enhanced the situation 
awareness and operational 
efficiency of SLAF 
through cutting edge ICT 
technologies

Objective 11.1	            Enhance surveillance and reconnaissance 
capabilities with real time target classification and identification.
Objective 11.2	            Develop interface between functional decisions (C2 
and Management Services, intelligence and surveillance, maneuver 
services, logistic services, personnel services and construction 
services) and information core services (Secure platforms, GIS 
services, Information Management, information security, information 
exchange, collaboration services and service management).
Objective 11.3	            Develop a strategic information management 
platform for military operations and communication purpose.
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3.	 OVERALL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 
DECEMBER 2021

3.1	 Statement of Financial Performance

CHAPTER 03
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3.2	 Statement of Financial Position
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3.3 	 Statement of Cash Flow
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3.4	 Summary Analysis of Financial Condition

a.	 Financial Review

		 The SLAF has initially received budgeted provision LKR Mn. 51,604.59 for total 
Defence Expenditure for the year 2021. There were LKR Mn. 5,536.26 supplementary 
provisions granted during the year for additional cost of operation. Hence, the total 
net provision remained as LKR Mn 57,140.85 in the year 2021. The actual total 
Defence expenditure for the year was LKR Mn 41,737.47 which represents LKR Mn 
35,630.58 of recurrent expenditure and LKR Mn. 6,106.89 of capital expenditure. 
However, the total net provision has increased by 29.17% whereas the actual 
expenditure has increased by 2.86% compared to the year 2020. However, Overall 
Defence expenditure in 2021 remained within the total provision voted by Parliament 
and the Control totals set by the Ministry of Finance and Planning of Sri Lanka.

Figure - 1

Table - 1

Comparison of total defence expenditure against previous year

Total Defence 
Expenditure

Year 2021 Year 2020 Variance

Total Net    
Provision

57,140.85 44,236.87 12,903.98

Total 
Expenditure

41,737.47 40,578.62 1,158.85
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Table - 2

Table - 3

Figure - 2

b.	 Financial Performance
		
		 The total aggregated revenue of SLAF for the year 2021 is 
amounting to LKR Mn. 39,537.57 which comprises LKR Mn.10.57 of 
revenue receipts and LKR Mn. 39,527.00 of non-revenue receipts. The total 
aggregated revenue has decreased by 1% as compared to the year 2020.

(1)	 Revenue Receipts

	 The mere revenue receipts of SLAF for the year 2021 are non-tax 
revenue and others. Non-tax revenue only comprises the Aircraft rentals, 
which is originally estimated to LKR Mn. 120.00 at the beginning of the year 
2021. However, during the year the estimated value has been revised to LKR 
Mn. 10.50 at the end of the year 2021, total Aircraft rentals revenue collected 
is recorded at LKR Mn. 10.57.

Total aggregated revenue against previous year

Actual Revenue against the Forecast 

Revenue Year 2021 Year 2020 Variance

Total aggregated 
revenue

39,537.57 39,933.15 395.58

Revenue 
Code

Revised Budgeted 
Revenue for the 
year 2021 (LKR 

Mn)

Actual Revenue 
for the year 2021 

(LKR Mn)

Difference 
(LKR Mn)

20-03-02-16 10.50 10.57 0.07 
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(2)	 Non-Revenue Receipts 

	 The major receipts of SLAF for the year 2021 are non revenue 
receipt amounted to LKR Mn. 39,527.00 This has decreased by LKR 
Mn. 18.20 compared to the year 2020. Non-revenue receipt Consists 
of Treasury Imprests, Deposits and Advanced Account amounting to 
LKR Mn. 39,161.50, LKR Mn. 49.49 and LKR Mn. 316.01 respectively.  

(3)	 Expenditure of SLAF

	 The total expenditure (including main ledger expenditure) of SLAF 
for the year 2021 is amounting to LKR Mn. 42,149.56 which comprises LKR 
Mn. 35,630.58 of Recurrent Expenditures. LKR Mn. 6,106.89 of Capital 
expenditures and LKR Mn. 412.09 of Main Ledger expenditure. Accordingly, 
the total expenditure of SLAF for the year 2021 has increased by 1.82% against 
the previous year.

Figure - 3

Total expenditure of current year and previours year

Expenditure Year 2021 Year 2020 Variance

Actual 
Expenditure

42,149.56 41,111.64 1,037.92

Table - 4
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(4)	 Recurrent Expenditure

	 Recurrent expenditure of SLAF which has been provisioned to LKR Mn 
39,948.10 for the year 2021 which comprises personal emoluments of LKR 
Mn. 30,672.40 and other recurrent charges of LKR Mn. 9,275.70. during the 
year 2021, there were LKR Mn. 20.00 of supplementary provisions granted 
and transfer LKR Mn. 350.00 as per the FR 66 and FR 69. Hence, the total 
net provision was LKR Mn 39,618.10 where as actual expenditure was LKR 
Mn. 35,630.58. The total estimate was expected to be funded through the 
Government allocation. The total estimated expenditure submitted to the 
treasury was in respect of the following expenditure items.

							       LKR (Mn)
Personal Emoluments 				     30,672.40
Other Recurrent Expenses				       9,275.70
Supplementary provision				            20.00
Transferred according to the FR 66 and FR 69	     (350.00)
Revised Recurrent provision				   39,618.10

Figure - 4

Recurrent expenditure of current year and previous year

Recurrent 
Expenditure

Year 2021 Year 2020 Variance

Total Net 
Provision

39,618.10 37,746.70 1,871.40

Total 
Expenditure

35,630.58 36,225.05 (594.47)

Table - 5



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 2021138

(5)	  Capital Expenditure

(a)	 The Sri Lanka Air Force has received provision for the total 
capital expenditure of LKR Mn. 11,656.49 with a view to provide the 
necessary infrastructure facilities, acquisition of capital assets, capacity 
building of servicemen and civil employees. There were LKR Mn. 
5,516.26 supplementary provisions granted and transfer LKR Mn. 
350.00 as per the FR 66 and FR 69. The total capital grant approved by 
the treasury was LKR Mn. 17,522.75. The total net provision for the year 
2021 has Increased by 170% as compared to the year 2020. Accordingly, 
the revised capital provision for 2021 was as follows.

							       LKR (Mn)
Original provision					      11,656.49
Supplementary provision				       5,516.26
Transferred according to the FR 66 and FR 69	       350.00
Total	 						      17,522.75

Figure - 5

Capital expenditure of current year and previous year

Capital 
Expenditure

Year 2021 Year 2020 Variance

Total Net 
Provision

17,522.75 6,490.17 11,032.58

Total 
Expenditure

6,106.89 4,353.57 1,753.32

Table - 6
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(b)	 Further, the actual expenditure of the year 2021 was LKR Mn. 
6,106.89 which has resulted in 40% increase compared to the year 2020.

(c)	 Rehabilitation & Improvement of Capital Assets

	 The SLAF initially forecasted LKR Mn. 3,887.00 for the 
Rehabilitation & Improvement of Capital Assets during the year with 
the view of maintenance of viable asset base and its smooth operation. 
There were LKR Mn. 3,196.26 supplementary provisions granted and 
no transfer as per the FR 66 and FR 69. The actual expenditure of the 
year 2021 was LKR Mn. 4,154.97.

(d)	 Acquisition of Capital Assets

	 The Sri Lanka Air Force initial provision was to acquire fixed 
assets amounting to LKR Mn. 6,174.49 mainly to provide, vehicles, 
furniture and office equipment, plant, machinery and equipment, 
building and structures. The treasury approved an initial allocation 
of LKR Mn. 6,174.49 for acquisition of capital assets. There were LKR 
Mn. 2,175.00 supplementary provisions granted and transfer LKR 
Mn. 350.00 as per the FR 66 and FR 69 resulting net allocation of LKR 
Mn. 8,699.49. The actual expenditure for the year 2021 was LKR Mn. 
1,265.63.

Figure - 6
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(e)	 Capacity Building

	 Under the capital expenditure, Sri Lanka Air Force has original-
ly forecasted LKR Mn. 570.00 for capacity building. The actual expend-
iture for the year 2021 was LKR Mn. 279.41.

(f)	 Other Capital Expenditure

	 Under the capital expenditure, Sri Lanka Air Force has incurred 
an amount of LKR Mn. 406.89 as other capital expenditure against the 
total net provision of LKR Mn. 1,170.00.

(g)	 The expenditure against provisions under categories of 
recurrent expenditure.

Item Description Net Provision 
(LKR Mn)

Expenditure 
(LKR Mn) Variation

Personal emolu-
ments 30,676.40 29,322.35 1,354.05

Other recurrent 8,941.70 6,308.23 2,633.47
Total 39,618.10 35,630.58 3,987.52

           Table - 7

Figure - 7
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(h)	 The Expenditure against provisions (Each object code) under categories of 
capital expenditure in case of annual appropriation accounts.

Object 
Code

Item Description Net Provision 
(LKR Mn)

Expenditure 
(LKR Mn)

Variance 
(LKR Mn)

 Rehabilitations and 
Improvement of Capital Assets    

2001 Building and Structures 200.00 148.93 51.07
2002 Plant, Machinery and equipment 6,708.26 3,927.70 2,780.56
2003 Vehicle 175.00 78.34 96.66

Acquisition of Capital Assets   
2101 Vehicles 3,262.49 370.15 2,892.34
2102 Furniture and Office equipment 107.00 84.15 22.85
2103 Plant, Machinery and equipment 3,485.00 525.69 2,959.31
2104 Building and Structures 1,845.00 285.64 1,559.36

Capacity Building

2401 Staff Training 570.00 279.41 290.59

Other Capital 
Expenditure

2509 Other 1,170.00 406.89 763.11
Total 17,522.75 6,106.90 11,415.85

Table - 8

Figure - 8
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(j)	 Actual against prescribed limits, in case of Advance “B” 
Accounts	

	 Sri Lanka Air Force has one Advance Account for granting 
loans to public officers. During the year 2021, the SLAF has complied 
with the stipulated limits of the Advance Account and operations of 
this account are as follows.

Description

Current Year 
Prescribed 

Limit 
(LKR Mn)

Current Year 
Actual 

(LKR Mn)

Variation 
(LKR 
Mn)

No:22401 Advance Account “B”
Maximum Expenditure 
Limit 400.00 349.78 50.22

Minimum Receipt Limit 290.00 316.01 71.01
Maximum Debit Limit 1,000.00 301.60 Not Ap-

plicable

(k)	 Financial Statements of the SLAF for the year 2021

	 Financial Statements of SLAF for the year 2021 were authorized 
by the Accounting Officer (AO) and the Chief Accounting Officer 
(CAO) respectively on 22nd and 23rd February 2022.

Figure - 9

Table - 9
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3.5	 Notes to the Financial Statements
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3.6	 Performance of the Revenue Collection

	 3.7	 Performance of the Utilization of Allocation

Type of 
Allocation

Allocation Actual 
Expenditure

Allocation 
Utilization as a % 

Final of AllocationOriginal Final

Recurrent 39,948.10 39,618.10 35,630.58 89.94%
Capital 11,656.49 17,522.75 6,106.89 34.85%

           Table - 10

Table - 11

LKR Mn.
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3.8	 In terms of F.R.208 grant of allocations for expenditure to as an agent of the 
other Ministries/ Departments

Serial 
No.

Allocation 
Received 

from which 
Ministry/ 

Department

Purpose of the 
Allocation

Allocation
Actual 

Expendi-
ture

Allocation 
Utilization as 
a % of Final 
Allocation

Original Final

01

Presidential 
Secretariat

Renovation of the 
auditorium of the 
presidential Media 
unit

50.00 50.00 42.49 84.98

02
Purchase of Presi-
dent office instru-
ments

18.00 18.00 4.76 26.47

03 Purchase of data 
canters instruments 2.20 2.20 - -

04 Ministry of 
Buddhasasa-
na, religious 
and cultural 
affairs

Olaboduwa jay-
awardhanarama 
Wiharasthanaya

1.45 1.45 1.45 99.99

05

Kanugahawewa 
Abhinawarama 
Temple Develop-
ment

1.59 1.59 1.51 94.75

06
Ministry of 
Defence

Transfer – Welfare 
Programmes – 
Ranawiru Mapiya

298.82 298.82 298.37 99.85

07
Ministry of 
public ervices, 
Provincial 
councils and 
local govern-
ment

Government Bun-
galow Repair – No 
B 20

0.50 0.50 0.41 82.03

08
Government Bun-
galow Repair – No 
B 20

0.58 0.58 0.10 17.38

09
Department 
of prisons

Prison Head quar-
ters 0.93 0.93 0.67 72.03

10 Bussa Prison – 
CCTV Project 2.50 2.50 2.21 88.47

11
State Ministry 
of women and 
child devel-
opment, Pre- 
Schools and 
primary Edu-
cation, school 
infrastructure 
and education 
services.

Kanugahawewa 
primary school 
development.

1.13 1.13 0.62 54.28

12
Halmillawetiya 
school develop-
ment.

9.01 9.01 7.22 80.13

13
Defence School – 
Colombo 12.50 12.50 11.73 93.84

           LKR Mn.
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14
State Ministry of 
home Affairs

Defence school – 
Colombo (TP & 
Camera)

1.04 1.04 1.00 95.04

15

State Ministry of 
vehicle regulation 
, Bus transport 
services, Train 
compartments and 
motor car industry

Recurrent Transfers – 
Travelling Warrant

105.00 105.00 4.37 4.16

16
Departments of 
pensions

Transfers – Welfare 
programmes (De-
sease Disable Allow-
ance)

507.40 507.40 506.11 99.75

17
Transfers – Welfare 
Programmes (Gra-
tuity)

26.51 26.51 26.51 100.00

	 3.9	 Performance of the Reporting of Non-Financial Assets

Assets 
Code

Code De-
scription

Balance as per 
Board of Sur-

vey Report as at 
31.12.2021

Balance as per 
financial Posi-

tion Report as at 
31.12.2021

Yet to be 
Accounted

Reporting 
Progress as 

a %

9151
Building 
and Struc-
tures

BOS is on progress

14,816.33 Nil 100%

9152
Machinery 
and Equip-
ment

63,740.83 Nil 100%

9153 Land 37,352.46 Nil 100%

9154 Intangible 
Assets - - -

9155 Biological 
Assets - - -

9160 Work in 
Progress 516.52 Nil 100%

9180 Lease Assets - - -

           Table - 12

Table - 13

           LKR Mn.	
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3.10	 Auditor General’s Report

The Summary Report of Auditor General in accordance with Section 11 (1) of the 
National Audit Act, No 19 of 2018 regarding the Financial Reports of Sri Lanka Air 
Force for the period ended 31st December 2021

1.	 Financial Statements	
	
1.1	 Qualified Opinion

The audit of Financial Statement of Sri Lanka Air Force for the period ended from 31st 
December 2021 comprising the Statement of Financial Position as at 31st Dec 2021, 
the Statement of Financial Performance for the period then ended and the Statement 
of Cash Flows has been carried out under my directions in pursuance of provisions in 
Article 154(1) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka 
which should be read in conjunction with the provisions of the National Audit Act, 
No19 of 2018. This report includes my comments and observations with regard to these 
Financial Statements submitted to Sri Lanka Air Force in compliance with section 11(1) 
of the National Audit Act, No 19 of 2018.In terms of Article 154 (6) of the Constitution 
of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka which should be read in conjunction 
with the section 10 of the National Audit Act, No 19 of 2018, the Auditor General’s 
report will be submitted to the Parliament in due course.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of Financial Position of 
Sri Lanka Air Force as at 31st December 2021 and of its financial performance and its 
cash flows for the period then ended in compliance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, excluding the impact of facts mentioned in Para 1.6 of this report. 

1.2	 Basis for the Qualified Opinion

I carried out the audit in pursuance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAS) My 
responsibility in relation to Financial Statements is further described in the section of 
Auditor’s Responsibility in this report. I believe the audit evidences that I have obtained 
are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

1.3	 The responsibility of the Chief Accounting Officer and the Accounting Officer in 
relation to Financial Statements 

In compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and as per the provisions 
made under section 38 of National Audit Act, No19 of 2018, it is the responsibility of 
the Accounting Officer to ensure effective internal control which requires to enable the 
preparation of Financial Statements as reflecting a true and fair view and the preparation 
of Financial Statements free from material misstatements whether due to fraud and 
errors. As per section No 16 (1) of National Audit Act, No 19 of 2018, and Sri Lanka Air 
Force shall properly maintain books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets 
and liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to be prepared.
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As per subsection 38 (1) (c ), the Accounting Officer shall ensure that an effective 
internal control system is being carried out for the financial control of Sri Lanka Air 
Force and shall carry out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of the system 
and accordingly shall make any alternations as required for the system to be effectively 
carried out. 

1.4	 Auditor’s responsibility for the audit of Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud and error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

In accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, I exercised professional judgment 
and maintained professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

•	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement is higher than for one 
resulting from fraud, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, or 
the override of internal control.
•	 Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but No purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.
•	 Evaluating the fair and appropriate presentation of transactions and events 
underlying the structure and the content of Financial Statements, that included 
disclosures.
•	 Fair and appropriate presentation of transactions and events underlying the 
presentation, structure and content of the financial statements as a whole, had been 
evaluated.

The Accounting Officer had been informed regarding the significant findings, main 
internal control defects and other findings identified by my audit.

1.5	 Report on other legal requirements

As required by section 6 (d) of the National Audit Act, No 19 of 2018, I state the 
following.

a.	 Financial Statements were consistent with last year,
b.	 Following recommendations given by me in relation to financial statements of 
previous year had not been implemented.
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Para Ref

154.6 0f 
Report
2019
3.6(b) 

154.6 0f 
Report
2020
1.5(b)

Audit Observation

In terms of Para No 5 of Sri Lanka Air Force 
Order No852 of 30 Nov 2011, internal funds 
had been commenced in the Air Force Head-
quarters, Bases/Stations and Units. Physical 
and human resources of Sri Lanka Air Force 
had been utilized for the operations of these 
funds and for the income generated projects 
operated through these funds.  Since these in-
ternal funds were not commenced as statuto-
ry funds in terms of Financial Regulation No 
154, it was observed that the functions of these 
funds were not under the control of the treasury 
and the parliament.

In terms of Para No 5 of Sri Lanka Air Force 
Order No852 of 30 Nov 2011, internal funds 
had been commenced in the Air Force Head-
quarters, Bases/Stations and Units. Physical 
and human resources of Sri Lanka Air Force 
had been utilized for the operations of these 
funds and for the income generated projects 
operated through these funds.  Since these in-
ternal funds were not commenced as statuto-
ry funds in terms of Financial Regulation No 
154, it was observed that the functions of these 
funds were not under the control of the treasury 
and the parliament.

Recommendation

As per the orders given at 
the meeting of Committee 
on Public Accounts held on 
24th June 2016 and in terms 
of the provisions made in 
the Constitution of Demo-
cratic Socialist Republic of 
Sri Lanka, it is mandatory 
to prepare a mechanism to 
regularize parliamentary su-
pervisions in relation to the 
operations of income gener-
ated projects.

As per the orders given at 
the meeting of Committee 
on Public Accounts held on 
24th June 2016 and in terms 
of the provisions made in 
the Constitution of Demo-
cratic Socialist Republic of 
Sri Lanka, it is mandatory 
to prepare a mechanism to 
regularize parliamentary su-
pervisions in relation to the 
operations of income gener-
ated projects.

1.6	 Comments on Financial Statements

1.6.1	 Statement of Financial Performance

1.6.1.1	Revenue Receipts

Following observations are made in this regard. 

(a)	 Omissions

A total of Rs. 3,301,895 from 06 receipts relevant to hire charges of aero planes earned 
during the reviewed year had not been accounted.
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(b)	 Understate

Though the total income earned as hire charges of aero planes for revenue code 
20.03.02.16 was Rs.13, 402,123 as per the records of Helitours that had been accounted 
as Rs.10, 574,308 in Annual Financial Statement (ACA-F form). Accordingly a total of 
Rs. 2,827,815 had not been accounted for revenue during the reviewed year.

(c)	 Other Observations

(i)	 Though the Revenue Accounting Officer should take special provisions 
as per 128(2) e of Financial Regulations in collecting arrears of revenue which 
should be received to the Government without any delay, total of Hire Charges 
revenue of the Aero planes of Sri Lanka Air Force that had been in arrears was 
Rs. 12, 674,073 at the end of reviewed year from 10 State Institutions and 02 
Private Institutions with a delay of a  period ranging 3 to 18 years.

(ii)	 However, in spite of the secretary to the Ministry of finance had been 
ordered at the committee meeting for Public Finance which was held on 21st 
June,2018  to call upon relevant secretaries and take measures to recover 
the dues for Sri Lanka Air Force, and unrecoverable arrears of Government 
revenue cannot be considered as losses and damages as per 102(2) d of 
Financial Regulations and for waiving off the charges due to Government , 
empowered officer should be satisfied that the amount due is irrecoverable and 
cannot as per  no.113 of Financial Regulations , but against all those terms, 
measures had been initiated to waive off Rs.5,875,298 out of releveant amount 
of arrears considering that amount as a loss to the Government. Accordingly, 
preliminary reports had been prepared under FR104 (3) which is bearing no. 
SLAF/R.603/22665/P dated 05th January 2022 for losses.

1.6.2 Statement on Financial Situation

1.6.2.1 Non Financial Assets

Following observations are made in this regard

(a)	 Although expenditure for acquisition of capital assets included in capital 
expenditure as per Financial Performance Statement of the year under review was RS. 
1,265,628,114 , that amount had been mentioned as , Rs. 935,582,119 as expenditure 
for acquisition of Non Financial Assets in the year in ACA 6 form.
Accordingly, purchasing and acquisition of Non Financial Assets amounting Rs.330, 
045,995 had not been recorded in the above Statement 

(b)	 The balance of Rs. 929,278,775 which was for unfinished work as at 31st 
December 2020 as per ACA 6 form had not been brought forward as the opening 
balance of the reviewed year. 
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(c)	 Though original cost deductions applicable for updated valuation of lands 
should be expurgated through “transfers”, total of Rs. 329,000,000 had been recorded in 
ACA 6 form as disposal. Accordingly, a culpable disclose as disposal of land had been 
revealed through the form.

(d)	 Although, the original cost of Rs. 20,594,200 for 08 buildings which were 
demolished a at the end of reviewed year should be expunged from the balance of 
buildings in ACA 6 form, that had been included in buildings final balance existed as 
at 31st December, 2021. Accordingly, assets which do not physically exist had been 
revealed through ACA 6 form.

(e)	 If there is no fraud or defect in the existing procedure as per 108(i) d(ii) of 
Financial Regulations, power has been vested to Chief Accounting Officer with regard 
to damages with a value of not more than Rs. 1000,000 and at the instances when the 
Chief Accounting Officer does not have authority as per F.R.108(3), those damages  
should be reported to Treasury and should obtain orders to take measures with regard 
to existing damages. However, during the years 2018/2019/2020 without obtaining the 
authority which should be obtained for 08 buildings with a total cost of Rs20, 594,200 
had been demolished against those terms.

1.6.2.2.	 Non Availability of Evidence for Auditing

Following observation is made in this regard.

(a)	 A register had not been maintained for recording loan balances of personnel 
who had transferred out , who had transferred in, deceased, retired and had vacated 
their posts. Accordingly, it was unable to corroborate arrears of loan balances amounting 
Rs. 9,707,517 which had been existed for more than 05 years through audit.

2.	 Financial Review

2.1	 Revenue Management

(a)	 Though the Accounnting Officers should take measures to prepare Revenue 
Estimates in a proper and accurate manner when preparing Revenue Estimates as per 
85(1) (c) of Financial Regulations, Revenue Estimates under revenue code no. 20-03-
02-16 for Hire Charges revenue of the aero planes in reviewed year as well as during  
past 05 years period had been abated and revised from a 33 percent to 91 percent, when 
preparing Revenue Estimates.  It has been observed that, abatements of estimates in the 
reviewed year were 91 percent when compared with past 05 years.

(b)	 As per revenue code no. 20-03-02-16 - Earning of Hire Charges revenue of the 
aero planes, there was an adverse condition of gradual decline in net annual earnings 
of Sri Lanka Air Force from 2016 to the year under review. That had been varied with 
adverse abatement as 24 % to 94 % when compared with 2016.
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2.2	 Expenditure Management

Following observations are made in this regard.

(a)	 Accounnting Officers should take measures to prepare Estimates completely 
and accurately as possible when preparing Estimates as per 50(ii) of Financial 
Regulations. However,due to not following those it had been required to obtain 
addititional allocations through supplementary estimates and  had to get transfers of 
allocations under FR 66 and FR 69. Accordingly, original estimated limit of 2 recurrent 
object clases and 4 capital object classes had get increased from 3.9 percent to 140 that 
is Rs. 7,000,000 to Rs. 3,196,256,600 through supplementary estimates.

(b)	 Transfers under FR 66/69 had done for 6 object classes from Rs. 4,000,000 to 
363,000,000 that is within a range of 4.9 percent to 39.

(c)	 As per FR 74 when applying for supplementary provision the Head of the 
Department shall submit a report indicating the nature and extent of the service, the 
total cost thereof, and the amount of additional financial provision required after 
identifying them as well as the amount of provisions necessary for further expenditure 
on the same service during the rest of the financial year should be obtained as per 78(3) 
e (ii) of Financial Regulations. However, as measures were taken against those terms 
and due to requesting supplementary provisions without identifying them accurately, 
02 supplementary provisions amounting Rs. 3,820, 256,600 had been cancelled and 
had obtained supplementary provisions amounting total value of Rs.1,810,256,600 at 
the end of the reviewed year, that is at 3o th December 2021. Therefore, supplementary 
provisions amounting Rs.2, 010,000,000 had been adversely abated as at the end of year 
under review.

(d)	 Action Plan and a Procurement Plan should be prepared according to the 
annual Estimate and those plans should be implemented after requesting the Imprest 
accordingly. However, due to not utilizing the provision received for objective tasks 
Rs.9,940,088,786 that is 49 percent out of total provision of Rs.20,488,316,600 had been 
utilized for 10 capital object classes and 07 recurrent object classes out of 17 object 
classes.

(e)	 Total provision of Rs. 3,705, 500, 000 for 06 capital object classes had been 
remained 100 percent without utilizing. Out of that provision of Rs. 1,231, 500, 000 
for 04 object classes was obtained through Annual Estimate while provision of Rs. 
2,474,000,000 for 02 object classes was obtained through supplementary provision.

2.3	 Certifications to be done by Accounting Officers

Although certifications should be done regarding the following facts by Accounting 
Officers as per the provisions made under section 38 of National Audit Act, No19 of 
2018, measures had not been taken in that regard.



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 2021153

The Chief Accounting Officer and the Accounting Officer shall ensure that an effective 
internal control system is being carried out for the financial control of Sri Lanka Air 
Force and shall carry out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of the system 
and accordingly shall make any alternations as required for the system to be effectively 
carried out. Those reviews should be done in writing and forward to Auditor General, 
but statements for carrying out such a review had not been provided for the audit.

2.4	 Non Compliance with Legal Regulations

2.4	 Issuing and Settling Advances

Following observations are made in this regard. 

(a)	 There was an arrears of loan balance amounting Rs. 15,738,441 in Public 
Officers’ Advance ‘B’ account as at 31st December, 2021 and 96 percent out of total 
amount of arrears of loan balances that is Rs.15, 048,421 was due from civil personnel.

(b)	 Though measures should be taken to recover balances of advances to be 
recovered from officers who had vacated their posts from guarantors or heirs in terms 
of section 4 of chapter xxiv of Establishment Code, without following those terms 
balances of loans amounting Rs. 15,738,441 to be recovered from civil personnel 
who had deceased/retired/vacated their posts had been recorded as outstanding loan 
balances and out of that amount existed for more than 05 years was Rs.9,717,517.

Legal Reference

Financial Regulations of
Democratic Socialist 
Republic of Sri Lanka

(i)128 1 (a)

(ii) 231(1)

Observation

Accounting Officer should take measures to determine charg-
es due to Government accurately. However, when charging rent 
from 316 officers quarters at Air Force Base Rathmalana, rent 
had been charged for previous valuation made by Department 
of Valuation for which the validity period for the assessed value 
had expired for more than 05 years.

Although, all the details should be recorded so as to be able 
to check the accuracy  without looking at any other document 
as much as possible, the total amount of Rs.4,566,882 which 
was paid under the vote no.224-1-2-1230  Officers’ Mess at 21 
occasions for hospitality expenditure during the reviewed year 
against those terms.



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 2021154

2.5	 Operating Bank Accounts

When scrutinizing bank statements as at 31st December 2021 there were  unidentified deposits 
amounting a total of  Rs.281,561,099(US$1,393,866.83) for 05 instances in Foreign currency 
account of Bank of Ceylon and out of that deposit of Rs.53,418,900 (US$264,450)had not been 
identified even as at 25th March 2022.

3.	 Operational Review

3.1	 Procurements

Following observations are made in this regard.

(a)	 For providing hotel accommodations to local/foreign officers for 70th 
anniversary of Sri Lanka Air Force, Rs. 5,256,426 had paid from SLAF Command 
Welfare Fund and later that was reimbursed from LAF head. However this service 
supply had made without following the tender procedure. Therefore, it was unable to 
verify through audit that whether service had been gained at a minimum cost as per 
1.2.1(a) of Procurement guide Line.

(b)	 Although, revision of Total Cost Estimate should be approved by the authority 
as per 4.3.3 of Code of Government Procurement Guidelines, due to not preparing 
original cost estimate amounting Rs.900,000 when purchasing a Diathermy machine 
worth Rs. 1,125,000 for Guwanpura hospital on 20th July, the amount was revised 
as Rs.1,125,000 only with the approval of the president of  procurement committee 
without not getting the approval of committee members.

(c)	 From 2004 to 2014 in 64 parts of aeroplanes had been sent overseas in 37 
occasion for repairing and paid value of  US$ 53600, US$ 130,525.28, US$ 91,821.80 
respectively with total value of  Rs.153,183,110.16 (US$ 758,347.08)as new purchase 
value/repair value/debris value and 07 aeroplane parts of which value had not been 
mentioned and those spare parts of aircrafts had not been returned to Sri Lanka Air 
Force for a period ranging 07 year to 17 years but, follow up action had not been taken 
in that regard.

3.2	 Assets Management

Following observations are made in this regard.

(a)	 Fuel dispensing pump machine which was purchased on 22nd September 2022 
for Rs.500, 000 by stores section of Air Force Base camp Katunayaka, had been kept in 
the stores without using nearly 05 years. The warranty period of said machine was also 
expired on 22nd September 2018 that is after 02 years from the date of purchase.

(b)	 Although, the vehicles identified to be disposed should be disposed year by year 
as per the provisions of chapter 12 of Public Finance circular bearing no.02/205 dated 
15th July, against those terms there were 61 vehicles at Vehicles Repair and Disposal 
unit of Air Force Base Katunayaka had not been disposed with a delay of 06 years.
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(c)	 There were 37 officers’s quarters under Air Force Base Katunayake were 
in Dilapidated and uninhabitable condition for a period of 02 months to 11 years. 
Accordingly, due to dilapidation of officers’s quarters there was a loss of Rs. 5,718,900 to 
the Government as house rent due to not providing those houses repaired while there 
were 102 officers at the waiting list.

3.3	 Bonds and Liabilities

Following observations are made in this regard. 

(a)	 Although the maximum limit of liabilities that can be reached for object class 
no. 224-1-3-1205 was Rs. 135,240,833 as per F.R.94(2) according to the statement of 
liabilities provided by no.(iv) of Financial Statement, the value of Bonds and Liabilities 
of that was Rs.393,875,916. Accordingly, reached to Bonds and Liabilities exceeding 
maximum limit of liabilities by Rs.258,635,033.

(b)	 Out of the contracture value of US $49,570,057 which is for the agreement of 
Defence Secretary with the foreign institution named Israel Aerospace Industries Ltd., 
Signed on 02nd May, 2021 for repairing 05 Kafirs payment had been made for US $ 
7,435,508 that is Rs.1,509,408,124 in the year under review and the balance liability of 
US $ 42,134,549 as at 31st December, 2021 that is Rs. 8,511,178,898 (value for that date) 
was not include in the Statement of Bonds and Liabilities.

3.4	 Losses and Damages

Following observations are made in this regard. 

(a)	 Although losses and damages to be recovered or to be written off should be 
revealed through Statement on Losses and Waiving off (Losses under F.R.106/113) of 
Annual Financial Statement to be submitted as per note (i) of no.06 in State Accounts 
Guidelines no.2021/03 of Director General of State Accounts dated 26th November 
and against that term, total of Rs. 386,194,141 related to 154 incidents to be recovered 
or to be written off which were born due to operational activities of Sri Lanka Air 
Force as at 31st December 2021 of the reviewed year had not been recorded in Annual 
Financial Statement.

(b)	 Losses and writing off worth Rs. 105,255,389.93 bearing no.MI-17(SMH-4415) 
under Damages and Losses (ii) for which approval had been granted by the Secretary 
to General Treasury under F.R.109 on 21st October, 2022 had not been recorded in the 
statement of Writings off under F. R. 109. 

3.5	 Non Economic Transactions

It is revealed that tires and tubes purchased from 1999 to 2014 are remained with a 
delay of 7 to 22 years in stores as Sri Lanka Air Force presently does not have vehicles 
using unit 198 tires that had been purchased as well as purchasing tires unnecessarily, 
exceeding the limit without conducting a proper study.
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3.6	 Management deficiencies

Following observations are made in this regard. 

(a)	 When comparing physical balance of 04 items of fuel on 06th December 2021 
in Fuel unit of Sri Lanka Air Force Bae, katunayaka with the balance in computer 
software system(EPASS) to that date, the stock balance had been overstated adversely 
for 222944 litres worth total value of Rs.29,451,200  that is 48 percent to 1137 percent  
due to not entering fuel stocks which are issued for credit to computer sytem.

(b)	 Accounnting Officer should take measures to acertain fees to be received to the 
Government accurately and recover them completely as per F.R.128(1)(b). However 
, against those terms, when renting out 11 Government buildings  at Air force Base 
Katunayaka, to external parties and,though chief valuer of Government had valued the 
monthly rental with regard to 11 buildings, due to taking measures for crediting part 
of contractual value as Government revenue and the rest as Non Public Fund as per 
the instructions isuued by the letter bearing no. SLAF/236/Accounts and dated 06th 
June 2018 of Deputy Administrative Director(Accounts) of the Board of Administraive 
Directors, which was addressed  to Commanding Officer, the Government had lost 
total revenue of Rs. 11,3333,650  during January to December, 2021.According to 
details mentioned above, there was a loss of Rs.263,000 to the Government in relation 
to 04 buildings at Air Force camp, Colombo due to not crediting total contractual value 
based on assesed  revenue on rent in 2021.

(c)	 It is mentioned that the validity period of valuation report of Chief Valuer of the 
Government Department of Valuation bearing No. CM/CMC/RP/666,668,669 dated 
10th June, 2016 with regard to rent out  buildings at Colombo station of Sri Lanka Air 
Force for external parties will expire after 3 years and accordingly, without carrying out 
another valuation on building rent after 10th June, 2016 with a delay of 06 years,  rent 
had been charged  for those buildings.

(d)	 As per Government valuation in relation for renting out restaurant building of 
Sri Lanka Air Force headquarters while the market price of the rent had been valued 
to Rs. 115,000, there was a loss of revenue amounting Rs.1, 200,000 to the Government 
in 2021, because the contract had signed as monthly Rs. 7500 for Government Fund 
and Rs.7500 for Non Public Fund and therefore credited less amount worth Rs.100, 000 
disadvantageously to the Government.
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4.	 Human Resources Management

4.1	 Expenditure for the Strength, Actual Cadre and Personal Emoluments

Approved cadre for commissioned officers at the end of reviewed year was 2557 and there 
were 316 vacancies. Approved cadre for Non - Commissioned officers (Other Ranks) was 34, 
381 and out of that there were 3829 vacancies. Maximum number of vacancies that were 2602 
for the ranks of Leading Air Craftman and  Air Craftman from other ranks.

Signed
P. L. K. Perera
Additional Auditor General
For Auditor General
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4.	 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

4.1	  Performance indicators of the Sri Lanka Air Force 
(Based on the Action Plan)

S/No Specific Indicators
Actual output as a percentage (%) of the 

expected output
100% - 90% 75% - 89% 50% - 74%

01
To take quick decision marking by the 
higher command during emergencies 
situation.

√ - -

02 Enhance the maritime SAR and 
reconnaissance in Colombo FIR by 50%. - - √

03 Maintain the maritime SAR and 
reconnaissance in Colombo FIR. √ - -

04

Reduce pilot fatigue by 40%.
Reducing of the operational mission 
risk.
Increasing of operational efficiency by 
50%.

- - √

05 Sustaining of two (02) Aviation 
Contingents in United Nations. - - √

06 Sustaining the helicopter lift capability 
at 100%. √ - -

07
Enhance the helicopter training fleet 
by 200% to meet the demand of SLAF 
training requirement.  

- - √

08 Acquiring of 04  Bell 206 J/R helicopters. - - √
09 Overhaul of 4 x AN-32b aircraft. - √
10 Upgrade of Qty-05 Kfir aircraft. - - √

11 No of training sorties carried out using 
NDB by SLAF aircraft. √ - -

12 No of operational sorties carried out 
using ADDF by SLAF. √ - -

13 No of personnel training. √ - -

14 Enhancing of the maritime surveillance 
capability by 75%. √ - -

15 No of indigenous UAVs manufactured. √ - -

16 Purchase of short range drones with 
high endurance and multiple payload. √ - -

17 Purchase of short range commercial 
drones to replace the fleet. - - √

18 Training of personnel for drone ops. √ - -

CHAPTER 04
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S/No Specific Indicators
Actual output as a percentage (%) of the 

expected output
100% - 90% 75% - 89% 50% - 74%

19 Repairing of drones, bugging devices 
and cameras. √ - -

20

Enhance the existing AD system 
inducting with new drone defence 
system to protect VVIP/VIP and VA’s/
VP’s from drone threats.

√ - -

21
Protect VA’s/VP’s and VVIP/VIP from 
asymmetric drone threats and enable 
free drone threat areas.

√ - -

22
Improve firing skills of AD gunners to 
engage with hostile air objects effectively 
and efficiently.

√ - -

23

Maintain munitions stocks for defence 
purposes and improve firing skills of 
AD gunners to engage with hostile air 
objects effectively and efficiently.

√ - -

24 No of Personnel trained. - - √

25 No of modern combat equipment 
acquired. - √ -

26
Fully fledged AFCW and CMW can be 
used for runway and other supporting 
improvements and developments.

- - √

27 To improve Fire and Rescue Service. - - √
28 Cyber Operational capability. - √ -

29
Available of all essential Medical items 
(Drugs and Dressing) at SLAF Hospitals 
and Medical Center.

√ - -

30
Available of all essential Medical 
Equipment at SLAF Hospitals and 
Medical centers.

√ - -

31 1.No of Basic courses passed out from 
PTTS SLAF Academy Cby. √ - -

32 2.No of Advanced courses passed out 
from PTTS SLAF Academy Cby. √ - -

33 3.No of Cadet courses passed out from 
GTW, SLAF Academy Cby. √ - -

34 4.No of Instructors passed out. √ - -

35
Purchase of Capital equipment and 
instruments to be used for SLAF Dental 
centres evaluation through.

- √ -

36 Establishing 02nd Programme Band. - - √
37 Establishing 02nd Rock Band. - - √

38 Increase welcome Dance and Bagpipe 
teams. - - √
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S/No Specific Indicators
Actual output as a percentage (%) of the 

expected output
100% - 90% 75% - 89% 50% - 74%

39 Establishing 2nd Dance Band. - - √

40 Increase of issuing the Non Distress 
Loans payment for serving personnel. √ - -

41

Insurance Coverage for Human resource 
Insurance Coverage for aircrafts and 
Maintenance and Administrative 
expenses.

√ - -

42
To engage experienced and skilled 
service personnel to nation building 
projects as and when qualified.

- - √

43 No of training and coordination 
activities  conducted. - - √

44 No of adequate personnel trained. √ - -

45 No of outside meetings/ conferences/ 
workshops participated. √ - -

46 Acquiring of combat equipment. - √ -
47 No of personnel trained. √ - -

48 No of meeting/ conference/workshops 
attended. √ - -

49 Acquiring of combat equipment. - √ -

50 Imprest allowance for intelligence 
operation. √ - -

51 Obtaining pilot Insurance. √ - -
52 Obtaining Aircrew Insurance. √ - -
53 Obtaining cabin crew Insurance. √ - -
54 Obtaining Fire Fighter Insurance. √ - -
55 Obtaining Air surveillance Insurance. √ - -

56 Introducing Automated Performance 
Appraisal system for other rankers. - √ -

57 Automation of Records of Leave for 
other rankers. √ - -

58
Introducing Refresher training for 
Instructors of Admin Assistants and 
Accounts Assistants bi-annually.

- - √

59 To arrange NVQ level for Advanced 
Course in both Trades. - √ -

60
Introducing new pay roll automated 
system to improve working environment 
of Accounts Assistants.

√ - -

61 Updating of details available on the 
HRMIS (Officers) √ - -
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S/No Specific Indicators
Actual output as a percentage (%) of the 

expected output
100% - 90% 75% - 89% 50% - 74%

62
Modifications of HRMIS (Officers) with 
new fields and plan to inter-link with 
other relevant parties 

√ - -

63
Scanning of Personal Files of Officers to 
ensure security and easy access to create 
a paperless working environment. 

- √ -

64 Delivery of Officers’ F.1250 to respective 
AF Establishments before expiry √ - -

65

Granting access to OCPSs/OCAs, O I/
Cs P2 and P2 Admin Assistants to view 
HRMIS (Officers) at AF Establishment 
level. 

- - √

66 To review all syllabus. - - √

67 Introduce an e-leaning training for 
JC&SC and NCO Management course. - - √

68
Plan to offer placement for foreign arm 
forces NCOs to NCO Management 
course.

- √ -

69 Upgrading the network bandwidth. - - √

70 Installation of smart monitoring 
equipment. √ - -

Table - 1
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5.	 PERFORMANCE OF THE ACHIEVING SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS 
(SDGS) 

CHAPTER 05

Goal Principle Targets Strategies Targets/ Indi-
cator

Physical progress in 
2021

Progress of the 
Achievement of year 

2021
0% - 
49%

50% - 
74%

75% -
100%

Goal 03

Ensure 
healthy 
lives and 
prmote 
well-being 
for all at 
all ages.

3.4 Reduce 
premature 
deaths by one 
third which are 
caused by non-
communicable 
diseases, through 
treatments 
and preventive 
methods and 
improving 
mental health 
and well being by 
2030.

5.  Conducting 
Covid- 19 
treatment centres.

v. Providing 
Inten-sive 
Treatment unit 
facilities.

e. Number of 
psychiatric inpatients 
in Covid 19 
intermediate centres 
- 6500

f. Percentage of 
construction 

√

√

6. Establishing 
New Army 
Hospitals.

vii. Establishing 
New Air Force 
Hospitals.

g. Number of 
beneficiaries 

√

3.5 Taking 
measures to 
prevent using 
liquor in harmful 
manner and 
prevention of 
using dangerous 
drugs and 
strengthening 
treatments for 
those.

7. Prevention of 
drug trafficking

i. Conducting 
illicit drug raids.

a. Number of annual 
raids on drugs – 
1,731

b. Quantity of drugs 
raided annually
Ice – 992.15g
Heroin – 2,542.19g
Cannabis – 35.531Kg
Cannabis plants – 
62,824
Illicit liquor – 
29,356.51 Ltr
Foreign liquor – 
1,105.75 Ltr
Illicit cigarettes – 
276,730
Drug tablets – 1,608
Mawa – 1,130g
Pills - 647

c. Quantity of 
drugs apprehended 
annually - 470 

d. Number of 
persons rehabilitated 
annually. - No 
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Goal Principle Targets Strategies Targets/ Indi-
cator

Physical progress 
in 2021

Progress of the 
Achievement of year 

2021
0% - 
49%

50% - 
74%

75% -
100%

Goal 04

Ensure in-
clusive and 
equitable 
quality ed-
ucation and 
promote 
lifelong 
learning op-
portunities 
for all

4.4 Raising the 
number of youths 
and adults who are 
skilled and having 
technological 
and professional 
qualifications for 
good jobs and 
entrepreneurship in 
considerable number 
by 2030.

1. Fostering 
human resource 
knowledge and 
skills

i. Training of 
Employees in 
Sri Lanka Air 
Force.

a. Number 
of employees 
trained.
Trained officers 
– 139
Trained Airmen 
– 204

b. Number 
of training 
programmes – 75

c. Number of 
programmes  
covered

Goal 09

Build 
resilient in-
frastructure, 
promote in-
clusive and 
sustainable 
industri-
alization 
and foster 
innovation

9.1 Development of 
infrastructure with 
high quality that is 
resilient for disasters 
and reliable and 
sustainable
including 
infrastructure of 
zonal and National 
boundaries Paying 
attention for ability 
of all can enter and 
obtain for economic 
development 
and human good 
existence.

1. Strengthening 
and making 
efficient the   
management/  
administration 
structure of 
institutions 
connected with 
National Security.

xii.  Purchasing 
o4 used heli-
crafts.

xiii. 
Manufacturing 
Observation 
crafts that can 
fly 100km by 
Air Force.

u. Number of heli-
crafts purchased.

v.  Number 
of aircrafts  
manufactured - 03

√

Goal 15

Protect, 
restore and 
promote 
sustaina-
ble use of 
terrestrial 
ecosystems, 
sustainably 
manage 
forests, 
combat de-
sertification, 
and halt and 
reverse land 
degradation 
and halt 
biodiversity 
loss.

15.2 Managing 
all kind of forests 
sustainably, 
promoting, prevent 
destroying forests, 
restoring destroyed 
forests and develop 
planting forests in an 
international level by 
2020.

1. Active 
contribution of 
Air Force for 
Increasing the 
present forest 
cover of 27% to 
32% by 2030

i.     Seed 
bombing to 
increase crop 
cover

a. Number of seed 
bombs dropped. – 
245,000

b. Extent of land 
covered – 230 
acres

√
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Goal Principle Targets Strategies Targets/ Indi-
cator

Physical progress 
in 2021

Progress of the 
Achievement of year 

2021
0% - 
49%

50% - 
74%

75% -
100%

Goal 16

Promote 
peaceful and 
inclusive 
societies for 
sustainable 
develop-
ment, pro-
vide access 
to justice for 
all and build 
effective, 
account-
able and 
inclusive 
institutions 
at all levels.

16.a Strengthening 
the capacity of 
National Institutions 
of  all countries 
specially developing 
countries  for 
preventing violation 
and eliminating 
crimes and  
terrorism by 
obtaining 
international 
cooperation,

1.	
Deploying teams 
of Special Task 
Force covering 
all the places 
and confirm 
the security of 
relevant areas and 
conducting raids 
and searches in 
selected place.

i. special 
operations 
conducted 
with the 
coordination 
of police and 
other armed 
forces.

a. Number of 
raids conducted. 
- No

b. Number of 
special security 
programmers 
implemented. – 07

c.    Number of 
coast guards 
deployed covering 
the coastline.

d. Annual drone 
operations
Surveillance drone 
operations during 
the time that 
travel restriction 
prevailed -156
Traffic congestion 
monitoring drone 
mission - 169

√

2.	 Making 
tri forces prepared 
for assistance 
in any case of 
emergency with 
regard to internal 
security.

i.	
Acquiring 
weapons/
aircrafts/ships 
etc. of Tri 
Forces.

a.   Number 
of weapons/ 
aircrafts/ ships 
acquired.
Wepons – 19
Bullets – 2,349

b.   Units with 
improved Drone 
Cameras with 
Advanced 
Technology - 08

√

ii. Providing 
special 
trainings

c. Training 
workshops 
conducted for 
developing 
cooperation with 
friendly countries.
Workshop – 21, 
Amount - 47

√
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Goal Principle Targets Strategies Targets/ Indi-
cator

Physical progress 
in 2021

Progress of the 
Achievement of year 

2021
0% - 
49%

50% - 
74%

75% -
100%

iii.   Identifying 
extremist 
and terrorist 
organizations 
and taking 
follow up 
actions.

a.	 Road 
blocks that had 
been put up.
b.  Special security 
programmes 
implemented 
surrounding main 
cities. 
1. Implementing 
mobile patrols.
2. Applying quick 
roadblocks.
3. Deployment of 
troops for local 
security.

√

5. Preventing all 
kind of terrorist 
and extremist 
activities.

vi. Identifying 
extremist 
and terrorist 
organizations.

e. Number of 
members taken 
into custody 
from Terrorist 
and Extremist 
Organizations 
LTTE Members – 
411 follow up after 
rehabilitation.
Follow up on 11 
Easter attackers

f. Number 
of security 
committee 
members whose 
assistance had 
been taken 
for preventing 
terrorist activities.

vii.    Arresting 
members of 
extremist 
and terrorist 
organizations.

           Table - 1
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CHAPTER 06

6.	 HUMAN RESOURCE PROFILE

6.1	 Cadre Management

	 The cadre information of the Sri Lanka Air Force as at 31st December 2021 are given 
in the table 1 and 2 below.

(a)	 Service cadre 

Description Approved Cadre Actual 
Cadre

Excess 
(Vacancies)

Officers 
( Regular / Volunteer)

2,557 2,257 (300)

Other Rankers 
(Regular / Volunteer)

34,381 30,552 (3,829)

Total 36,938 32,809 (4,129)
Table 01

Table 02

(b)	 Civil cadre

Description Approved Cadre Existing Cadre Excess 
(Vacancies)

Senior Level 8 6 (2)
Tertiary Level 3 2 (1)
Secondary Level 184 99 (85)
Primary Level 2,875 2,302 (573)
Temporary / 
Contract

342 119 (223)

Total 3,412 2,528 (884)

(c)	 Branch wise officers (in service cadre) including approved cadre and actual 
cadre as at 31st December 2021. 

Branch 
Name

Approved cadre 
(Total No of 

Officers)

Actual cadre
Regular 
Officers

Volunteer 
Officers

Officer 
Cadets

Grand 
Total

GD/P 393 197 0 77 274
Tech/Eng 285 197 6 51 254
E/Eng 135 98 1 29 128
Log 245 198 0 40 238
Admin 276 191 0 74 265
Ad/Regt 547 333 3 101 437
Ops Air 138 97 0 23 120
Civil Eng. 138 107 9 3 119
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Medical 110 65 7 93 165
Dental 43 22 1 0 23
Med/Psych 6 6 0 0 6
Para Medical 4 4 1 0 5

Admin/Legal 17 15 0 2 17
Admin/Edu 26 0 19 0 19
Admin/Vet 11 9 0 0 9
Admin/Agro 17 17 0 0 17
Ad/Band 27 14 1 1 16
Provost 38 14 0 10 24
IT/Eng 80 69 14 7 90
Audit 8 9 0 0 9
Reserved 13 0
KDU 39 22 22
Total 2,557 1,662 62 533 2,070

Table 03

(d)	 Approved cadre and actual strength of the Regular Airmen/Air women as at 
31 December 2021.

Other Ranks Approved
Cadre

Actual Cadre
Volunteer (Airmen/

Airwomen)	
Regular (Airmen/

Airwomen)
MWO 168 03 105
WO 1,066 59 694
F/Sgt 2,215 267 1,676
Sgt 3,990 493 3,338
Cpl 7,569 1,768 5,378
LAC/AC 19,373 8,051 8,720
Total 34,381 10,641 19,911

Table 04
(e)	 Promotion details of officers in the year 2021.

	 i.	 The promotion of regular officers during the year 2021 are as follows.

S/No Promoted Rank No of Officers
1 To the Rank of Substantive Air Vice Marshal 02

2 To the Rank of Temporary  Air Vice Marshal 05

3 To the Rank of  Substantive Air Commodore 08

4 To the Rank of  Temporary  Air Commodore 13
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S/No Promoted Rank No of Officers
1 Substantive Wing Commander 01

2 Temporary  Wing Commander 01

3 Temporary Squadron Leader 01

4 Flying Officer 01

5 To the Rank of   Substantive Group Captain 29
6 To the Rank of  Temporary Group Captain 23

7 To the Rank of  Substantive Wing 
Commander 65

8 To the Rank of  Temporary  Wing 
Commander 83

9 To the Rank of  Substantive Squadron Leader 63

10 To the Rank of  Temporary Squadron Leader 50

11 To the Rank of Flight Lieutenant 61

12 To the Rank of Flying Officer 51

Total 453

Table 05

ii.	 The Promotions of Volunteer Officers during the year 2021 are as 
follows.

Table 06

(f)	 Retirement/Discharge detail of officers in the year 2021.

	 i	 Retirement/Discharge details of regular Officers during the year 2021 	
	 are as follows.

Type of Retirement

A
C

M

AV
M

A
ir

 C
dr

e

G
p 

C
ap

t

W
g 

C
dr

Sq
n 

Ld
r

Fl
t L

t

Fg
 O

ff

Pl
t O

ff

O
ff 

C
ad

et
s

To
ta

l

Retired 06 06 05 13 09 39

Resignation of 
Commission

01 01 03 05

Invalidation 01 04 05

Discharged 01 01 09 11

Withdrawal of 
Commission

-

Cashiered 01 01

Total - 06 06 05 14 12 01 04 - 13 61

Table 07
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ii	 Retirement/Discharge details of Volunteer Officers during the year 
2021 are as follows.

Type of Retirement

A
C

M
AV

M
A

ir
 C

dr
e

G
p 

C
ap

t

W
g 

C
dr

Sq
n 

Ld
r

Fl
t L

t

Fg
 O

ff

Pl
t O

ff

O
ff 

C
ad

et
s

To
ta

l

Resignation of 
Commission

02 02

Transfer to the 
Regular

01 01

Total - - - - 01 - - 02 - - 03

(g)	 Regular Airmen/ Airwomen Promotion-2021.

	 i	 The promotions of Regular Airman/Airwomen during the year 2021 	
	 are as follows.

Table 08

Other Ranks No of Promotion

Master Warrant Officer 93
Substantive Warrant Officer 194
Acting Warrant Officer 434
Substantive Flight Sergeant 465
Acting Flight Sergeant 646
Substantive Sergeant 1,182
Acting Sergeant 692
Substantive Corporal 1,086
Acting Corporal 923

Total 5,715

Table 09

ii	 Promotions of the Volunteer Airmen/Airwomen during the year 
2021 are as follows.

Other Ranks No of Promotion
Master Warrant Officer   04

Acting Warrant Officer   89

Acting Flight Sergeant 141

Acting Sergeant 178
Acting Corporal 215
Total 627

Table 10
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(h)	 Regular Airman/Airwomen Retirement/Discharge in year 2021.

	 i.	 Retirement / Discharge Details of Regular Airmen /Airwomen 		
	 during the year 2021 are as follows. 

Retirement / Discharge details
As at 31 Dec 21

(01.01.2021 to 31.12.2021)
Male Female Total

Retired 815 01 816

Termination of Engagement  144 07 151

SNLR/ Discharge/ General Amnesty 121 16 137

Unsuitable for Air Force 14 07 21

Medical Discharge 57 04 61

Discharge by Purchase 08 03 11

Discharge on compassionate ground 11 01 12

Other 02 - 02

Total 1,172 39 1,211

Table 11

ii.	 Retirement/Discharge Details of Volunteer Airmen /Airwomen 
during the year 2021 are as follows.

Type of termination

M
W

O

W
O

F/
SG

T

SG
T

C
PL

LA
C

/
A

C

TO
TA

L

Retirement 03 37 159 128 43 04 374

Termination of Engagement - - 04 05 06 92 107

Discharge by requested - - - 01 06 60 67

SNLR - - - - 02 55 57

Medical Discharge - - - 01 06 31 38

Discharge by Purchase - - - - 04 04

Unable to maintain 
adequate level of physical 
fitness

- - - - 01 09 10

Total 03 37 163 135 64 255 657

Table 12
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6.2	  The shortage or excess in human resources has been affected to the performance 
of the institute

	 The actual utilization of the approved cadre of SLAF for the year 2021 was 87.58%. 
The unutilized 12.42% of the approved cadre represents 5,013 vacancies comprising 4,129 
service cadre vacancies and 884 civil cadre vacancies.

6.3	 Human Resource Development

Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total 
Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Management 
module no. 12 
english medium 
and no. 83 sinhala 
medium non – 
commissioned 
officers 
management course

74 23.11.20 27.11.21 0.23 Local

Payments for the  
faculty members 
of university 
of wayamba, 
university of 
kelaniya and 
general sir john 
kotelawala defence 
university  (13th 
BSC aviation 
studies degree)

04 12.10.20 19.11.21 0.14 Local

Diploma in 
occupational safety 
and health (OSH)

01 17.01.21 17.01.22 0.11 Local

Diploma course in 
sports – 2020/2021 01 25.01.21 25.01.22 0.06 Local

Training 
programme on 
higher diploma in 
criminal law

02 01.01.21 31.01.22 0.13 Local

Training 
programme on 
cable splicing

06 03.02.21 10.02.21 0.23 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Workshop on 
internal auditing 
for ISO 14001:2015 
Environmental 
Management 
Systems (English 
medium)

02 10.02.21 11.02.21 0.03 Local

Training 
programme on 
Ultrasonic  Testing 
level -II

01 17.02.21 17.03.21 0.05 Local

Certificate course 
in Sewing Machine 
Maintenance

02 22.02.21 80 day’s 
Week 0.05 Local

Diploma in 
Human Resource 
Management

05 21.02.21 21.02.22 0.48 Local

Reimbursement 
of course fee for 
the MD in Oral 
Maxillofacial 
Surgery 2020

01 2020 03 Year 0.15 Local

Reimbursement 
of course fee for 
Doctor of Medicine 
in Medical 
Administration 
Part – I

01 25.01.21 25.04.21 0.15 Local

Reimbursement of 
course fee for Post 
Graduate Training 
(MSC Military 
Medicine)

02 01.12.20 01.06.22 0.37 Local

Management 
Concepts and 
Practices Module 
of No. 63 and 66 
Junior Command 
and Staff Course

54 01.02.21 14.02.21 0.84 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Certificate 
course on Sound 
Management in 
Studios and Public 
Address Syste

04 27.02.21 24 Days 0.15 Local

Certificate Course 
of Human Resource 
Management

10 07.03.21 07.05.21 0.20 Local

Certificate course 
in Food Quality 
Management 
(English medium)

01 14.03.21 10 
Sundays 0.03 Local

Payment of ecture 
fee for No. 66 
Junior Commands 
and Staff Course

23.02.21 26.02.21 0.04 Local

Training 
programme on 
modern Electronic 
Components (Basic 
Electronics)

10 18.03.21 10 Days 0.30 Local

Renewal of 
institutional 
member ship of the 
British Council

02 15.01.21 16.01.21 0.02 Local

42nd Asia Pacific 
Dental Congress, 
Colombo (APDC 
2021) – Dental 
Technician 
programme

05 20.03.21 27.03.21 0.01 Local

42nd Asia Pacific 
Dental Congress, 
Colombo (APDC 
2021) – Dental 
Surgery Assistant 
programme

05 22.05.21 22.05.21 0.005 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Safety Riding 
Training 
Programme

17 07.03.21 30.04.21 0.05 Local

Management 
Module No. 13 
English Medium 
and No. 84 Sinhala 
Medium Non – 
Commissioned 
Officers 
Management 
Course

02.03.21 08.03.21 0.23 Local

Air Traffic Control 
Meteorological 
Course

10 27.04.21 30.04.21 0.02 Local

Reimbursement 
of course fee for 
Pre-MD training 
programme in 
Radiology

01 2020 2023 0.15 Local

Diploma in 
Productivity - 2021 02 18.04.21 02.06.21 0.14 Local

Non Destructive 
Testing (NDT) 
training on 
Radiographic 
Testing (RT) Level 
- III

03 27.04.21 18.05.21 0.16 Local

Course on Non 
Destructive Testing 
(NDT) in Eddy 
Current testing 
Level-I

04 07.06.21 11.06.21 1.46 Local

Payment of lecture 
No 01 Continuous 
Professional 
Development 
Refresher Training 
Course

04.05.21 04.05.21 0.005 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Payments for the 
Supervisory DS 
for the 08th Batch 
of BSc (Aviation 
Studies)

25 04.05.21 04.05.22 0.06 Local

Store Keeping 
Supply Chain 
Logistics 
Management- 2021

05 18.03.21 15.04.21 0.08 Local

Reimbursement of 
course fee for Post 
Graduate Diploma 
in Reproductive 
Health Course 2021

01 15.02.21 15.02.22 0.18 Local

Workshop 
on Internal 
Auditing for ISO 
9001:2015 Quality 
Management 
systems

07 03.06.21 04.06.21 0.09 Local

Payments for the 
supervisory DS 
for the 08th Batch 
of BSc (Aviation 
Studies)

03 04.06.21 04.06.22 0.003 Local

10th  Virtual  
Annual  Academic 
session of 
Specialists in 
Restorative 
Dentistry of Sri 
Lanka 2021

05 01.08.21 01.08.21 0.01 Local

Certificate Course 
in OSH 21 21.08.21 07.09.21 0.98 Local

Certificate 
Course on Sound 
Management 

08 03.07.21 27.07.21 0.30 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Payment of lecture 
fee for No 67 Junior 
Commands and 
Staff Course

17.05.21 19.05.21 0.04 Local

Payment of course 
fee for course 
on Educational 
Psychology and 
Instructional 
Methodology 
phases for trainee 
instructors

46 2.08.21 02.09.21 0.11 Local

Course fees  for 
National Diploma 
in Training and 
Human Talent 
Development 
(NDTHTD)

16 01.07.21 01.07.22 1.28 Local

Payment of course 
fee for National 
Diploma in Training 
and Human Talent 
Development 
(NDTHTD)

18 07.08.21 07.11.21 0.36 Local

Payment of course 
fee certificate course 
for Sports Masseurs 
and Physical 
Therapy Assistants

04 10.04.21 10.04.22 0.32 Local

Payment of course 
fee on Auto CAD 
(2d & 3d) Course

01 18.07.21 18.11.21 0.12 Local

TKT (Teachers 
Knowledge Test 
Module - 1)

07 11.05.21 11.05.21 0.24 Local

Payment of Course 
fee for Officers 
– Postgraduate 
Diploma in 
Human Resource 
Management

04 05.10.21 05.10.22 0.80 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Payment of Course 
fee for Officers / 
Airmen online 
Workshop on 
Government Payroll 
System

01 12.10.21 14.10.21 0.01 Local

Advanced Diploma 
in Data Science 
(NIBM)

02 02.09.21 02.09.22 0.40 Local

Electrical and 
Electronic Repairs of 
PCB for Gen Mech 
(SLTTC)

07 20.10.21 19.11.21 0.32 Local

Local training – 
Dangerous Goods 
Regulations 
(DGR) Category 6- 
Recurrent Course 

02 06.10.21 28.10.21 0.07 Local

Local Training – 
Officers - Olympic 
Solidarity Sport 
Administrators 
Course (OSSAC) – 
2021

03 22.04.21 25.04.21 0.06 Local

Local Training – 
Officers - Olympic 
Solidarity Sport 
Administrators 
Course (OSSAC) – 
2021

02 05.11.21 08.11.21 0.04 Local

Local Training – 
Officers -  Master 
of Philosophy in 
Clinical Psychology 

01 01.02.21 01.02.23 0.49 Local

Payment of course 
fee for the Pre – 
Course English 
Language Package 
for Student Officers 
of – No 16 (2022) 
Defence Service 
Command and Staff 
College course

29 04.10.21 10.12.21 1.07 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Payment of course 
fee for Information 
System Auditing 
(online programme)

02 02.11.21 03.11.21 0.007 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Fundamental  
Hospitality  
Management in 
Hotel and Catering 
function

15 20.11.21 19.12.21 0.48 Local

Payment of 
coures fee for 
Airmen – Training 
programme on 
front Office,House 
Keeping, Food and 
Beverage

15 29.11.21 02.12.21 0.18 Local

Payment of 
course fee for 
Certificate Course 
in Food Quality 
Management

05 28.08.21 06.09.21 0.14 Local

Payment of 
course fee for 
Modern Electronic 
Components

10 03.12.21 19.12.21 0.30 Local

Payment of 
course fee for 
Higher National 
Diploma in Applied 
Criminology and 
Criminal Justice 
System - 2021

03 Sep 21 One 
(01) 0.17 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Higher 
National Diploma in 
applied Criminology 
and Criminal Justice 
System - 2021

02 23.05.21 23.05.22 0.11 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Payment of Lecture 
fee for No 68 Junior 
Commands and 
Staff Course

30.08.21 0.09 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Certificate in 
Cyber Security

07 28.10.21 28.01.22 0.18 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Quality 
Assurance practices 
for Manufacturing 
of Bottled Drinking 
Water

06 29.07.21 10.12.21 0.03 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Cyber 
Security Advanced 
Training – Offensive 
Cyber Operations

20 on may 
21 40 hours 0.20 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Certificate 
Programme on 
Cyber Security and 
Digital Forensics

02 04.10.21 06.10.21 0.11 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Specialized 
Training for MTM 
Advanced trainees

12 04.12.21 03.01.22 0.48 Local

Payment of course 
fee for airmen- 
Management 
Module No. 14 
English Medium 
and No. 85 Sinhala 
Medium Non – 
Commissioned 
Officers 
Management Course

(per 
batch) 17.05.21 20.08.21 0.23 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Diploma 
in Quality 
Management - 
2021/2022

03 31.10.21 31.10.22 0.29 Local
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Payment Of 
Course Fee For 
Special Training 
Programme On 
Engine Tune Up

10 20.11.21 24.11.21 0.09 Local

Payment of course 
fee for Olympic 
Solidarity Sport 
Administrators 
Course (ossac) – 
2021

03 02.12.21 05.12.21 0.06 Local

Payment of course 
fee for training 
programme 
on Auditing of 
Laboratory Quality 
Management System 
as per ISO/IEC 
17025

02 12.10.21 14.10.21 0.04 Local

Payment for renewal 
of accreditation 
through SIF SLAF 
TTS Eka  on 
reimbursement basis

02 12.12.21 31.01.22 0.004 Local

National Defence 
Course – 2021 01 10.01.21 09.12.21  5.45 Abroad

AB- Initio 
Navigation Course 01 14.12.20 05.06.21  0.83 Abroad

Qualified Flying 
Instructors (QFI) – 
Rotor Wing (RW) 
Course

01 04.01.21 19.06.21  0.91 Abroad

No. 2006 Logistic 
Assistant Aero 
Apprentices Course

01 11.01.21 05.01.22  0.84 Abroad
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

No. 86 Senior 
Command and Staff 
Course - Pakistan

01 02.01.21 31.03.21  0.47 Abroad

Providing 
various  
training 

program to 
respective 
Branch or 

Trade in the 
Sri Lanka Air 
Force help to 
build highly 
disciplined 
professional 
and multi-

skilled

United States Air 
Force Academy 
Class of - 2021

01 17.06.21 16.06.25  1.00 Abroad

Electrical Fitter 
(Restructured) 
Course

02 09.08.21 11.11.22  6.17 Abroad

Conduct of training 
for PAF Hostility 
Staff

02 31.01.21 13.11.21  0.67 Abroad

Logistic Assistant 
Course - India 02 25.01.21 15.01.22  4.70 Abroad

Electronic Fitter 
Course - India 02 25.01.21 07.05.22  8.92 Abroad

Aero India – 2021 
Air Show and 
Exhibition

02 03.02.21 07.02.21  0.75 Abroad

National Defence 
College Course – 
No.61 (NDC – 61) 
- India

01 01.02.21 26.11.21  4.65 Abroad

MI-17 Simulator 
Training 02 24.05.21 25.03.21  0.88 Abroad

C-130 Simulator 
training 02 24.03.21 26.03.21  3.19 Abroad

Every training 
session add 
value to the 

performance 
of the 

participant 
and it helps 
to meet the 
goals and 
objectives 
of the Air 
Force and 

individuals

MA-60 Simulator 
Training 02 24.03.21 26.03.21  5.13 Abroad

MI-17 Simulator 
training for aircrew 
deployed in UN 
Peacekeeping 
Mission in South 
Sudan

02 13.05.21 14.05.21  4.46 Abroad

Pre Flying Training 
Course - India 01 01.08.21 01.08.24  0.45 Abroad

15th International 
Defence Exhibition 
- UAE

01 21.02.21 25.02.21  0.15 Abroad
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Name of the 
Program

No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

No 69 A Basic 
Air Defence 
Weapon Controller 
(Training) 
Bangladesh

01 22.02.21 12.08.21  0.68 Abroad

Every training 
session add 
value to the 

performance 
of the 

participant 
and it helps 
to meet the 
goals and 
objectives 
of the Air 
Force and 

individuals

Initial Officer 
Training Course – 
UK

01 25.02.21 11.02.22  0.24 Abroad

No 34 Air War 
Course (AWC) - 
Pakistan

01 10.05.21 26.05.22  5.25 Abroad

Defense Services 
Command and Staff 
Course - Bangladesh

01 21.02.21 20.01.22  4.83 Abroad

Pacific Women 
Peace and Security 
(WPS) Symposium 
2021 (Hawai)

02 30.03.21 01.04.21  0.36 Abroad

No 2006 Electro 
Mach Aero 
Apprentices Courses

01 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.73 Abroad

No 2006 Airframe 
and Engine Aero 
Apprentices Course

02 21.06.21 02.06.23  1.04 Abroad

No 2006 Weapon 
Aero Apprentices 
Courses

01 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.73 Abroad These training 
programmes 
provide an 
excellent 

opportunity 
to interact 
and learn 

from 
developed 

and larger Air 
Forces.

No 2006 Avionics 
(Air & Grd) Aero 
Apprentices Course

02 21.06.21 02.06.23  1.45 Abroad

No 1908 Weapon 
Aero Apprentices 
Course

01 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.48 Abroad

No 1908 Electro 
Mech Aero 
Apprentices Course

01 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.38 Abroad
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(Abroad/
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Output/ 
Knowledge 
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No 1908 
Airframe,Engine, 
Mech Aero 
Apprentices Course

02 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.86 Abroad

These training 
programmes 
provide an 
excellent 

opportunity 
to interact 
and learn 

from 
developed 

and larger Air 
Forces.

No 1908 Avionics 
(Air & Grd) Aero 
Apprentices Course

02 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.76 Abroad

No 1902 Air 
Frame, Engine, 
Electro Mech Aero 
Apprentices Course

01 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.48 Abroad

No 87 Senior 
Commander and 
Staff Course

01 12.04.21 30.06.21  0.29 Abroad

Junior Command 
Course 163 (JC-163) 
India

01 08.04.21 07.07.21  0.25 Abroad

Administrative 
Assistant (Catering) 
Course

02 25.01.21 30.10.21  4.30 Abroad

Administrative 
Assistant (General 
Duties) Course

01 25.01.21 15.01.22  2.16 Abroad

Operation Room 
Assistant – II (ORA-
II)

02 26.04.21 08.02.22  6.83 Abroad

No 1902 Avionics 
(Air & Grd) Aero 
Apprentices Course

01 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.27 Abroad

MI – 17 Helicopter 
Simulator Training 
(03rd Batch) - 
Croatia

03 09.05.21 10.05.21  0.37 Abroad

No 142 Flying 
Instructors Course 01 13.07.21 05.03.21  0.13 Abroad

Air War College 
(AWC) Resident 
Program - USA

01 10.05.21 26.05.22  1.80 Abroad
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(Abroad/
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Output/ 
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MI – 17 Helicopter 
Simulator Training 
(04th Batch) - 
Croatia

03 13.05.21 14.05.21  0.37 Abroad

National Security 
and War Course 
(NSWC) - Pakistan

01 16.08.21 10.07.22  4.23 Abroad

Air Command and 
Staff Course - USA 01 24.05.21 06.05.22  4.11 Abroad

No 10 Aircraft 
Accident 
Investigation (AAI) 
Course - Bangladesh

01 27.05.21 20.06.21  0.25 Abroad

Pre Flying Training 
Course - India 01 01.08.21 01.08.24  0.57 Abroad

Exercise Red Flag 
(RF – A) and 
the Executive 
Observation 
Programme (EOP) 
USA

01 17.06.21 21.06.21  1.03 Abroad

Programme for 
Instructor Pilot of 
Primary Training 
Aircraft.

01 20.06.21 21.08.21  0.05 Abroad

Physical and 
Occupational 
Therapy Assistant – 
II (India)

01 15.03.21 13.11.21  3.25 Abroad

Education Instructor 
Course - India 04 25.01.21 15.01.22  4.78 Abroad

No 2012 Air 
Frame, Engine, 
Electro Mech Aero 
Apprentices Course 

02 21.06.21 02.06.23  1.98 Abroad

No 2012 Weapon 
Aero Apprentices 
Course - Pakistan

01 21.06.21 02.06.23  0.87 Abroad
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Output/ 
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No 2012 Avionics 
(Air & Grd) Aero 
Apprentices Course

02 21.06.21 02.06.23  1.73 Abroad

Basic Load Master 
Course - Bangladesh 02 18.07.21 24.10.21  1.12 Abroad

Royal College of 
Defence Studies - 
UK Royal College 
of Defence Studies - 
UK Royal College 

01 19.07.21 26.08.21  3.69 Abroad

Long Air Defence 
Course (LADC (O) 
AD – 05) - India

01 07.07.21 17.05.22  0.73 Abroad

No 117 Junior 
Command and Staff 
Course - Bangladesh

01 25.07.21 28.10.21  0.52 Abroad

MI – 17 Helicopter 
Simulator Training 
(06 Batch) - Croatia

03 15.07.21 16.07.21  0.37 Abroad

Workshop on 
Counter Insurgency 
Operations – Case 
Study Sri Lanka 
Perspective – 
Bangladesh

02 15.07.21 25.07.21  0.11 Abroad

Physical and 
Occupational 
Therapy Assistant 
– III

02 05.07.21 16.04.22  1.95 Abroad

Laboratory Assistant 
– II (LA-II) 02 05.07.21 25.12.21  1.39 Abroad

Laboratory Assistant 
– III (LA-III) 02 06.07.21 13.08.22  1.96 Abroad

X - Ray Assistant - 
III 01 05.07.21 16.04.22  0.86 Abroad

Ground Duty 
Officer (Accounts) 
Course

01 05.07.21 04.12.21  1.14 Abroad
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Output/ 
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Ground Duty 
Officers Course 
(Logistic)

01 05.07.21 04.12.21  1.14 Abroad

Psychiatric Nursing 
Assistant – II (PNA- 
II)

02 05.07.21 26.12.21  0.57 Abroad

Special Treatment 
Assistant – III (STA- 
III) Course

02 05.07.21 08.01.22  0.57 Abroad

Physical and 
Occupational 
(Therapy Assistant 
– I)

01 05.07.21 11.06.22  0.49 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advance for Radar 
Operator Course - 
Bangladesh

01 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.38 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advance for Air 
Traffic Controller 
Assistant (ATCA) 
Course - Bangladesh

01 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.38 Abroad

Fighter Controller 
Course (FCC) – 
India

01 05.07.21 25.09.21  0.25 Abroad

Special Treatment 
Assistant – II (STA 
– II)

02 05.07.21 16.04.22  0.57 Abroad

Operation Room 
Assistant – I (ORA 
– I)

02 05.07.21 13.08.22  0.57 Abroad

X - Ray Assistant - II 01 05.07.21 29.01.22  0.29 Abroad

Workshop on 
Counter Insurgency 
Operations – Case 
Study Sri Lanka 
Perspective - 
Bangladesh

02 15.07.21 25.07.21  0.48 Abroad
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Trade Training 
Advanced (TTA) 
for Mechanical 
Transport Operator 
& Fitter Trade 
Course - Bangladesh

01 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.74 Abroad

Communication 
Technician Course - 
India

02 09.08.21 23.07.22  0.91 Abroad

Ground Training 
Instructor Course - 
India

03 09.08.21 23.07.22  0.43 Abroad

Accounts Assistant 
Course - India 05 09.08.21 23.07.22  1.43 Abroad

Quality Assurance 
Services (Qas-A) - 
India

02 16.08.21 01.10.21  1.17 Abroad

No 67 Flight Safety 
Officers Course 
- Bangladesh 
Increased

01 28.11.21 03.02.22  0.20 Abroad

Junior Command 
Course 163 (JC-163) 
India

01 08.04.21 07.07.21  0.21 Abroad

Air Force Cadets 
Training Course – 
Bangladesh

01 01.08.21 01.08.24  1.06 Abroad

Quality Assurance 
Services (Qas-A) - 
India

02 16.08.21 01.1021  1.17 Abroad

Provost and Security 
(PSCA) Course - 
India

03 16.08.21 08.10.21  0.50 Abroad

Aircraft 
Maintenance Officer 
Course - Guam

01 26.07.21 20.08.21  0.42 Abroad

United Nations 
Military Observers/
Staff Officers Course 
- Bangladesh

01 22.08.21 30.09.21  0.29 Abroad
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Professionl 
Knowledge Course 
(PKC) (Flying)

02 09.08.21 03.09.21  0.49 Abroad

SLAF 
Representatives for 
Capital Overhaul 
of SHM – 4417 
and SMH – 4418 
Helicopterss - 
Lithuania

02 14.06.21 18.06.21  1.27 Abroad

Air War College 
(AWC) Resident 
Program - USA

01 10.05.21 26.05.22  3.39 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advanced (TTA) 
for Administrative 
Assistant Course - 
Bangladesh

02 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.76 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advanced (TTA) 
for Provost Course - 
Bangladesh

02 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.76 Abroad

No 67 Flight Safety 
Officers Course - 
Bangladesh

01 28.11.21 03.02.22  0.10 Abroad

Electrical Fitter 
(Restructured) 
Course - India

03 09.08.21 11.11.22  2.13 Abroad

Aircraft 
Maintenance Officer 
Course - Guam

02 26.07.21 20.08.21  0.84 Abroad

Communication 
Technician Course - 
India

05 09.08.21 23.07.22  0.51 Abroad

United Nations 
Military Observers/
Staff Officers Course 
- Bangladesh

01 22.08.21 30.09.21  0.007 Abroad

Ground Training 
Instructor Course - 
India

03 09.08.21 23.07.22  0.31 Abroad
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Local)
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From To Local Foreign

SLAF 
Representatives for 
Capital Overhaul 
of SHM – 4417 
and SMH – 4418 
Helicopterss - 
Lithuania

01 14.06.21 18.06.21  0.42 Abroad

Air Force Cadets 
Training Course - 
Bangladesh

01 01.08.21 01.08.24  0.10 Abroad

Army Drill – 108 
Course (ADC – 108) 
India

05 30.08.21 23.10.21  1.78 Abroad

Defence Service 
Command & Staff 
College Delegation 
on International 
Collaboration visit 
(DDICV) - T

15 06.09.21 17.09.21  43.85 Abroad

MI-17 Helicopter 
Simulator Training 
(08 Batch) in Croatia

02 02.09.21 03.09.21  0.41 Abroad

C-130 Maintenance 
Information 
Exchange 
Programme - USA

03 20.09.21 24.09.21  0.33 Abroad

Air Traffic Services 
Surveillance (GCA) 
Course - India

01 20.09.21 10.12.21  0.29 Abroad

Professional 
Knowledge Course 
(PKC-AE) - India

02 20.09.21 29.10.21  0.57 Abroad

Young Officer Air 
Defence-119 [Yo 
Ad-119(O) ] Course 
- India

01 22.09.21 15.03.22  0.33 Abroad

No 1908 
Airframe,Engine, 
Mech Aero 
Apprentices Course 
- Pakistan

01 15.11.21 20.11.21  0.10 Abroad
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No 2006 Airframe 
and Engine Aero 
Apprentices Course 
– Pakistan

01 12.11.21 20.11.21  0.21 Abroad

Defence Service 
Technical Staff 
Officer Course – 
India

02 15.06.21 22.04.22  1.79 Abroad

No. 2006 Logistic 
Assistant Aero 
Apprentices Course 
- Pakistan

01 15.11.21 20.11.21  0.14 Abroad

Aircrew 
Fundamentals 
Aircraft Loan Master 
in USA

01 21.07.21 09.09.21  0.29 Abroad

International 
Defence 
Management Course 
in USA

01 10.10.21 16.12.21  0.25 Abroad

Royal College of 
Defense Studies – 
UK

01 19.07.21 26.08.21  0.85 Abroad

Physical and 
Occupational 
Therapy Assistant– I

02 05.07.21 11.06.21  0.97 Abroad

CISM Parachuting 
Judges Seminar in 
Qatar

01 27.09.21 06.10.21  0.14 Abroad

All Arms Basic Drill 
Instruction Course 
- UK

01 30.08.21 23.10.21  0.32 Abroad

Assistant Instructor 
Basic Course – 31 - 
India

01 27.10.21 11.01.22  0.29 Abroad

No- 118 Junior 
Commander and 
Staff Course - 
Bangladesh

01 24.10.21 03.02.22  0.32 Abroad

MI-17 Helicopter 
Simulator Training 
(10 Batch) - Croatia

02 21.10.21 22.10.21  0.32 Abroad
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40th World Military 
Judo Championship 
2021 in France

04 28.10.21 04.11.21  1.72 Abroad

Electronic Fitter 
Course - India 02 28.10.21 04.11.21  1.47 Abroad

United Nations 
Military Observers/
Staff Officers Course 
– Bangladesh

01 22.08.21 30.09.21  0.06 Abroad

WPN FIT MI-17 
& MI-IV Course - 
India

01 15.11.21 04.02.22  0.29 Abroad

CISM Parachuting 
Judges Seminar in 
Qatar

01 27.09.21 06.10.21  0.04 Abroad

Psychiatric Nursing 
Assistant – II (PNA- 
II)

02 05.07.21 26.12.21  0.89 Abroad

National Security 
& war Course 
2021/2022

01 16.08.21 10.07.22  0.48 Abroad

Special Treatment 
Assistant – II (STA 
– II)

02 05.07.21 16.04.22  1.14 Abroad

Operation Room 
Assistant –I(ORA–I) 02 05.07.21 13.08.22  1.14 Abroad

Special Treatment 
Assistant – III (STA- 
III) Course

01 05.07.21 08.01.22  0.97 Abroad

X - Ray Assistant - II 01 05.07.21 29.01.22  0.53 Abroad

44th World military 
Parachuting 
Championship 2021 
– Doha Qatar

02 17.11.21 30.11.21  1.20 Abroad

Fighter Controller 
Course (FCC)-India 01 05.07.21 25.09.21  0.24 Abroad

35th World 
Military Wrestling 
Championship 2021 
– Iran

04 19.11.21 26.11.21  0.86 Abroad
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Prop Fitter AN 32 
Aircraft Course - 
India

01 15.11.21 30.04.22  0.29 Abroad

Elct Fit AN 32 
Aircraft Course-India 02 15.11.21 30.04.22  0.57 Abroad

Structure Fitter MI-17 
& MI-IV Course - 
India

01 15.11.21 08.04.22  0.29 Abroad

Prop Fit MI – 17 & 
MI 17 IV Course - 
India

02 15.11.21 29.04.22  0.57 Abroad

Structure Fitter AN 
– 32 Aircraft Course 
- India

02 15.11.21 30.04.22  0.57 Abroad

Elect Fit MI 17 & MI 
17- IV Course - India 01 15.11.21 29.04.22  0.29 Abroad

Electronics Fitter 
(IPT) AN 32 Aircarft 
Course - India

02 15.11.21 30.04.22  0.57 Abroad

Ground Training 
Instructor Course 
(GTI) - India

01 09.08.21 23.07.22  1.46 Abroad

Prop Fitter AN 32 
Aircraft Course - 
India

01 15.11.21 30.04.22  0.29 Abroad

NESA Center for 
Strategic Studies 
Community Oriented 
Policing and Violent 
Extremism Seminar

01 14.11.21 18.11.21  0.05 Abroad

Operation Christmas 
Drop 2021 - Guam 01 01.12.21 11.12.21  0.20 Abroad

SLAF Fighter Pilots 
Training on IAF MIG 
– 21 Training Aircraft 
Course -India

01 06.12.21 24.12.21  0.21 Abroad

United Nations 
Contingent 
Commanders’ Course 
(UNCCC)-14 in 
Bangaladesh

01 31.10.21 25.11.21  0.26 Abroad
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Senior Command 
Course-152 (SC-152) 
(O) India

01 11.11.21 26.01.22  0.34 Abroad

Professionl 
Knowledge Course 
PKC (Flying)

02 09.08.21 03.09.21  0.24 Abroad

Jungle and Snow 
Survival Course 
(J&SS) - India

02 23.08.21 17.09.21  2.92 Abroad

SLAF Fighter Pilots 
Training on IAF MIG 
– 21 Training Aircraft 
Course -India

06 06.12.21 24.12.21  1.28 Abroad

Quality Assurance 
Services (Qas-A) - 
India

02 16.08.21 01.10.21  1.30 Abroad

Commando (Officers) 
Course – 330 in India 01 12.12.21 22.01.22  0.33 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advance for Radar 
Operator Course - 
Bangladesh

01 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.45 Abroad

Air crew training - MI 
17 simulator training 
(minusca and unmiss)

01  4.73 Abroad

No 2012 Air Frame, 
Engine, Electro Mech 
Aero Apprentices 
Course - Pakistan

01 15.11.21 29.04.22  0.62 Abroad

Inter Service Club 
Hockey Tournament 
2021 OMAN

02 28.12.21 29.12.21  0.64 Abroad

Ground Duty Officer 
Course (GDOC) 
(MET)

02 31.10.21 04.12.21  0.49 Abroad

Ground Duty Officer 
Course (GDOC) 
(EDN) - India

02 31.10.21 04.12.21  0.49 Abroad
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Quality Assurance 
Services-Aero 
(QAS-A) Airmen 
Course in India

02 16.08.21 01.10.21  0.66 Abroad

Young Officer Air 
Defence-119 [Yo 
Ad-119(O) ] Course - 
India

01 22.09.21 15.03.22  0.45 Abroad

Army Drill – 108 
Course (ADC – 108) 
India

02 30.08.21 23.10.21  0.49 Abroad

Provost and Security 
(PSCA) Course - 
India

02 16.08.21 08.10.21  0.24 Abroad

Air Traffic Services 
Surveillance (GCA) 
Course - India

01 20.09.21 10.12.21  0.24 Abroad

Qualified Flying 
Instructors (QFIC) 01 01.07.21 13.11.21  0.32 Abroad

No. 1808 Air frame 
and Engine Aero 
Apprentices Course

02 15.11.21 29.04.22  0.25 Abroad

Professional 
Knowledge Course 
(PKC-AE) - India

01 23.08.21 01.10.21  0.08 Abroad

United Nations 
Contingent 
Commanders’ Course 
(UNCCC)-14 in 
Bangaladesh

01 31.10.21 25.11.21  0.03 Abroad

Army Drill – 108 
Course (ADC – 108) 
India

01 30.08.21 23.10.21  0.12 Abroad

No. 1808 Avionics 
(Grd) Aero 
Apprentices Course

01 15.11.21 29.04.22  0.12 Abroad

No. 1808 Weapon 
Aero Apprentices 
Course

01 15.11.21 29.04.22  0.12 Abroad
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No. 1808 Electro 
Mech Aero 
Apprentices Course

01 15.11.21 29.04.22  0.12 Abroad

Overseas Training 
– Close Protection 
Course No 18 (CPC-
18) In Pakistan

08 06.09.21 26.11.21  5.60 Abroad

Professional 
Knowledge Course 
(PKC-AE) - India

01 23.08.21 01.10.21  0.08 Abroad

International Defence 
Management Course 
in USA

01 10.10.21 16.12.21  0.13 Abroad

Command and Staff 
Course - Malaysia 01 23.12.21 02.01.23  0.73 Abroad

No 67 Flight Safety 
Officers Course - 
Bangladesh

01 28.11.21 03.02.22  0.14 Abroad

Accounts Assistant 
Course - India 02 09.08.21 23.07.22  2.44 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advanced (TTA) for 
Mechanical Transport 
Operator & Fitter 
Trade Course - 
Bangladesh

02 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.91 Abroad

Communication 
Technician Course - 
India

02 09.08.21 23.07.22  2.44 Abroad

Physical and 
Occupational Therapy 
Assistant – I

01 05.07.21 11.06.22  0.49 Abroad

USAF Academy Class 
2023 - USA 01 17.06.21 16.06.25  0.15 Abroad

Air Traffic 
Management and Air 
Law – Basic Course in 
India

01 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.33 Abroad



Sri Lanka Air Force   I   Annual Performance Report for the Fiscal Year 2021196

Name of the Program
No. of 
staff 

trained

Duration of the 
program

Total Investment 
(Rs Mn.)

Nature 
of the 

Program 
(Abroad/

Local)

Output/ 
Knowledge 

Gained
From To Local Foreign

Physical and 
Occupational Therapy 
Assistant – II

02 05.07.21 11.06.22  0.16 Abroad

Air War College 
(AWC) Resident 
Program - USA

01 10.05.21 26.05.22  0.91 Abroad

SLAF Fighter Pilots 
Training on IAF MIG 
– 21 Training Aircraft 
Course -India

01 06.12.21 24.12.21  0.21 Abroad

Jungle and Snow 
Survival Course in 
India

02 23.08.21 17.09.21  0.85 Abroad

Overseas Training 
– Close Protection 
Course No 18 (CPC-
18) In Pakistan

02 06.09.21 26.11.21  1.23 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advanced (TTA) 
for Physical Fitness 
and Drill Instructor 
Course - Bangladesh

02 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.75 Abroad

Trade Training 
Advanced (TTA) 
for Armament Fitter 
Course - Bangladesh

02 11.07.21 16.03.22  0.73 Abroad

Table 13
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

1 The following Financial 
statements/accounts have been 
submitted on due date

1.1 Annual financial statements Complied
1.2 Advance to public officers 

account Complied

1.3 Trading and Manufacturing 
Advance Accounts (Commercial 
Advance Accounts)

N/A

1.4 Stores Advance Accounts N/A
1.5 Special Advance Accounts N/A
1.6 Others N/A
2 Maintenance of books and 

registers (FR445)
2.1 Fixed assets register has been 

maintained and update in 
terms of Public Administration 
Circular 267/2018

Complied

2.2 Personal emoluments register/ 
Personal emoluments cards has 
been maintained and update

Complied

2.3 Register of Audit queries has 
been maintained and update Complied

2.4 Register of Internal Audit reports 
has been maintained and update Complied

2.5 All the monthly account 
summaries (CIGAS) are 
prepared and submitted to the 
Treasury on due date

Complied

2.6 Register for cheques and money 
orders has been maintained and 
update

Complied

2.7 Inventory register has been 
maintained and update

Complied

2.8 Stocks Register has been 
maintained and update

Complied

CHAPTER 07

7.	 COMPLIANCE REPORT
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

2.9 Register of Losses has been 
maintained and update

Complied

2.10 Commitment Register has been 
maintained and update Complied

2.11 Register of Counterfoil 
Books (GA —N20) has been 
maintained and update

Complied

3 Delegation of functions for 
financial control (FR 135)

3.1 The financial authority has been 
delegated within the institute Complied

3.2 The delegation of financial 
authority has been 
communicated within the 
institute

Complied

3.3 The authority has been delegated 
in  such manner so as to pass 
each transaction through two or 
more officers

Complied

3.4 The controls has been adhered to 
by the Accountants in terms of 
State Account Circular 171/2004 
dated 11.05.2014 in using the 
Government Payroll Software 
Package

Complied

4 Preparation of Annual Plans
4.1 The annual action plan has  been 

prepared Complied

4.2 The annual procurement plan 
has been prepared Complied

4.3 The annual Internal Audit plan 
has been prepared Complied

4.4 The annual estimate has been 
prepared and submitted to the 
NBD on due date

Complied

4.5 The annual cash flow has been 
submitted to the Treasury 
Operations Department on time

Complied
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

5 Audit Queries
5.1 All the audit queries has been 

replied within the specified time 
by the Auditor General

Complied

6 Internal Audit
6.1 The internal audit plan has been 

prepared at the beginning of the 
year after consulting the Auditor 
General in terms of Financial 
Regulation 134(2) DMA/1-2019

Complied

6.2 All the internal audit reports has 
been replied within one month Complied

6.3 Copies of all the internal audit 
reports has been submitted to the 
Management Audit Department 
in terms of Sub-section 40(4) of 
the National Audit Act No. 19 of 
2018

Complied

6.4 All the copies of internal audit 
reports has been submitted to 
the Auditor General in terms of 
Financial Regulation 134(3)

Complied

7 Audit and Management 
Committee

7.1 Minimum 04 meetings of 
the Audit and Management 
Committee has been held during 
the year as per the DMA Circular 
1-2019

Complied

8 Asset Management
8.1 The information about purchases 

of assets and disposals was 
submitted to the Comptroller 
General's Office in terms of 
Paragraph 07 of the Asset 
Management Circular No. 
01/2017

Complied
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

8.2 A suitable liaison officer was 
appointed to coordinate the 
implementation of the provisions 
of the circular and the details of 
the nominated officer was sent to 
the Comptroller General's Office 
in terms of Paragraph 13 of the 
aforesaid circular

Complied

8.3 The boards of survey was 
conducted and the relevant 
reports submitted to the Auditor 
General on due date in terms 
of Public Finance Circular No. 
05/2016

Complied

8.4 The excesses and deficits that 
were disclosed through the board 
of survey and other relating 
recommendations, actions were 
carried out during the period 
specified in the circular

Complied

8.5 The disposal of condemn articles 
had been carried out in terms of 
FR 772

Complied

9 Vehicle Management
9.1 The daily running charts and 

monthly summaries of the pool 
vehicles had been prepared and 
submitted to the Auditor General 
on due date

Complied 

9.2 The condemned vehicles had 
been disposed of within a period 
of less than 6 months after 
condemning

Complied

9.3 The vehicle logbooks had been 
maintained and updated Complied

9.4 The action has been taken in 
terms of F.R. 103, 104, 109 and 
110 with regard to every vehicle 
accident

Complied
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

9.5 The fuel consumption of vehicles 
has been re-tested in terms of 
the provisions of Paragraph 3.1 
of the Public Administration 
Circular No. 30/2016 of 
29.12.2016

Complied

9.6 The absolute ownership of the 
leased vehicle log books has been 
transferred after the lease term

Not applicable

10 Management of Bank Accounts
10.1 The bank reconciliation 

statements had been prepared, 
got certified and made ready for 
audit by the due date

Complied

10.2 The dormant accounts that had 
existed in the year under review 
or since previous years settled

Not applicable 
No dormant 
accounts are 
existing

10.3 action had been taken in terms of 
Financial Regulations regarding 
balances that had been disclosed 
through bank reconciliation 
statements and for which 
adjustments had to be made, and 
had those balances been settled 
within one month

Complied

11 Utilization of Provisions
11.1 The provisions allocated had 

been spent without exceeding the 
limit

Complied

11.2 The liabilities not exceeding the 
provisions that remained at the 
end of the year as per the FR 
94(1)

Not Applicable 

12 Advances to Public Officers 
Account

12.1 The limits had been complied 
with Complied

12.2 A time analysis had been carried 
out on the loans in arrears Complied
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

12.3 The loan balances in arrears for 
over one year had been settled

Not Complied Action are 
being taken 
to recover the 
arrears of loan 
balances.

Assigning 
guarantors 
irrespective 
of service 
for each and 
every loan 
applicant.

13 General Deposit Account
13.1 The action had been taken as per 

F.R.571 in relation to disposal of 
lapsed deposits

Complied

13.2 The control register for general 
deposits had been updated and 
maintained

Complied

14 Imprest Account
14.1 The balance in the cash book at 

the end of the year under review 
remitted to TOD

Complied

14.2 The ad-hoc sub imprests issued 
as per F.R. 371 settled within one 
month from the completion of 
the task

Complied

14.3 The ad-hoc sub imprests had 
been issued exceeding the limit 
approved as per F.R. 371

Ad-hoc sub 
imprests had 
not been issued 
exceeding the 
approved limits

14.4 The balance of the imprest 
account had been reconciled 
with the Treasury books monthly

Complied

15 Revenue Account
15.1 The refunds from the revenue 

had been made in terms of the 
regulations 

Complied

15.2 The revenue collection had been 
directly credited to the revenue 
account without credited to the 
deposit account

Complied
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

15.3 Returns of arrears of revenue 
forward to the Auditor General 
in terms of FR 176

Complied

16 Human Resource Management
16.1 The staff had been paid within 

the approved cadre Complied

16.2 All members of the staff have 
been issued a duty list in writing Complied

16.3 All reports have been submitted 
to MSD in terms of their circular 
no.04/2017 dated 20.09.2017

Complied

17 Provision of information to the 
public

17.1 An information officer has been 
appointed and a proper register 
of information is maintained and 
updated in terms of	   Right To 
Information Act and Regulation

Complied

17.2 Information about the 
institution to the public have 
been provided by Website or 
alternative measures and has it 
been facilitated to appreciate / 
allegation to public against the 
public authority by this website 
or alternative measures

Complied

17.3 Bi- Annual and Annual reports 
have been submitted as per 
section 08 and 10 of the RTI Act

Complied

18 Implementing citizens charter
18.1 A citizens charter/ Citizens 

client's charter has been 
formulated and implemented by 
the Institution in terms of the 
circular number 05/2008 and 
05/2018(1) of Ministry of Public 
Administration and Management

Complied
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No. Applicable Requirement

Compliane 
Status 

(Complied/Not 
Complied)

Brief 
explanation 

For Non 
Compliance

Corrective 
actions 

proposed to 
avoid non-

compliance in 
future

18.2 A methodology has been 
devised by the Institution in 
order to monitor and assess 
the formulation and the 
implementation of Citizens 
Charter / Citizens client's charter 
as per paragraph 2.3 of the 
circular

Complied

19 Preparation of the Human 
Resource Plan

19.1 A human resource plan has 
been prepared in terms of 
the format in Annexure 02 of 
Public Administration Circular 
No.02/2018 dated 24.01.2018.

Complied

19.2 A minimum training 
opportunity of not less than 12 
hours per year for each member 
of the staff has been ensured in 
the aforesaid Human Resource 
Plan

Complied

19.3 Annual performance agreements 
have been signed for the entire 
staff based on the format in 
Annexure 01 of the aforesaid 
Circular

Complied

19.4 A senior officer was appointed 
and assigned the responsibility 
of preparing the human resource 
development plan, organizing 
capacity building programs and 
conducting skill development 
programs as per paragraph 
No.6.5 of the aforesaid Circular

Not Complied

SLAF Human 
Resourse 
plan has been 
prepared by 
respective 
directorates

20 Responses Audit Paras
20.1 The shortcomings pointed out 

in the audit paragraphs issued 
by the Auditor General for 
the previous years have been 
rectified

Complied
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					               CHAPTER 08

8.	 AUDIT AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

a.	 Audit Committee and Management committee Charter

	 The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee and Management Committee 
are governed by the Audit Committee and management committee circular issued by the 
Department of Management Audit at Ministry of Finance and Planning on 9th July 2009 
and subsequent circular issued on 12th January 2019. The Committee also ensures that the 
scope and coverage of its functions addresses the requirements laid down in above circular in 
respect of Government Department. 

b.	 Principal Focus

	 The Audit Committee could focus personal attention to efficient operation of the 
committee and the risk areas of financial discipline reported by the Auditor General and the 
internal Auditors and immediate remedial action could be taken.

c.	 Medium of Reporting

	 The proceedings of the Audit and Management Committee meetings are tabled at the 
meetings of the Board, where all key issues, concerns, actions taken, outcomes achieved or 
pending, and follow-up initiated, are clarified, discussed and Board approval obtained.

d.	 Composition

(1)	 Meeting of the Audit and Management Committee of the Sri Lanka Air Force 
is held quarterly as per the laid down instructions given in the respective treasury 
circular. The composition of Audit and Management Committee is as follows,         

S/No Appoitment Position of the AMC
1 Commander of the Air Force Chairman

2 Chief Internal Auditor - Ministry of 
Defence

Member

3 Director Finance of Sri Lanka Air Force Member

4 Representative from Department of 
Management Audit, Ministry of Finance 
and Planning

Member

5 Director Logistics of Sri Lanka Air Force Member
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6 Director Administration Member

7 Director Budget Member

8 Command Internal Auditor (Ser-vice) of 
Sri Lanka Air Force

Joint Convener

9 Chief Internal Auditor (Civil) of Sri 
Lanka Air Force

Joint Convener

10 Superintendent of Audit - Audi-tor 
General Department

Observer

(2)	 The members of the Committee possess the requisite financial acumen, 
experience, competencies, backgrounds and the appropriate levels of independence 
to be members of this Committee.

e.	 Secretary to the Audit Committee

	 The joint secretary (Joint Convener) to committee acts as Command 
Internal Auditor (Service) and Chief Internal Auditor (Civil), who are 
Chartered Public Finance Accountant and Class I Government Accountant, 
functions as the joint secretary (Joint Convener) to the Committee.

f.	 Internal Audit

	 Reviewed the independence, objectivity, and performance of the internal audit 
function as well as the adequacy of the Department’s resources,

(1)	 Reviewed the Internal Audit Policy and circular which are issued by the 
Ministry of Finance and planning on Public Finance Management and the audits 
carried out based on the policy and circular instructions.
(2)	 Reviewed the effectiveness of the implementation of the Internal Audit Plan 
year 2021.
(3)	 Reviewed significant internal audit findings and management’s responses 
thereto, with a view to taking timely corrective action.
(4)	 Evaluated the performance of the Command Internal Auditor (Service) and 
Chief Internal Auditor (Civil) and reviewed the evaluation of the senior audit staff of 
the Internal Audit Division.
(5)	 Reviewed training and development needs and requirements for specialized 
training of the Internal Audit Division and the need for capacity building with special 
emphasis on investigation staff.
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g.	 External Audit

(1)	 Reviewed and followed up on audit issues identified by the Auditor General, 
pertaining to the audit for the year 2021.
(2)	 Reviewed the Report of the Auditor General to the Parliament of Sri Lanka 
on the accounts of the Sri Lanka Air Force for the year ended 31st December 2021, 
the Management Letter, and the management’s responses thereto and followed up 
on corrective measures taken by the Sri Lank Air Force.
(3)	 Reviewed and discussed the key reports from the Auditor General’s 
Department and action was initiated where deemed necessary.
(4)	 Audit Plan of 2021 submitted by Command Internal Auditor (Service) and 
the Chief Internal Auditor (Civil) for the audit of the Financial Statements of Sri 
Lank Air Force and its Sub imprest which were held at Bases and Stations level for 
the year ended from 31 December 2021.
(5)	 Timely submission of required information.
(6)	 Feedback from the management on the effectiveness of the audit processes 
relevant to their operational areas.

h.	 Special Initiatives

	 Guided the office of the Command Internal Auditor (Service) and Chief 
Internal Auditor (Civil) to train operational staff of the Sri Lanka Air Force on the 
importance of the Internal Controls to prevent and pre-empt frauds.

j.	 Governance

	 The Committee, on an ongoing basis, reviewed the manner in which it 
implemented good governance practices with particular reference to the respective 
Government Circulars.

	 The external audit is carried out by the Auditor General in terms of the Constitution 
of the Socialistic Republic of Sri Lanka. The Committee;
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9.	 CONCLUSION 
	
	 Overall, performance of the Sri Lanka Air Force during the year 2021 has acquired 
a greater success with facing challenges of COVID -19 pendemic. Considerable amount 
of planned activities were successfully completed and Non–performed actions have been 
carried forward to the financial year 2022 appropriately, thus ensuring continuity of 
planning. Activities requiring further revisions were suitably rescheduled objectively when 
planning for the year 2021. Strict financial discipline and effective employment of trained 
and experienced manpower have taken the Sri Lanka Air Force to greater height during 
the year of review whilst exploring new dimensions for positive contribution to post-war 
economic development of the country.
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10.	 ABBREVIATIONS

AAP			   - Annual Action Plan
A&I			   - Addition & Improvements
ADOC			  - Air Defence Operation Centre
AEW			   - Aircraft Engineering Wing
AFHQ			  - Air Force Headquarters
AFBM			  - Air Force Board Management
AMC			   - Audit and Management Committee
AMRACS		  - Associate Member of Royal Aeronautical Society
AMSA			  - Australian Maritime Safety Authority
AMSCC		  - Air Maritime Strategic Command Centre 
AO			   - Accounting Officer
Aowc			   - Allied Officers War Course
ASW			   - Aeronautical Engineering Support Wing
ATC			   - Air Traffic Control
B. A (Def.Stu)		  - Bachelor of Arts (Defence Studies)
CAASL		  - Civil Aviation Authority Sri Lanka.
CATIC			  - China National Aero Technology Import & Export Cooperation
CAO			   - Chief Accounting Officer
CBA (CASL)		  -Certificate Business Accountant (Chartered    Accountants of Sri 		
			   Lanka)
CDO			   - Command Dental Officer
CDPO			  - Command Development Project Officer
CEA			   - Central Environment Authority  
CEB			   - Ceylon Electricity Board
CFSO			   - Command Flight Safety Officer
CIA (C)		  - Chief Internal Auditor (Civil)
CIA (S)		  - Command Internal Auditor (Service) 
CIRE (FW)		  - Command Instrument Rating examiner (Fixed wing)
CIRE (RW)		  - Command Instrument Rating examiner (Rotary wing)
CITO			   - Chief Information Technology Officer
CMO			   - Civil-Military Operations
COPA			   - Committee On Public Accounts
COVAF		  - Commanding Officer Volunteer Air Force
COVID-19		  - Corona Virus Disease 2019
CRD Cell		  - Command Research and Development Cell
CRDO			  - Command Research & Development Officer
CRO			   - Chief Recruiting Officer
CSO			   - Command Sport Officer
CSR			   - Corporate Social Responsibility
CQAI			   - Command Quality Assurance Inspectorate
CQAO			  - Command Quality Assurance Officer
CWPO			  - Command Welfare Projects Officer
D. Av. Med.		  - Diploma in Aviation Medicine
DA			   - Director Administration
DAE			   - Director Aeronautical Engineering
DAO			   - Director Air Operations
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D Bgt			   - Director Budget
DCA			   - Director Civil Administration
DCE			   - Director Civil Engineering
Def			   - Defence
DETE			   - Director Electronic & Telecommunication    Engineering
DF			   - Director Finance
DGCA			  - Director General Civil Aviation
DGE			   - Director General Engineering
DGO			   - Director Ground Operations
DHS			   - Director Health Service
DL			   - Director Logistics
D Legal		  - Director Legal
DMC			   - Disaster Management Centre
DT			   - Director Training
DW			   - Director Welfare
ECM			   - Electronic Counter Measure
EEZ			   - Exclusive Economic Zone
EOD			   - Explosive Ordnance Disposal
EPM			   - Electronic Protection Measures
FIR			   - Flight Information Region
FSI			   - Flight Safety Inspectors
FSW			   - File Share Witness
FTW			   - Flying Training Wing
FY			   - Fiscal Year
GEW			   - General Engineering Wing
HADR			  - Humanitarian Assistance and Disaster Relief
HCA			   - Humanitarian Civic Assistance 
HUD			   - Head-Up Display
KDU			   - Kotelawala Defence University
IAD			   - Internal Audit Division
IAF			   - Indian Air Force
IAI			   - Israel Aerospace Industries
ICAO			   - International Civil Aviation Organization.
IET			   - Institute of Engineering and Technology
IELTS			   - International English Language Testing System
IT			   - Information Technology  
ITU			   - Information Technology Unit
JMSDF			  - Japan Maritime Self Defence Force
LFD			   - Larger Format Display
LTTE			   - Liberation Tigers of Tamil Eelam 
MACA			  - Military Aid to Civil Authority
M Eng			  - Master of Engineering in Electronics
M Sc (Def Stu)	- Master of Science (Defence Studies)
M Sc (Def Strat Stud)	 - Master of Science (Defence and Strategic Studies)
M.A. (London)	 - Master of Arts (London)
MAIAA		  - Member of the American Institute of Aeronautics and 			 
			   Astronautics
MSc. 			   - Master of Science
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MAAT (SL)		  - Member of Association of Accounting Technicians (Sri Lanka)
MBA			   - Master of Business Administration
MBS (Col)		  - Master of Business Studies (Colombo)
MBBS			   - Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery
MDS			   - Master in Defence Studies
MIM (SL)		  - Member of Institute of Management (Sri Lanka)
Mgt			   - Management
MPhil			   - Master of Philosophy
MSc. (MOA)		  - Master of Science (Military Operational Art)
MTROW		  - Mechanical Transport Repair & Overhaul Wing 
NCOs			   - Non Commissioned Officers
ndc			   - Graduate of the National Defence College
NDT			   - Non Destructive Testing
NIOSH		  - National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health
NPS			   - National Productivity Secretariat
NVG			   - Night Vision Goggles 
NVQ			   - National Vocational Qualification
OEM			   - Original Equipment Manufacturer
PABX			   - Private Automatic Branch Exchange
PAF			   - Pakistan Air Force
PBU			   - Premature Baby Care Unit
PDM			   - Periodic Depot Maintenance
psc			   - Passed Staff College
qfi			   - Qualified Flying Instructor 
Qhi			   - Qualified Helicopter Instructor
R&D			   - Research & Development 
RDW			   - Research and Development Wing
RMW			   - Radar Maintenance Wing
RSP			   - Rana Shura Padakkama
RWP			   - Rana Wickrama Padakkama
SAR			   - Surveillance Air Reconnaissance
SAARC		  - South Asian Association for Regional Cooperation
SCAPC		  - Standard Cabinet Appointed Procurement Committee
SLAF			   - Sri Lanka Air Force
SLN			   - Sri Lanka Navy
SNLR			   - Service No Longer Required
SLSI			   - Sri Lanka Standard Institute
SLT			   - Sri Lanka Telecom
S&MD			  - Supply and Maintenance Depot
SNCO			   - Senior Non Commissioned Officer
SORs			   - Special Occurrences Reports
TTS			   - Trade Training School
UAV			   - Unmanned Aerial Vehicle
UNMISS		  - United States Peacekeeping Mission South Sudan
USAF			   - United State Air Force.
USP			   - Uththama Seva Padakkama
USPACOM		  - United States Pacific Command
VSV			   - Vishista Seva Vibhushanaya
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VIP			   - Very Important Person 
VVIP			   - Very Very Important Person 
w.e.f			   - With effect from 
WWV			   - Weera Wickrama Vibushana 
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